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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due

and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no

assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this annual report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever

arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
(the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this annual report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,

and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this annual report misleading.
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech
Company Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”), I am hereby to present the audited consolidated
results for the year ended 31 December 2021 of the Group.

During the year, the Group actively expanded its investment
holding business by completing the capital injection into two
enterprises, which became the Company’s financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income. The business
areas of the new investments include technical development
of semiconductor and new material technology, sales of
semiconductor materials and equipment; and technical research
and development and wholesale distribution of display devices,
optical components and accessories along with digital devices. The
Group considers that the new investment projects have promising
prospects to enhance the value of the Group’s assets and are in

line with the Group’s vision.

Looking ahead, the overall outlook for the industries and
business environment in which the Group operates remains
challenging in the coming year. The Group will continue to
strengthen the development of its existing businesses and further
promote its profitability by improving its operational efficiency
and cost structure. The Group will continue to maintain a
prudent investment strategy and seek valuable investment
opportunities, thereby pursuing stable growth and striving to
generate strong returns for the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”).

I would like to express my sincere gratitude to all employees of
the Group for their outstanding contributions and hard work
during the year. I would also like to express my gratitude to all our
Shareholders, business partners and customers for their unfailing

support.

Ni Jinlei
Chairman and Executive Director

Beijing, the PRC
30 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

o BELJE B g i

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in tourism development
business, investment holding of diversified portfolios and other
businesses including sales of metallic products and wine and

related products.

Tourism development

The Company, through its subsidiaries and associates, is
engaged in provision of environmental shuttle bus service
and property management services, and operation of tourist
facilities, entertainment performance, tourist service center and
tourist souvenir shops in the tourist area at Nanyue District,
Hunan Province, the PRC; and also participated in several
tourism development projects in Hunan Province, including the

development of tourist sight project located at Tianzi Mountain.

The tourist area at Nanyue District, the place of operation of the
Group’s tourism development business, has been temporarily
closed from 8 August 2021 to 23 August 2021, due to the policies
and measures implemented by the government of the PRC
to deter the Epidemic in the PRC. As a result of the overall
stablisation of the novel coronavirus pneumonia (“COVID-197)
epidemic (the “Epidemic”) in the PRC, the number of tourists and
pilgrims visiting Hengshan Mountain scenic area was increased
by about 12% for the year ended 31 December 2021. The service
utlisation rate of the Group’s environmental bus service remained
stable at 91% (2020: 92%).

In June 2021, the Group acquired a 2% equity interest in Chuangqi
(Hunan) Cultural Tourism Company Limited (“Chuanqi Cultural
Tourism”), a then associate of the Group, at a consideration of
RMBI1 in cash together with capital contribution commitment of
RMB1,400,000 from an independent third party of the Company.
Immediately after the acquisition, the Group owned a total of
51% indirect interest in Chuanqi Cultural Tourism; and Chuangqi
Cultural Tourism ceased to be an associate of the Company and
became a subsidiary of the Company. Chuanqi Cultural Tourism
was participated in tourism development projects in Hunan

Province.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Tourism development (Continued)

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company
dated 15 May 2020, 26 June 2020 and 3 September 2021 and the
circular of the Company dated 30 June 2020. On 15 May 2020, the
Company entered into the sale and purchase agreement (the “SP
Agreement”) with an independent third party (the “Purchaser”)
and Chuangi Tourism Investment Co., Ltd (the “Target”), a then
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, for the disposal of
the 60% equity interest in Chuangqi Tourism (the “Sale Interest”)
held by the Company at the consideration of RMB172,028,880
(the “Disposal”); and the guarantee fee arrangement in relation
to the release of the guarantee agreement (the “Guarantee
Agreement”) executed by the Company and the banks dated
31 January 2013 which secured the obligations of Changsha
Songya Lake Construction Investment Co., Ltd. (“Songya Lake
Construction”), under a facility agreement. The release of the
Guarantee Agreement shall be arranged within 12 months from
the equity transfer date through negotiation with the banks. The
completion of the Disposal (the “Completion”) took place on 3
September 2020.

As at the date of this annual report, 12 months have passed
from the equity transfer date and the release of the Guarantee
Agreement has still not been completed. As at the date of this
annual report, negotiation with the banks regarding the release
of the Guarantee Agreement is still in progress and the final
agreement with the banks regarding the release of the Guarantee
Agreement can only be reached after the banks have completed its
internal approval procedures (“Bank Approval Procedure”) which
takes longer time than originally expected. It is currently expected
that barring unforeseen circumstances, completion of the Bank
Approval Procedure will take place and the Guarantee Agreement

will be released in the fourth quarter of 2022.

In addition, as at the date of this annual report, the remaining
balance of the consideration of approximately RMB142.0 million
(the “Consideration Balance”), which should have been due since
3 December 2020, i.e. 90 days from the Completion, remained
outstanding. The Purchaser recently proposed to the Company
that it shall pay the Consideration Balance in the fourth quarter of
2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

o BELJE B g i

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Tourism development (Continued)

Taking into account that (i) the time required for completion
of the Bank Approval Procedure is beyond the control of the
Purchaser and the Company; (ii) the response from the Banks
on the release of the Guarantee Agreement so far is positive and
there is so far no indication from the Banks that the release of
the Guarantee Agreement will be refused; (iii) the continuing
provision of the Guarantee by the Company shall be subject to the
Guarantee Fee and the Purchaser has been paying the guarantee
fee in accordance with the SP Agreement; (iv) in addition to
the guarantee fee, the Company is entitled to damages for each
overdue day for its breach; (v) the Purchaser has pledged the Sale
Interest in favour of the Company and the Target has pledged all
shares in Songya Lake Construction in favour of the Company;
and (vi) the Purchaser has been paying the interest for overdue
accrued on the Consideration Balance in accordance with the SP
Agreement, the Company currently has no intention to terminate
the SP Agreement. However, the Company will closely monitor the
status of release of the Guarantee Agreement and payment of the
Consideration Balance and will make further announcement(s) to
update the Shareholders and the investors of the Company of any

material development as and when appropriate.

Investment holding

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s investment holding business
mainly included investments in a subsidiary, the associates
and joint ventures which are private equity funds with equity
investments in private enterprises and property projects in the
PRC, the investment in Jade Bird Fire Co., Ltd., a A share listed
company in the PRC, and the investments in financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)
including listed companies in Hong Kong and private companies
in the PRC and Hong Kong.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Investment holding (Continued)

On 17 June 2021, the Company entered into a capital increase
agreement with several investors and existing shareholders of
Shanghai Xianyao Display Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Xianyao”), pursuant to which, among others, the Company, as
investor, has agreed to inject RMB100 million into Shanghai
Xianyao, of which (i) RMB2,947,183 shall be contributed to the
registered capital of Shanghai Xianyao; and (ii) the remaining
balance shall be contributed to the capital reserve of Shanghai
Xianyao. Upon completion of the capital injection by all investors,
the Company would hold approximately 6.80% equity interest
in Shanghai Xianyao, which would become a financial asset at
FVTOCI of the Company. Shanghai Xianyao is principally engaged
in the technical research and development of display devices,
optical components and accessories and digital devices; and the
wholesale distribution of digital components, optoelectronic
products, display devices, projecting devices and lightening

devices.

On 3 September 2021, the Company entered into a capital
increase agreement with the existing shareholders of Eta
Semiconductor Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.) (“Eta
Shanghai”), pursuant to which the Company agreed to inject
RMB50,000,000 into Eta Shanghai of which (i) RMB8,939,189
shall be contributed to the registered capital of Eta Shanghai;
and (ii) the remaining balance shall be contributed to the
capital reserve of the Eta Shanghai. Upon the completion of
capital injection by the Company, the Company would hold
approximately 10.00% equity interest in Eta Shanghai, which
would become a financial asset at FVTOCI of the Company. Eta
Shanghai is principally engaged in the technical development,
technical service, technical consultation and technical transfer
of semiconductor and new material technology; and the sale of

semiconductor materials and equipment.

The Board considered that the investments in Shanghai Xianyao
and Eta Shanghai represented good investment opportunities and
were in line with the Group’s vision to invest in target companies
or businesses having promising outlooks and prospects. The
transactions represented an endeavour of the Group to tap into
the market of business activities engaged by Shanghai Xianyao and
Eta Shanghai.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Trading of metallic products

During the year, the Group is engaged in sales and purchases of
metallic products in the PRC. The Group continues to explore

more opportunities for to expand the Group’s source of income.

Other businesses

The Group operated a winery, namely The Winery at la Grange,
at the State of Virginia, the United States, which owned a vineyard
and is principally engaged in the production and sales of wine and

related products.

Subsequent to the reporting period, on 10 March 2022, the
Company entered into (i) an equity transfer agreement with an
independent third party and Guangdong Lumen Pioneer Opto
Co., Ltd. (“Guangdong Lumen”) for the acquisition of the 80%
equity interest in Guangdong Lumen at the consideration of
RMB84,486,160; and (ii) a repurchase agreement pursuant to
which upon occurrence of certain repurchase events, Shanghai
Shengjin Venture Capital Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Shengjin”) may
require the Company or Guangdong Lumen to repurchase the
20% equity interest in Guangdong Lumen owned by Shanghai
Shengjin at the option price of RMB22 million plus interest of
10% per annum, if applicable. Upon completion, Guangdong
Lumen would become a direct non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company and the financial results of Guangdong Lumen would be

consolidated with the results of the Group.

Guangdong Lumen is principally engaged in high-end ceramic
high-power LED devices and modules, focusing on the research
and development and manufacturing of special light sources such
as automotive, stage, curing, flash and plant growth. The products
manufactured include car lamp series, mobile lighting series,
color light series, etc.. The Board considered that the acquisition
represented a good opportunity to expand the Group’s business
into the development, manufacture and sale of high-end ceramic
high-power LED devices and modules, in view of the promising
future prospect of the market of the LED industries, which could
further expand the source of the Group’s operating income and

profit and could bring returns to the Shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Outlook

Looking ahead, the performance of the Group’s business, in
particular, the tourism development business of the Group will
still be affected in light of the evolving situation regarding the
Epidemic.

The Group would closely monitor the performance of its main
businesses and the existing investment portfolio held by the
Group. The Group would only explore investment projects with
promising development potential in a prudent manner and
carefully assess investment opportunities in the market in order
to create a better return for its shareholders. The Group will keep
continuous attention on the development and situation of the
COVID-19 and react actively to its impact on the financial position

and operating results of the Group.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Tourism development

During the year, fare revenue from tourists and pilgrims
continued to be the main source of income of the Group’s tourism
development business. For the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group’s tourism development business recorded revenue
of approximately RMB110.8 million (2020: RMB97.3 million),
representing an increase by 13.8% when compared with the
corresponding period of 2020. Such increase was mainly due to
the recovery of the tourism market from the Epidemic in the
PRC though there was a short temporary closure of tourist area at

Nanyue District during the third quarter of 2021.

Investment holding

The segment total assets of investment holding business increased
by 15.6% to approximately RMB3,172.9 million as at 31 December
2021 (2020: RMB2,745.3 million). The increase was mainly
attributable to the Group’s new investments in Shanghai Xianyao
and Eta Shanghai during the year and increase in the Group’s

share of carrying amount of interests in associates.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Trading of metallic products

For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue generated from
the Group’s trading of metallic products business amounted to
approximately RMB273.6 million (2020: RMB353.0 million),
representing a decrease by 22.5% year-on-year. The decrease was
mainly attributable to the decrease in orders entered into by the
Group after considering the price fluctuation of the metallic
products. The gross margin was 2.2% (2020: 2.4%) during the

year.

Overall performance

During the year under review, the business and financial
performance of the Group were improved when compared with
the corresponding period of 2020, as a result of the stabilization of
the Epidemic in the PRC. For the year ended 31 December 2021,
total revenue recorded by the Group amounted to approximately
RMB394.6 million (2020: RMB468.4 million), representing a
decrease of 15.8% compared with the corresponding year of 2020.
Such decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue
generated by trading of metallic products during the year. The
Group maintained a steady gross profit margin of approximately
15% (2020: 15%), which is a key performance indicator of the
Group’s overall efficiency and profitability. The Group recorded
an increase in profit attributable to owners of the Company by
147.8% to approximately RMB159.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: RMB64.2 million). The increase was mainly
attributable to the improvement in the businesses of the Group’s
associates, which have gradually rebounded from the impact of the
Epidemic since the second half of 2020, and continued through
the year of 2021.

Financial position

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s current ratio (being ratio
of current assets and current liabilities) and the gearing ratio
(being measured by total loans and lease liabilities to total equity),
which are the key position and financial leverage, were 0.64 (2020:
2.89) and 22.9% (2020: 15.4%) respectively. Decrease in current
ratio and Increase in the gearing ratio were mainly due to the
raise of additional bank and other loans for business operations
during the year. The Group has been actively negotiating with
banks and other borrowers for new loans and renewal of current
existing loans in order to cope with the business operations and

expansion.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s main core businesses are subject to the several key
risks and uncertainties including, and among others, operating

risks and financial risks.

Operational risks

The Group faces several potential operational risks including
relaxation of the local authority’s policy to other service providers
to operate the shuttle bus service, the industrial policy risks and
the implementation of administrative measures by government
in relation to the Epidemic. If there is unfavorable adjustment
of the local authority’s policy, the industrial policies and the
administrative measures in relation to the tourism industry in
the PRC, there may have an adverse effect on the Group’s net
profit. The Board always monitors market situation in order to
react promptly over any potential risks. The Board meets and
discusses with directors of subsidiaries frequently to keep track of
their situations so that it can adjust segmental strategies timely.
The Group has already set out strategies including quality control
enhancement, stringent cost control and business diversification

to deal with different kinds of operational risks.

Financial risks

The Group also exposes to a variety of financial risks including
foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and

interest rate risk.

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), US dollars (“USD”),
Canadian dollars (“CAD”), Euro (“EUR”) and Renminbi (“RMB”).
The Group does not formulate a foreign currency hedging policy
at present as turnover, most of the costs and operating expenses
are denominated in RMB and they are automatically hedged,
leaving limited currency risk. The Group closely monitors its
exposure and will take measures to lower foreign currency risk

when necessary.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (CONTINUED)
Financial risks (Continued)

The Group exposes to equity security price risk as listed equity
securities included in its financial assets at FVTOCI are measured
at fair value. The change in fair value of the listed securities will
lead to the fluctuation of fair value changes of financial assets at
FVTOCI included in the Group’s total comprehensive income.
The Group has not mitigated its price risk arising from the listed

equity securities.

The Group exposes to certain credit risk coming from certain
financial assets held by the Group, which include cash and cash
equivalents, and receivables. The Group’s tourism development
segment mainly generated fare revenue from environmental
shuttle bus service and the credit risk was low. The Group is
engaged in sales and purchases of metallic products and recorded
trade receivables as at 31 December 2021. An increase in trade
receivables will result in a decrease in the Group’s operating
cash flow and an increase in the Group’s operating risk. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
trade receivables and monitors credit terms of the customers.
Senior management of each subsidiary reviews overdue balances
regularly. The Group maintains good cooperation with the
customers and customer credit is in good condition. The Group
does not develop particular policy to tackle credit risks from cash
and cash equivalents at present as the major counterparties are

either well-established or having high credit-rating.

The Group’s measure over liquidity is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient cash reserves to meet its liquidity requirements in short

and long term.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk arises from its bank
deposits and bank and other loans. The risk varies with the

prevailing market condition but is limited.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND COMPLIANCE
WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to maintaining the highest
environmental standards and strictly follows the applicable
environmental requirements imposed by the PRC government in
its operation. For the year under review, the Group complied with
influential laws relevant to waste gas or greenhouse gas emissions,
water or land discharging, hazardous or non-hazardous wastes,
and use of resources. The Group strives to reduce destruction
to the environment by saving energy and encouraging recycle of
office supplies. Besides, the environmental buses operated by the
Group are equipped with anti-smoking devices and do not use

heavy-duty diesel to reduce pollution.

The Group’s main core businesses are carried out by principal
subsidiaries in the PRC and the United States of America and the
Company was listed on the Stock Exchange in 2000. The Group
strictly complies with the relevant laws and regulations to ensure

sustainable development of its businesses.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group’s customers mainly comprised of tourists and pilgrims
and trading partners from business of sales and purchases
of metallic products. The Group is committed to provide
good-quality environmental shuttle bus services to the customers.
The Group has a business team to execute sales contracts with
the trading partners and maintains good relationship with the
trading partners. The business team is mainly responsible for the
evaluation of qualification of trading partners and coordinating
the relationship between trading partners, while the Group’s
finance department is mainly responsible for assessing credit limit

and control.

The Group has a close and good relationship with key suppliers
in relation to the operation of the environmental shuttle bus
services and business of sales and purchases of metallic products.
The Group strictly regulated procurement procedures in relation
to supplier evaluation and selection, and acceptance of purchased
products. In addition, there are a relatively a number of suppliers
in the market and relatively stable purchase prices could be

maintained.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

Saved as disclosed herein this section, during the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group did not effect any material acquisitions
and disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures which

would be required to be disclosed under the GEM Listing Rules.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s major
operations were financed mainly by the internal financial
resources, by corporate borrowings and by net proceeds from
placing of new H shares of the Company during the year. As at
31 December 2021, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB99.9 million, which were denominated mainly
in RMB, HK$ and USD.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net assets of
approximately RMB3,348.5 million (2020: RMB3,104.8 million).
The Group had total outstanding borrowings of approximately
RMB701.9 million (2020: RMB413.8 million) which consisted of
secured bank and other loans of approximately RMB643.3 million
(2020: RMB355.7 million) and unsecured bank and other loans of
RMB58.6 million (2020: RMB58.1 million). The bank and other
loans were denominated in RMB and USD and bore interest rates

ranging from nil to 12% per annum.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s outstanding number
of issued non-listed shares and H shares of RMB0.10 each were
700,000,000 shares and 814,464,000 shares respectively.

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2021, which
is measured by total loans and lease liabilities to total equity, was
22.9% (2020: 15.4%). During the year, the total bank and other
loans were increased for continuous business expansion and

development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (CONTINUED)

The Board announces that on 20 January 2021, it has resolved
to approve the proposed issue of not more than 400,000,000
new H shares pursuant to a specific mandate to be sought at a
special general meeting and the class meetings of the Company.
The purpose of the proposed new H shares issue is mainly to
provide funding to a subsidiary of the Company for undertaking
the business in import and export of integrated circuit related
products and introduction of related technology. The Board
considered that the new H shares issue is highly beneficial to the
Company by enlarging the shareholder and capital bases of the
Company and providing capital for the Group’s development.
Moreover, equity financing does not incur any interest expense
on the part of the Company and could restrain the build-up of
the debt-ratio, which will improve the financing structure of the
Company. The approval of the shareholders of the Company in
respect of the grant of the specific mandate to issue the new H
shares was obtained at the special general meeting and the class
meetings of the Company on 2 March 2021. The validity period of
the resolutions, which is 12 months from the date of passing the
resolutions at the special general meeting and the class meetings
of the Company, has expired and no new H shares pursuant to the

specific mandate was issued by the Company.

PLACING OF NEW H SHARES UNDER GENERAL
MANDATE

On 17 March 2021, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a third party placing agent pursuant to which the
placing agent, as the agent of the Company, agreed to place on a
best effort basis up to 135,744,000 new H shares to not less than
six but not exceeding ten independent placees at placing price of
HK$0.50 (equivalent to approximately RMB0.42) (representing a
discount of approximately 19.35% to the closing price of HK$0.62
(equivalent to approximately RMB0.52) per H share on 17 March
2021).

o BEL ) i B g i

TBE & - MBI E AR (4])

HEHEeEM R B —4F—H _+H E
FEE O ok el v AR R AR R A A AR N ] 2 B R
JBC R R B BB IR g b R R E R
17 R # #8400,000,000 % BrHB o BrHA 35 17
MWHMEERRTE (Fis) 2484 - DIBH
Jie B BRI R B EE R 3 O SR RS | A
BAFMT o B GRS HBET A R ARA
Al 2 BT B A BE R S Ay A 4R T R 4 0t
B BARNE AR - R RS
ANEr By AN A EE A AT AT RIS BH S o R RAJRR A
B TE > AR5 AR 2 J A A A o
CAARATFIR R Z—F = Z H BT
I ISR R B S U R & b AR AR A8 A I OR
RAZ AT BTHIR A R E S RE R HEUE o PR
ZH A BON (BD A 48 2 &) B R K & B
AR g R g 2 BRI H) B8R
W A S R AR SR SRR AT AR -

AR — % 9% HE i 45 HTHR

MRoFE A=A EH s RAFHEE =T
il 5 AR B FT 7 B B o SR > F B AR (fE
By ) 2 AP 7] 5 4 v 35 Ur e Ak E ) R
DA TS 4 (MR A 4 B R A S B
% £135,744,000 8% BrHA > il & 18 2 & B
B B 4r0.50% o0 (K8 174 %1 A R ¥0.4270) >
BHRR - F _—F=A+LHZ KT ES
J5£0.62%5 76 (A & it %1 A\ R #50.5270) T34
19.35% °

A AR IER T BRSO A PR A A

16



17

Management Discussion and Analysis

o BELJE B g i

PLACING OF NEW H SHARES UNDER GENERAL
MANDATE (CONTINUED)

The placing was completed on 30 March 2021. An aggregate
of 135,744,000 new H shares with aggregate nominal value of
RMB13,574,400 were allotted and issued by the Company on 30
March 2021 pursuant to the general mandate and placed by the
placing agent to six placees who are independent professional,
institutional or other investors. To the best of the Directors’
knowledge, information and belief, having made all reasonable
enquiries, the six placees and their ultimate beneficial owners
(where applicable) are independent third parties and none of
the placees or their respective associates has become a substantial
shareholder of the Company upon the completion of the placing.
The net proceeds from the placing amounted to approximately
HK$67.3 million (equivalent to approximately RMB56.8 million)
(representing a net placing price of approximately HK$0.496
(equivalent to approximately RMB0.418) per placing H share).
The Directors intended that approximately 80% of net proceeds
from the placing would be applied to potential mergers and
acquisitions and/or development of new businesses; and
approximately 20% of the net proceeds from the placing would be
applied as working capital of the Group.

Details of the above were disclosed in the announcements of
the Company dated 17 March 2021 and 30 March 2021 (the

“Announcements”).

The net proceeds applied up to 31 December 2021 and in
accordance with the proposed applications set out in the

Announcements are as follows:
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Net proceeds (RMB in million)

i s EHB M (ANRW A &)
Available Utilised  Unutilised
]l B A A B

Potential mergers and acquisitions TEAE A DF RO K, 5888 R T 685

and/or development of new business 45.4 4.5x4 -
Working capital of the Group AL Y R 11.4 8.0 3.4
56.8 53.4 3.4

The balance of the unutilised net proceeds amounting to
approximately RMB3.4 million was placed as deposits in banks,
and the Group currently expects that the unutilised net proceeds
will be used by June 2022.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021

o0 19 KV A 5 A A R340
T O — IGRT {4 0 - T2 K80 I
L o B R 9 MR R I AN
H Wi -



Management Discussion and Analysis

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

As at 31 December 2021, the Group held financial assets at
FVTOCI of approximately RMB300.7 million, representing 7.0%

of the total assets of the Group, which mainly comprised of:

(i) 6.24% equity interest in Shanghai Xianyao with investment
cost of RMB100.0 million at fair value of approximately
RMB149.8 million, representing 3.5% of the total assets
of the Group as at 31 December 2021. Shanghai Xianyao
is principally engaged in the technical research and
development of display devices, optical components
and accessories and digital devices; and the wholesale
distribution of digital components, optoelectronic products,
display devices, projecting devices and lightening devices.
There is an increase in fair value of approximately RMB49.8
million included in other comprehensive income for the

year;

(ii) 19% equity interest in Beida Jade Bird Tongling
Semiconductor Industry Investment Fund (Limited
Partnership) (“Tongling Investment Fund”) with
investment cost of approximately RMB66.5 million at fair
value of approximately RMB55.7 million, representing
1.3% of the total assets of the Group as at 31 December
2021. Tongling Investment Fund is a limited partnership
investment fund established in the PRC with investment
scope of semiconductor industry chain projects in the city
of Tongling, Anhui province. There is an increase in fair
value of approximately RMB4.4 million included in other

comprehensive Income in for the year;

(iii) 10.0% equity interest in Eta Shanghai with investment cost of
RMB50.0 million at fair value of of approximately RMB50.0
million, representing 1.2% of the total assets of the Group
as at 31 December 2021. Eta Shanghai is principally engaged
in the technical development, technical service, technical
consultation and technical transfer of semiconductor and
new material technology, and the sale of semiconductor
materials and equipment. There is no material change in fair
value included in other comprehensive income for the year;

and
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD (CONTINUED)

(iv) 2,000,340 ordinary shares of Semiconductor Manufacturing
International Corporation (“SMIC”) with investment
cost of approximately RMB14.6 million at fair value of
approximately RMB30.5 million, representing 0.7% of the
total assets of the Group as at 31 December 2021. SMIC is
a Hong Kong listed company with stock code 00981 and
is principally engaged in the manufacture and trading
of semiconductor products. There is a decrease in fair
value of approximately RMB5.6 million included in other

comprehensive income for the year.

Investment holding is one of the core businesses of the
Group, and the Group strives to identify promising investment
opportunities. The Group considered the optimistic future
prospect of market of display devices and optoelectronic
products, as well as the semiconductor industries and expected
that the Group’s investments will be benefited in the long run.
During the year under review, the fair value of the financial
assets at FVTOCI fluctuated as a result of uncertainty of global
economic environment. The Group will carefully assess investment
opportunities in the market to diversify investment business

portfolio in view of expected higher volatility ahead.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Saved as disclosed herein this section, the Group did not have any

significant investment plans as at 31 December 2021.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had contingent liabilities in the sum of approximately
RMB300.0 million in respect of guarantee for banking facilities

granted to associates and a former associate of the Company.

Saved as disclosed above, the Group did not have any other

significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group is exposed to certain foreign currency risk as most
of its business activities, assets and liabilities are denominated in
USD, CAD, RMB, EUR and HK$. The Group has not formulated
a foreign currency hedging policy as turnover and most of the
production costs and operating expenses are denominated in
RMB and they are automatically matched, leaving limited currency
risk. The Group continues to monitor its foreign exchange
exposure and will take measures to lower the foreign currency risk

when necessary.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s certain fixed assets with
carrying amount of approximately RMB281.4 million (2020:
RMB162.4 million), investment properties with carrying amount
of approximately RMB199.1 million (2020: Nil), bank deposit
of approximately RMBI.0 million (2020: RMB12.2 million) and
equity interest of an associate were pledged as securities for the

Group’s bank and other loans.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group considers people as the valuable assets. The Directors
are of the view that the Group maintains good working relations
with its employees. The Group had workforce of 520 people
situated mainly in the PRC, Hong Kong and the United States
at the end of reporting year, up 10% since the end of 2020.
The Group strictly complied with applicable labour law and
regulations. Competitive remuneration package with medical and
travel insurance are offered to the staff. Adequate retirement
funds and provident funds are contributed on a timely basis. The
Group emphasizes on working safety and sets out proper safety
guidelines and provides adequate training to workers. Staffs are
free to set up trade union according to applicable laws while
the supervisory committee of the Company (the “Supervisory

Committee”) had representative from the workforce.

Director’s emoluments consist of fees, salaries and allowances, and
discretionary bonus determined according to the performance of

individual Director.

The Group’s staff costs, including directors’ emoluments,
employees’ salaries and retirement benefits scheme contribution
amounted to approximately RMB60.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: RMB54.0 million). Increase was mainly

attributable to the business expansion of the Group during the year.
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Profile of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EH-EFLRRTHEZ B

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ni Jinlei, aged 54, was appointed as a non-executive
Director and the chairman of the Company on 30 June 2015 and
re-designated as an executive Director on 31 May 2018. Mr. Ni was
graduated from the Peking University with a Bachelor’s degree
in computer software in 1987. Mr. Ni was the computer software
engineer of Shenzhen Taiji Software Engineering Company,
manager of computer department of the securities exchange
center in Hainan, general manager of Guangzhou Nanfang Jade
Bird Information System Co., Ltd., senior manager of Integrated
Software and Device Corporation (USA), software architect of
ABB Energy Information System (USA), chief executive officer of
Beijing Beida-Online Network Co., Ltd., China regional director
(Young Learners’ English) of Global English Corporation,
founder and chief executive officer of Beijing Jinwenlang
Information Technology Co., Ltd.. Mr. Ni is currently a director of
Chuangqi Tourism Investment (Hunan) Co., Ltd., Beida Jade Bird
Universal Investments (HK) Limited, Beida Jade Bird Universal
Sci-Tech (Cayman) Development Company Limited, Beida Jade
Bird Universal (Cayman) Investment Company Limited and Beida
Jade Bird Universal Investment (BVI) Limited which are the
subsidiaries of the Company, and the chairman of Beijing Xizhi

Education Technology Co., Ltd.

Ms. Zheng Zhong, aged 45, is an executive Director and the
president of the Company. Ms. Zheng was graduated from the
Molecular Biology Department of the School of Life Sciences at
Peking University in July 1997 and subsequently obtained an MBA
degree from the China Centre for Economic Research at Peking
University in July 2007. Ms. Zheng worked for the Biological
Engineering Centre under the Institute of Chemical Metallurgy
(now Institute of Process Engineering) at Chinese Academy of
Sciences, Department of Biology at Shenzhen University and
Shenzhen Kexing Bioproducts Co., Ltd.. She was also an assistant
to the president of SINOGEN (China) Investment Company,
assistant to the head of Genetics Research Institute of the School
of Life Sciences at Tsinghua University, president of Beijing
Beida-Online Network Co., Ltd., vice president of Beida Culture
Group, and assistant to president of Beijing Beida Jade Bird
Limited (“Beida Jade Bird”) and the general manager overseeing
major projects. She is currently an executive director and general
manager of Beijing Jade Bird Yuda Information Technology
Co., Ltd. which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
She is also a director and deputy general manager of SBI-BDJB

Investment Consultant Ltd..
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Profile of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EHE-EFARREHEZ

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Wang Xingye, aged 45, was appointed as an executive Director,
the compliance officer and the vice president of the Company on
21 May 2021. Mr. Wang attended master post-graduation level. Mr.
Wang has worked in Beida Jade Bird. He is currently a director
of Chuanqi Tourism Investment (Hunan) Co., Ltd., Beijing Jade
Bird Hengsheng Investment Management Co., Ltd., Ningbo Jade
Bird Zhengyuan Equity Investment Management Co., Ltd., Ningbo
Jade Bird Venture Capital Investment Co., Ltd., Ningbo Jade Bird
Liyuantai Venture Capital Management Co., Ltd., Beida Jade Bird
Universal Investments (HK) Limited, Beida Jade Bird Universal
(Cayman) Development Company Limited, Beida Jade Bird
Universal (Cayman) Investment Company Limited and Beida Jade
Bird Universal Investment (BVI) Limited, which are subsidiaries
of the Company. He is also currently an executive director and
the general manager of Beijing Jade Bird Dingsheng Investment
Management Co., Ltd., the chairman of the supervisory committee
of Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited (a company
list on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 747)) and a director
of Jade Bird Fire Co., Ltd. (an A share company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock code: 002960)). Mr. Wang
joined the Company in March 2000 and is the secretary to the
Board, the director of Human Resources of the Company and the

chairman of the labor union of the Company.

Ms. Guan Xueming, aged 50, was appointed as an executive
Director and the vice president of the Company on 21 May 2021.
Ms. Guan was graduated from North China University of Water
Resources and Electric Power with a Master’s degree. Ms. Guan
is a certified accountant in the PRC, a certified tax agent in
the PRC, a certified internal auditor and a certified accountant
with securities qualification. She has extensive experience in
financial management, and was the engineer of Nanning City
Water Supply Company, the deputy director of Zhonglei Certified
Public Accountants Co., Ltd. and the financial controller of
Jinjilie International Study Service Co., Ltd.. She is currently the
director of Guangdong Xinrui Luming Optoelectronics Co., Ltd.,
the director of Jade Bird Semiconductor Technology (Tongling)
Co., Ltd., and the executive partner of Beijing Wangshengtong

Technology Development Center (General Partnership).
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Profile of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Xiang Lei, aged 70, was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 31 July 2017. Mr. Xiang was graduated from the Stony Brook
College of the State University of New York with a Master’s degree
in systems management. Mr. Xiang is a council member of the
China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation and a council member
of the Gonghe Foundation. Mr. Xiang was the manager of China
National Machinery Import and Export Corporation, senior
manager of East West Bank, chief representative of Giti Group’s
Beijing representative office, investment consultant of Donaldson,
Lufkin & Jenrette Securities Corporation, vice president of
Beida Jade Bird Group, director of Beijing Beihu Golf Club, and

director of Giti Group. Mr. Xiang is currently the director of

Jiuzhou Yahua Cultural Agency Company Limited, the supervisor

of Tianjin Zhinan Business Consulting Co., Ltd., the director of

China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation, the director of Jiangsu

Wenfeng Charity Foundation and the president of Beida Jade

Bird.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tang Xuan, aged 49, was appointed as an non-executive
Director on 15 May 2020. Mr. Tang was graduated from
Chongqing University with a Bachelor’s degree in engineering,
and is a certified accountant in the PRC and a member of
Institute of Public Accountants in Australia. He worked in
Zhongxin Coopers Certified Public Accountants in the PRC
and is currently an audit partner of ShineWing Certified Public
Accountants in the PRC, and has 25 years of professional
experience in investment, finance and auditing. He has been
responsible for the audit assurance, special services, corporate
asset reorganization, restructuring and listing of some large
enterprise groups. He was an external independent director of
Zhongji Investment Co., Ltd. and an external expert committee
member of loan review department of China Development
Bank. He is currently an external independent director of
Shouyi Medical Health Investment Management Co., Ltd. and
an independent director of Lizhong Sitong Light Alloy Group
Co., Ltd. (an A share company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 300428)).
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Profile of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

HE - BREAmREEZ

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Li Chonghua, aged 66, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 June 2015. Mr. Li is a member of
the Chinese Communist Party. He is a post-graduate, qualified
as economist, and holds a practicing certificate of securities
practitioner. He was the deputy chief economist, the director
of the integrated plan unit and the director of reformation of
Beijing Chemical Second Plant. He was the board secretary and
the director of securities department of Beijing Chemical Second
Plant Co., Ltd.. He was seconded to listed company regulatory

department of China Securities Regulatory Commission.

Mr. Shen Wei, aged 59, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 31 May 2018, Mr. Shen was graduated
from the department of precision instruments of the Tsinghua
University with a Bachelor’s degree in engineering in 1985. Mr.
Shen co-founded “CIWEEK” and served as the first chief editor
in 1998, who has made contribution to the enlightenment
and development of internet in the PRC. He then co-founded
the website, namely “eNet” and Yinhe Liandong Information
Technology Company, and has extensive experience in internet
strategy, products and operations. Mr. Shen has dozens of
patented inventions in the field of two-dimensional code
technology. In 2015, Mr. Shen established Beijing Dama
Technology Co., Ltd. to focus on the application of innovative QR
code technology, especially the basic technology and application
in the field of secure QR code and multi-screen interaction.
Mr. Shen has worked for Beijing Institute of Optoelectronics
Technology, Beijing office of East Asiatic Company, Beijing
Changwei Technology Development Co., Ltd., CIWEEKLY, Yinhe
Liandong Information Technology Company, Beijing Huayu
Xinma Technology Co., Ltd., etc.. He is currently the founder and
chief executive officer of Beijing Dama Technology Co., Ltd..

CHIEF SCIENTIST

Professor Wang Yangyuan, aged 88, was appointed as the
Chief Scientist of the Company in May 2000. Professor Wang is
responsible for overall technological research and development
and monitoring the investment in Semiconductor Manufacturing

International Corporation.
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EH-EFLRRTHEZ B

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Fan Yimin, aged 64, is the chairman of the Supervisory
Committee. Mr. Fan was graduated from Zhejiang University with
a bachelor’s degree in Chinese language in 1981. Mr. Fan worked
in the liaison office of the people’s government of Zhejiang
Province, Zhejiang Foreign Trade Company and Zhejiang Qujiang
Industrial Company. He is currently a member of the management
committee of Lingyin Temple in Hangzhou, president of
Hangzhou Branch of the School of Chinese Culture and an
executive president of Beida Jade Bird, the chairman and general
manager of Beijing Beida Educational Investment Co., Ltd., the
director of Beijing Beida Jade Bird Software System Co., Ltd., the
chairman and general manager of Beijing Beida Online Network
Co., Ltd., the executive partner of Shanghai Zhongju Planning
Consulting Partnership (Limited Partnership).

Mr. Ouyang Zishi, aged 66, was appointed as an independent
Supervisor on 30 June 2015. Mr. Ouyang worked for Beijing
Pastry Factory, the Association of Culture and Arts in Beijing, the
Audiovisual Press of the Bureau of Culture in Beijing and the
Beijing Television. Mr. Ouyang was the director and producer of
“RE&ITIA”, a TV series, and the column director and producer
of “JXWAKK”, a TV program. Mr. Ouyang is currently the
executive director and the legal representative of Beijing Evercare

Shichiku Medical Beauty Clinic Company Limited.

Mr. Pan Yudong, aged 52, was appointed as a Supervisor on 31
May 2018, Mr. Pan is a senior engineer (professor level), and was
graduated from department of computer science and technology
of Tsinghua University with a Bachelor’s degree in engineering in
July 1990. He has worked for Taiji Computer Company, Shenzhen
Taiji Software Company, Taiji-DEC Software Center, Beijing
Tiankeyi Technology Co., Ltd., Taiji United Laboratories of
Ministry of Information Industry, Beijing Hengdefang Company,
Anshi Internet Security (China) Co., Ltd., Beijing Qiming
Xingchen Information Security Technology Co., Ltd., Beijing
Yongxin Zhicheng Technology Co., Ltd., Harbin Antiy Technology
Group Co., Ltd., the chief strategy officer of 360 Government
& Enterprise Security Group, etc.. Mr. Pan is currently the chief
strategy officer of Venustech Group Inc. (an A share company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002439)) and

the executive Director of China Computer Federation.
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Profile of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EHE-EFARREHEZ

SUPERVISORS (CONTINUED)

Ms. Cao Zhenzhen, aged 40, was appointed as a Supervisor on
21 May 2021. Ms. Cao was graduated from Hubei University
with a Bachelor’s degree in Chinese language and literature
in 2002 and subsequently obtained a Master’s degree in law
at Peking University in 2005. Ms. Cao joined the Company in
2005. She is currently the investment manager of the Company
and the supervisor of Beijing Jade Bird Hengsheng Investment

Management Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company.

Ms. Zhou Min, aged 46, is a Supervisor. Ms. Zhou was graduated
from the Department of Administration Management of Renmin
University of China with a Bachelor’s degree in Laws. She
obtained a Master’s degree in economics from the University
of International Business and Economics in 2005. Ms. Zhou
joined Beida Jade Bird in July 1999 and subsequently joined
the Company in March 2000. She is primarily responsible for
administration and human resources of the Company. She is the

employee representative of the Supervisory Committee.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Chi Hung, aged 46, is the financial controller and
company secretary of the Company. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor
degree in Business Administration in Accounting from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology. Mr. Chan has over 23
years of experience in finance, accounting, company secretarial
and compliance areas and worked for international accounting
firms and listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified

Accountants. Mr. Chan joined the Group in September 2012.

Mr. Hu Lushan, aged 55, attended post-graduation level. Mr.
Hu is a senior accountant, and holds the certificate of senior
accountant, the certificate of senior tax agent and the certificate
of Certified Management Accountant (CMA). He has worked in
Beijing Building Materials Millstone Factory of Beijing Building
Materials Group as the accountant, the chief accountant and
the finance director; Beijing Yiheng Decoration Design Co., Ltd.
as the finance manager; and Beijing Northern Electric Power
Engineering Co., Ltd of the China Electricity Council as the
finance manager. Mr. Hu joined the Company in June 2001 and is

the person in charge of finance department of the Company.
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The Directors hereby present their annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and

the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is engaged in the investment holding during the
year. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
43 to the consolidated financial statements. Further discussion
and analysis of business review of these activities, including a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future development in the
Group’s business, can be found in the Management Discussion
and Analysis set out on pages 5 to 20 of this annual report. Such

discussion forms part of this report of the Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set

out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 64 to 65.
The state of affairs of the Group and the Company at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 66
to 67 and note 37(a) to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
(2020: Nil) for the year.

No interim dividend was declared in 2021 (2020: Nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years is set out on page 203. This summary does not form part of

the audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set

out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.
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BANK AND OTHER LOANS

Details of the bank and other loans of the Group are set out in

note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the properties held for investment are set out in note 19

to the consolidated financial statements and on page 202.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles”) or the Company
Law of the PRC which oblige the Company to offer new shares on

a pro rata basis to its existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out
in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements and in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, an amount of approximately RMB605.8
million (2020: RMB562.5 million) standing to the credit of
the Company’s capital reserve account and an amount of
approximately RMB86.7 million (2020: RMB86.7 million)
standing to the credit of the Company’s statutory reserve funds, as
determined under the PRC accounting standards and regulations,
were available for distribution by way of future capitalisation
issue in accordance with the PRC Company Law. The Company
had, as described in note 37(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, retained profits of approximately RMB132.8 million
(2020: RMB140.7 million) as at 31 December 2021. Details of the
distributable reserves are set out in note 38 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue
attributable to the Group’s largest customer accounted for
approximately 29.6% (2020: 34.2%) of the Group’s total revenue
and the revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 69.3% (2020: 76.8%) of the total

revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the costs incurred
in respect of the Group’s largest supplier accounted for
approximately 32.1% (2020: 75.7%) of the Group’s total cost of
sales and services and the costs incurred in respect of the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 79.9% (2020:

86.6%) of the Group’s total cost of sales and services.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and

suppliers.

DONATIONS

The Group had made donations of RMB52,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB150,000).
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and Supervisors during the year and at the year end
are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ni Jinlei
Ms. Zheng Zhong
Mr. Wang Xingye (appointed on 21 May 2021)

Ms. Guan Xueming (appointed on 21 May 2021)

Mr. Zhang Wanzhong (retired on 21 May 2021)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xiang Lei
Ms. Xue Li (retired on 21 May 2021)
Mr. Ip Wing Wai (retired on 21 May 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tang Xuan

Mr. Li Chonghua

Mr. Shen Wei

Mr. Li Juncai (retired on 21 May 2021)

Supervisors

Mr. Fan Yimin

Mr. Ouyang Zishi

Mr. Pan Yudong

Ms. Zhou Min

Ms. Cao Zhenzhen (appointed on 21 May 2021)

Ms. Dong Xiaoqing (retired on 21 May 2021)

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles, all Directors and
Supervisors are eligible for re-election.

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Profile of Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 21 to 26.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing
on 21 May 2021.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or Supervisors has
any existing or proposed service contracts with the Company as at
31 December 2021, excluding contracts expiring or determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without

payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors the written annual confirmation of its
independence pursuant to rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company, based on such confirmation, considers all of the

independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement and contract of significance to which
the Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or Supervisor of
the Company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Saved as disclosed under the section “Connected transactions”
below, there is no material contract between the Group and the

controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company

were entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF

EXE

CUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT

POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests (including interests in

share

s and short positions) of Directors, Supervisors, and chief

executives of the Company in the shares of the Company (the

“Shares”) and underlying Shares of the Company or any of its

associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the

Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as recorded in the

register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of

the S

FO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules, were as

follows:

Long

positions in ordinary shares and underlying Shares
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Approximate
percentage of
total number

Approximate Approximate

ofissued  percentage of  percentage of
Number of nonlisted  total number total number
non-listed Shares of issued of issued
Shares held Number of g H Shares Shares
Name Capacity ff LN H Shares held 3 L By SR THY S
4 LU RGBE  HHHREE SUBAEAR AUBAEIK SUESEIK
Supervisor
E%
Ms. Zhou Min Beneficiary of trust 205,414,000 - 29.34% - 18.56%
Rt GEE3 N
Note: The above Supervisor is taken to be interested in the issued share Bt - bk B R H B Sy Heng Huatfs #€ ([Heng

capital of the Company through her interest as beneficiary, among
other beneficiaries, of Heng Huat trust (“Heng Huat Trust”). By a
declaration of Heng Huat Trust made as a deed on 19 July 2000, the
shares of Heng Huat Investments Limited (*“Heng Huat”) were held
as trustees for the benefits of over 300 employees of Beijing Beida
Jade Bird Software System Co., Ltd., Beijing Beida Jade Bird Limited
and Beijing Beida Yu Huan Microelectronics System Engineering
Co., Ltd. and their respective subsidiaries and associated companies
and the Company. Heng Huat is beneficially interested in the entire
issued share capital of Dynamic Win Assets Limited (“Dynamic
Win”), and is taken to be interested in 205,414,000 Shares which
Dynamic Win is interested.

Huatfg 7€) HrhZ a8 N2 B4 A 1E R
AN F CEATIRA h A AR o RIBR %
FRELH +JUE AR A AE I ZHeng
Huatf5 sE B & > XA BRI KRER
HAERFARAHE -~ dmdb R E 5 A REAE
O A B AE R AR FERAME T R HA BR 2 A D
Bt 55 25 18 22 W 2w B0 24w DL AR 2
Al 30045 18 B < Al 4 - ¥ A Heng Huat
Investments Limited ([ Heng Huat|) Z i
i » Heng Huat B % ¥ A Bbs & 7 A R A A
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, Supervisors and
chief executives of the Company had registered an interest or
short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company
or any of its associated corporations that was required to be
recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to rule
5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules as at 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in the Company granted to
any Director and Supervisor or their respective spouse or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors and Supervisors to acquire such rights in any other body

corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2021, the following interests and short positions
of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded in the
register of interests required to be maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in ordinary Shares and underlying Shares
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percentage  percentage  percentage
of total of total of total
number of  number of  number of
Interest in issued non- issued issued
non-listed listed Shares H Shares Shares
Shares  Interestin CEfFELW  CBAHE CHLRL
Name of shareholder Note  Capacity T3k L 7l Bt £ H Shares ot 0 4 Ay Ay
Bk / 40 Wak Sh s RHRzES  BOHSR HEN HEM
Peking University (a)  Interest of controlled corporation 200,000,000 = 98.57% = 13.21%
TEkE Tk I
Beida Asset Management Co., Ltd. (a)  Interest of controlled corporation 200,000,000 - 28.57% - 13.21%
TkEEEEARAR TR EES
Beijing Beida Jade Bird Software System  (a)  Interest of controlled corporation 200,000,000 - 28.57% - 13.21%
Co., Ltd, TrEEER
EFAREREMREARAA
Beida Microelectronics Investment (a)  Interest of controlled corporation 200,000,000 - 28.57% - 13.21%
Limited TEEEES
TABEFREARAA
Gifted Pillar Limited (a)  Interest of controlled corporation 200,000,000 - 28.57% = 13.21%
ZEEM R
Rainbow Mountain Holdings Limited (a)  Interest of controlled corporation 200,000,000 - 28.57% - 13.21%
U RARA R Sk A
Beijing Rainbow Mountain Sci-Tech (a)  Beneficial owner 200,000,000 - 28.57% - 13.21%
Development Co., Ltd.  E75 XN
HRRUER R RERA
Grand East (H.K.) Limited Beneficial owner 110,000,000 - 15.71% - 7.26%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER = R R B At N R I 4 B hH B e
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS tr Z RE #2 B iRk A (%)

IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

(CONTINUED)

Long positions in ordinary Shares and underlying Shares 5 3 JBE B b R B By 2 4r AT (4D

(Continued)

Approximate Approximate ~Approximate

percentage  percentage  percentage

of total of total of total
number of  number of  number of
Interest in issued non- issued issued
non-listed listed Shares H Shares Shares
Shares  Interestin CEfFELW  CBAHKE CHIRL
Name of shareholder Note  Capacity AN H Shares It 8 b4 By
Bs/ 4 ek S s RHRzES  BOHAR MEAL  HEAN
Heng Huat Investments Limited (b)  Interest of controlled corporation 205,414,000 - 29.34% - 13.56%
SR
Dynamic Win Assets Limited (b)  Beneficial owner 905,414,000 = 99.34% = 18.56%
YBEEHRAA EREAA
Mongolia Energy Corporation Limited (c)  Interest of controlled corporation 84,586,000 - 12.08% - 5.58%
FHRREARAA ZE A
New View Venture Limited (c)  Beneficial owner 84,586,000 L 12.08% - 5.58%
EREHA
Asian Technology Investment Company Beneficial owner 50,000,000 - 7.14% = 3.30%
Limited HREAA
TR EARA R
Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited (d)  Interest of controlled corporation - 38,117,000 - 4.68% 2.52%
BathE (B ARA TR EES
Asia Development Capital Co. Ltd. (¢)  Interest of controlled corporation - 126,225,000 = 15.50% 8.33%
Sk M
Asia Investment Fund Co. Ltd. (e)  Beneficial owner - 126,225,000 - 15.50% 8.33%
EREHA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Company (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(c)

(d)

Peking University is taken to be interested in 13.21% of the total
issued share capital of the Company through 200 million non-listed
Shares (representing approximately 13.21% of the Company’s
total issued share capital) in which Beijing Rainbow Mountain
Sci-Tech Development Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Rainbow Mountain”) is
interested. Peking University owns 100% equity interest in Beida
Asset Management Co., Ltd. which in turn owns 48% equity interest
in Beijing Beida Jade Bird Software System Co., Ltd. which in turn
owns 100% equity interest in Beida Microelectronics Investment
Limited which in turn owns 46% equity interest in Gifted Pillar
Limited which in turn owns 100% equity interest in Rainbow
Mountain Holdings Limited which in turn owns 100% equity interest
in Beijing Rainbow Mountain.

The non-listed Shares are held by Dynamic Win, which is beneficially
wholly-owned by Heng Huat. Please refer to the note to the section
“Directors, Supervisors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares” above for further details
of Heng Huat.

The non-listed Shares are held by New View Venture Limited, which
is wholly-owned by Mongolia Energy Corporation Limited.

The latest disclosure of interest notice filed by Allied Properties
(H.K.) Limited has not taken into account the increase in the
number of total issued H shares of the Company from 678,720,000
H shares to 814,464,000 H shares on 30 March 2021 due to the
completion of placing of the new H shares of the Company. The
percentage level of the deemed interest in the H shares of the
Company through indirectly non-wholly owned subsidiary of Allied
Property (H.K.) Limited was below 5% as at 31 December 2021.

The H Shares are held by Asia Investment Fund Co. Ltd., which is
wholly-owned by Asia Development Capital Co. Ltd..

Save as disclosed above, no person, other than the Directors and

Supervisors, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’,

Supervisors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in

shares and underlying shares” above, had registered interests or

short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company

that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO as at 31 December 2021.
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ETIEARAF100%BAHE - Wb KME T
HO& A BR 2 7 A Gifted Pillar Limited46%
JEHE > T Gifted Pillar Limited #EAT 7 W44 i
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Report of the Directors
Ef Rk

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, save as disclosed above,
the related party transactions as disclosed in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements do not constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules, which are required to
comply with any of the reporting, announcement or independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under the GEM Listing
Rules.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors and Supervisors
and their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) had interests in a business which competes or may compete
with the businesses of the Group, or may have any conflicts of
interest with the Group pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group strictly complies with applicable labour law and
regulations both in the PRC and Hong Kong. Competitive
remuneration package with medical and travel insurance offered
to the staff. Adequate retirement fund and provident fund are
contributed timely.

The emolument policy of the Directors is structured by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to their functions and
contributions to the Group.

Details of retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set out in
note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the GEM Listing Rules.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events after reporting period of the Group

are set out in note 44 the consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDEND POLICY
Under the policy on payment of dividends adopted by the

Company, the Company may declare and distribute dividends to
the Shareholders to allow Shareholders to share the Company’s
profits and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for
future growth. The payment of any dividend shall be determined
or recommended, as appropriate, by the Board at its absolute
discretion after taking into account the Group’s financial results,
prospects, the level of the debts and equity ratio, liquidity and
capital requirement and other factors that the Board considers
relevant, and subject to the Articles, the requirements of the
GEM Listing Rules and all relevant applicable laws, rules and
regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate governance report of the Company is set out on pages

42 to 57 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

A separate environmental, social and governance report of the
Company will be available at the website of the Company under
“Announcement” section and the website of the Stock Exchange

on or around mid-April 2022.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
At no time during the year ended 31 December 2021 and

up to the date of this report, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any of the
Directors or an associate company. The Company has arranged
appropriate insurance cover for Directors’, Supervisors’ and
senior management’s liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its Directors, Supervisors and senior management arising out of

corporate activities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

On 22 November 2019, RSM Hong Kong (“RSM”) had resigned
as the auditor of the Company, as the Company and RSM have
not been able to reach an agreement in relation to the auditor’s
remuneration for the financial year ended 31 December 2019.
BDO Limited (“BDO”) was appointed as the auditor of the
Company on 22 November 2019 to fill the casual vacancy
following the resignation of RSM.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by BDO
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment

at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ni Jinlei

Chairman and Executive Director

Beijing, the PRC
30 March 2022
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

To the Shareholders:

We have monitored the operation and management of the
Group as well as the act of the Directors and senior management
faithfully throughout the year ended 31 December 2021. We have
discharged our supervisory duties under the general principle
of honesty and integrity and have strictly complied with the
requirements of the “Company Law of the PRC”, the GEM Listing
Rules and the Articles. We are accountable to the Shareholders
and have safeguarded the interests of the Shareholders, the Group
and its staff.

The Supervisors during the year and up to the date of this report

are as follows:

Mr. Fan Yimin

Mr. Ouyang Zishi

Mr. Pan Yudong

Ms. Zhou Min

Ms. Cao Zhenzhen (appointed on 21 May 2021)

Ms. Dong Xiaoqing (retired on 21 May 2021)

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles, all Supervisors

are eligible for re-election.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, we have held and
two meetings of the seventh session and three meetings of the
eighth session. The following table set out the attendance of each

member in these meetings:
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Attendance Attendance

ih s 3¢ i 5

Name A Seventh Session Eighth Session
L 5\ E

Mr. Fan Yimin R4 2/2 3/3
Mr. Ouyang Zishi Wk 5 A ek 2/2 3/3
Mr. Pan Yudong i FHREE 2/2 3/3
Ms. Zhou Min Jch + 2/2 3/3
Ms. Cao Zhenzhen L 37 en N/AA B H 3/3
Ms. Dong Xiaoqing G 7t 2/2 N/ A%
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

B el

We convened the five meetings to review the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020, the three months ended 31 March 2021, the six months
ended 30 June 2021 and the nine months ended 30 September
2021, respectively and to review the composition of the new

session of the Supervisory Committee.

Subsequent to the year end, we convened the fourth meeting of
the eighth session to review the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

As a result of the work done above, we are in a position to express

our independent opinion in respect of the following matters:

1. The first, second and third quarterly results and annual
results of the Group for 2021 have reflected the financial
and operating positions of the Group on a true and fair

basis.

2. The senior management of the Group has not abused their
authority to prejudice the interests of the Shareholders, the
Group and its staff, nor contravened the laws and regulations

and the Articles in discharging its duties.

3. The Group was not threatened with any major litigation
nor was there any matter that we had intervened with or

threatened against the Board.

4. The connected transactions of the Group were fair and
reasonable. No act prejudicing the interests of the Group has

been identified.

We would like to express our appreciation for the strenuous
supports given by the Shareholders, the Directors and all staff to

our work during the year.

BY ORDER OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Fan Yimin

Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
30 March 2022
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Corporate Governance Report

FRAMEWORK

The Company developed a set of documents with reference to

the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in

Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules then in force during the

year to govern its corporate practice.

The documents are as follows:

168

10.

CC Code;

Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Directors of

the Company (the “Securities Code”);

Duties of the Board of Directors;

Segregation of Duties between the Chairman and the

President;

Board Diversity Policy;

Disciplinary Rules of the Company;

Term of Reference on the Audit Committee;

Term of Reference on the Remuneration Committee;

Term of Reference on the Nomination Committee; and

Written Guidelines for Relevant Employees in respect of

their Dealings in the Securities of the Company;

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with all

the code provisions of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 15 of

the GEM Listing Rules then in force during the year ended 31
December 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Securities Code on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. All Directors as well as
employees who are likely to be in possession of inside information
are governed by the Securities Code. Having made specific
enquiries, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the Securities Code all over the year ended 31 December 2021.
The Company is not aware of any employee who does not comply

with the Securities Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders. Detail
responsibilities of the Board are laid down on the Articles. Major

duties include:

1.  convening Shareholders’ meeting and reporting work of the

Board to Shareholders;

2. execution of resolution passed in Shareholders’ meeting;
3. deciding business plan and investment proposal;
4. formulation plans for change in registered capital and

issuance of bond;

5. formulation of major merger and acquisition plan and

disposal plan;

6.  formulation of job segregation and dissolution plan for the

Company if necessary;

7.  employment and dismissal of general manager; and

8. formulation proposal for amendment to the Articles.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions such as developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies, practices on corporate governance; reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management and the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and

regulatory requirements; etc.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Responsibilities (Continued)

Corporate Governance Report

All Directors are free to access to corporate information for the

purpose of discharging their duties and responsibilities. They

may seek independent professional advice if necessary at the

Company’s cost. All Directors have unrestricted access to the

company secretary and senior management of the Company.

The Board delegated the management team with the

responsibilities for the day-to-day management, administration

and operation of the Group.

Composition

As at 31 December 2021, the composition of the eighth session of

the Board is as follows:

EHG (H)

Tk 3 (41

o S-Sk

Jiv A 2 2 T B A B A SE R > (0 5 RE A
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B EERR > BABALF AN - A E
AT AN R 1 2 AN O T 2 N R

MEHANE -

EHERERIREHEEKATALE A FEH

BB -

B E A

W_FE A=+ —H BN juEF

gZHEHAGMT

Date of first

Date of latest

Name Position Gender Age appointment re-election
HK 3

ok 44 -2/ i3] 4 i BRI H Y i 3% H )

Ni Jinlei Executive Director, Chairman M% h4 30/6/2015 21/5/2021

1% % WirER IR

Zheng Zhong Executive Director, President F& 46 21/6/2012 21/5/2021

BE WirEE - AR

Wang Xingye Executive Director ME 45 21/5/2021 N/AAR#

TR YiEH

Guan Xueming Executive Director Fi 50 21/5/2021 N/AREH

L] HEH

Xiang Lei Non-executive Director M% 70 31/7/2017 21/5/2021

HE FHfTER

Tang Xuan Independent non-executive Director M 49 15/5/2020 21/5/2021

JE % B U E S

Li Chonghua Independent non-executive Director M5 66 30/6/2015 21/5/2021

ERE BIEHTES

Shen Wei Independent non-executive Director M% 59 31/5/2018 21/5/2021

WAk B AT E S

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other

material/relevant relationship with each other.

Profiles of the Directors are detailed on pages 21 to 24 of this

annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Composition (Continued)

All Directors were appointed for a term of three years starting

from 21 May 2021. All Directors are eligible for re-election.

In compliance with rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three independent
non-executive Directors, at least one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise, representing at least one-third of the
Board. Each independent non-executive Director has confirmed
to the Company in respect of his independence pursuant to rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules by way of an annual confirmation
for the year ended 31 December 2021. The Company continues
to consider all independent non-executive Directors to be

independent.

Segregation of duties between the Chairman and the President

Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division
of responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive
should be clearly established and set out in writing. To ensure a
balance of power and authority, the roles of the chairman and the
president of the Company are segregated and performed by Mr.
Ni Jinlei and Ms. Zheng Zhong respectively.

Board meetings

The Board convened 8 meetings during the year. Apart from
approval of 2021 quarterly and 2020 annual results, the Company
convened meetings and passed resolutions mainly to consider and
approve the proposal for issuing new H Shares and the ordinary
businesses and transactions of the Company. The Company
notifies the Directors with sufficient time in advance and provides
them with detailed agenda and sufficient information before each
Board meeting and sub-committee meeting. The Company gives at
least 15 days advance notice before each regular Board meeting.
Individual attendance records of each Director at the respective
Board and sub-committee meetings are set out in the table on

pages 49 to 50 of this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Directors’ and senior officers’ liability insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance for all
Directors, Supervisors and certain management. No claims were
raised during the year against potential legal action arising from

their jobs.

Directors’ training

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. For the year ended 31 December 2021, all Directors have
participated in appropriate continuous professional development
activities by attending training courses on the topic related to

continuing disclosure obligations and trading halt.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board established 3 committees to carry out certain duties.
They are the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the

Company.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in the GEM Listing Rules. The Audit Committee is
accountable to the Board. Its primary duties include monitoring
the financial reporting system and risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, reviewing financial information,
and advising the Board on engagement and independence of

independent auditors.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non- executive Directors, namely Mr. Tang Xuan, Mr. Li Chonghua
and Mr. Shen Wei. Mr. Tang Xuan is the chairman of the Audit

Committee.

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the financial
reporting matters including the annual results for the year ended
31 December 2021 with the management and the independent

auditor.

During the year, the Audit Committee had convened 5 meetings to
review the three 2021 quarterly results and 2020 annual results of

the Group and issues in respect of annual audits.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in the GEM Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee
is accountable to the Board. It is mainly responsible for advising
the Board on remuneration policy of the Board itself and senior
management, advising the Board on remuneration of non-
executive Directors, structuring the remuneration package of
all executive Directors and senior management, and review and

approval of performance bonus.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Shen Wei and
Mr. Li Chonghua and one executive Director, namely Mr. Ni Jinlei.
Mr. Shen Wai is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. A
meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held during the year
to review the remuneration package of the Board, the Supervisors

and the senior management of the Company.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in the GEM Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee is
accountable to the Board. Its primary duties include reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) and making recommendations to the Board after
such review; identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and making recommendations to the Board on
the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships; assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and
making recommendations to the Board on appointment or re-
appointment of the Directors and succession planning for the

Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Nomination Committee has adopted a nomination policy
which sets out the selection criteria and nomination procedures
of a Director. In selecting and recommending candidates for
directorships, the Nomination Committee would consider the
candidate’s character and integrity, qualifications, professional
competence, knowledge, experience, independence, other
relevant criteria necessary to complement the business
development needs of the Group, and the elements of the policy
concerning the diversification of member of the Board. The
nomination procedures of a Director include nomination of
suitable candidates by any member of the Nomination Committee
or the Board; evaluation of the candidate by the Board based on
all selection criteria as set out in the nomination policy; assessing
the candidate’s independence under the GEM Listing Rules in
case of nomination of an independent non-executive Director;
making recommendation for the Board’s consideration and
approval; and convening a general meeting by the Board to obtain

approval from the Shareholders.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises two executive
Director, namely Mr. Ni Jinlei and Ms. Zheng Zhong and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Tang Xuan,
Mr. Li Chonghua and Mr. Shen Wei. Mr. Ni Jinlei is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee. One meeting of the Nomination
Committee was held during the year to review the structure
and composition of new session of the Board and the senior
management of the Group, and recommend the same to the

Board for approval.
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AR 2E B TR ol
DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORD AT 3 Rk A o
MEETINGS
Details of attendance of the Directors at the Board and sub- NRE_F_—F+_A=ZT—HILFE
committee meetings, as well as general meetings during the year HRENFESGLNMEZE G IBRRE
ended 31 December 2021 are as follows: Z RN FIE
Attendance
General
Meetings/
Audit Remuneration = Nomination Class
Name ¥ Board Committee Committee Committee Meetings
i k&
HHE HBRZERE FHMZHEE RAZEE JENRKEE
Seventh Seventh Sixth Third
Session Session Session Session
Bt %t CYA =
Executive Directors HAlTEH
M. Ni Jinlei & &kt 3/3  N/ARER  N/AREA 1/1 4/4
Mr. Zhang Wanzhong RETEE 3/3  N/AREH 1/1 1/1 1/4
Ms. Zheng Zhong HEL+ 3/3 N/ARNER  N/ARER  N/AREHA 4/4
Non-executive Directors FHITEF
Ms. Xue Li HELL 3/3 N/ARER  N/AREM  N/ARER 3/4
Mr. Xiang Lei ILE S 3/3 N/AREM  N/ARER  N/AREA 1/4
Mr. Ip Wing Wai FRBIEE 8/3 N/ANEM  N/ARER  N/ATEH 0/4
Independent B FHITEF
non-execulive Directors
Mr. Tang Xuan B A 3/3 3/3 N/AARE H N/ARE H 4/4
Mr. Li Juncai ERALE 3/3 3/3 1/1 1/1 0/4
Mr. Li Chonghua L e 3/3 3/3  N/AREH 1/1 4/4
Mr. Shen Wei WHESEE 3/3 3/3 1/1 1/1 4/4
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e SRR
DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORD AT R kAl Bk (M
MEETINGS (CONTINUED)
Attendance
HIp
Audit

Name 2k 4 Board Committee

HEH wEHEBEY

Eighth Eighth

Session Session

ELE 5\ E
Executive Directors B iT#EH
Mr. Ni Jinlei 4% ek 5/5 N/AAR#E A
Ms. Zheng Zhong W A 4/4 N/ A
Wang Xingye FEBZESE 3/4 N/AR
Guan Xueming i 4/4 N/AAR
Non-executive Director FEBATHEH
Mr. Xiang Lei JE et 545, N/AA %@
Independent L HFPITEFE

non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Juncai FERA L pYis 2/2
Mr. Shen Wei AL 5/5 2/2
Mr. Tang Xuan JER S 5/5 2/2

There were 1 special general meeting and 2 class meetings held

during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee was set up according to the Articles
and is accountable to the Shareholders. It is mainly responsible
for monitoring the operation and management of the Company as
well as the act of Directors and senior management to prevent any
abuse of power and infringement of interests on Shareholders, the

Company and employees.

The Supervisory Committee currently comprises five members.
The chairman is Mr. Fan Yimin. The other four members are Mr.
Ouyang Zishi, Mr. Pan Yudong, Ms. Cao Zhenzhen and Ms. Zhou
Min. Ms. Cao Zhenzhen and Ms. Zhou Min are the employee

representative.

All Supervisors were appointed for a term of three years starting
from 21 May 2021. All Supervisors are eligible for re-election.
Profiles of the Supervisors are detailed on pages 25 to 26 of this

annual report.

Attendance of meetings

The Supervisory Committee convened 5 meetings during the year.

The following table sets out the attendance of each members in

these meetings:
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Attendance

Name 244 &
Seventh Session Eighth Session
R 5\
Mr. Fan Yimin w— Rk 2/2 S
Mr. Ouyang Zishi N e 2/2 3/3
Mr. Pan Yudong TR E 2/2 3/3
Ms. Zhou Min Jl# L 2/2 3/3
Ms. Cao Zhenzhen HHR2 L, N/AR 3/3
Ms. Dong Xiaoqing HIBE 2wt 2/2 N/AR

The meetings were convened to review the financial statements of

the Group.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company. As at 31 December 2021, the Directors
were not aware of any material uncertainties or events which may
have a significant impact on the Company’s ability to operate as a

going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group are

set out in the independent auditor’s report.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2021, senior management of
the Company comprises 2 individuals. The senior management’s
remuneration payment of the Company during the year ended 31

December 2021 falls within the following bands:
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Number of

Individuals

N

RMB500,000 to RMB1,000,000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
The remuneration paid/payable to BDO, the Company’s

independent auditor, and its member firm in respect of annual
audit services and non-audit services in relation to other
reporting services amounted to approximately RMB1,850,000 and
RMB300,000 respectively for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted a policy concerning the diversification of
members of the Board. In setting the composition of the Board,
the Company will consider the diversification of members of the
Board from various aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, race, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All appointments to the Board
will be based on meritocracy and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The selection of candidates for the Board
will be based on a range of diversified categories, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
race, professional experience, skills and knowledge. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board. The Nomination Committee
has reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board in
various aspects including professional competence, knowledge
and experience. The Nomination Committee considered the
current structure, size and composition of the Board could meet

the business development needs of the Group.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
The Articles lay down the rights of the Shareholders. They

include:

o right to entitle dividend or other forms of profit distribution;

o right to attend shareholders’ meeting by person or by proxy;

o right to supervise and manage the business activities of the

Company and to put forward proposals and raise inquiries;

. right to transfer shareholding in the Company;
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)
o upon payment of a reasonable cost, right to inspect and

copy:
- register of shareholders;

- certain personal information of Directors, Supervisors,
general manager and/or deputy general managers and

senior management members;
- certain information on repurchase of Shares; and
- minutes of shareholders’ meeting

Apart from the above, the Shareholders are also entitled to the

following special rights:

The Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at 17th Floor, V Heun Building, 138
Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

Right to convene meeting

The Shareholders are given rights to convene special general
meeting or class meeting other than the Directors. According to
the Articles, any two or more Shareholders having voting rights of
10% or more in the general meeting to be proposed can give the
Board written requests for convening a special general meeting or
class meeting. The requests should state clearly the resolution(s)
to be considered. If the Board does not convene the meeting
within 30 days after receipt of such requests, those Shareholders
who give the requests are entitled to convene the proposed
general meeting themselves 4 months after the Board received

their requests at the Company’s expense.

Right to sue

According to the Articles, the Shareholders are entitled rights
to take legal action against the Company, the Directors, the
Supervisors, general manager, deputy general managers and
senior management members. A Shareholder can also take legal
action against another Shareholder. Action can be conducted

through court or arbitration authority.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to maintain an effective
risk management and internal control system for the Group,
which covers four main areas namely financial management,
operation, compliance and reporting, and risk management. The
risk management and internal control systems of the Company are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and

not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Financial management

The Board manages the Group capital on the basis of net debt-to-
equity ratio in order to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern and to maximize shareholders’ return. Each subsidiary
is responsible for overseeing its own daily net cash position while
the Board monitors the Company’s own. Should there be a capital
need, each subsidiary is responsible for its own arrangement

subject to the supervision of the Board.

Operation

Each subsidiary has set up its own control procedures to monitor
its operation including but not limited to working safety, product
quality, asset safeguard, cost management and environmental
protection. Finance department of the Company sets out general
guidelines on fund control for all subsidiaries to follow. There
were no material accidents, quality defects nor environmental

destruction incidents occurred during the year.

Compliance and reporting

The Board assigns the compliance officer of the Company to
monitor the overall compliance and reporting issue of the
Group. With the assistance of company secretary and financial
controller of the Company, listing supervision division and finance
departments, the compliance officer of the Company carries out
its duty to ensure that the Group complies with applicable laws,

rules and regulations as well as reports correctly and timely.

Finance department of each subsidiary maintains proper
accounting records and prepares subsidiary-level financial
statements in accordance with suitable accounting standards. The
financial controller of the Company reviews the correctness and

reasonableness of the financial statements periodically.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

Compliance and reporting (CONTINUED)

During the year, the Company published announcements and
notices within the time frame allowed in the GEM Listing Rules.
The Board also sets out guidelines on dissemination of inside
information to ensure timely disclosure. Each material transaction
especially connected transaction proposed by either the subsidiary
or the Company itself must first be assessed by the compliance
officer of the Company to ensure compliance with applicable
laws and GEM Listing Rules before further action. The Company
seeks advice from lawyers, financial advisors as well as the Stock
Exchange if necessary. The Board also sets out code of conduct to

govern securities dealings by Directors and relevant employees.

The Directors often update themselves about changes in
applicable laws, rules and regulations. The company secretary of
the Company also update any such change to the Board and the

listing supervision division of the Company.

Risk management

The risk management function focuses on market unpredictability

and aims at minimising potential adverse effect.

The Company does not have an internal audit department and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an
internal audit department within the Group in light of the size,
nature and complexity of the Group’s business. It was decided that
the Board would be directly responsible for internal control of the

Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The Board has engaged an external risk management and internal
control review adviser (the “Adviser”) to conduct the annual
review of the risk management and internal control systems for
the year ended 31 December 2021. Such review is conducted
annually and cycles reviewed are under rotation basis. The scope
of review was previously determined and approved by the Board.
The Adviser has reported findings and areas for improvement
to the Audit Committee and management. The Board is of the
view that there are no material internal control defeats noted.
All recommendations from the Adviser are properly followed
up by the Group to ensure that they are implemented within a
reasonable period of time. The Board therefore considered that
the risk management and internal control systems are effective

and adequate.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board is committed to maintaining an on-going dialogue
with the Shareholders and in particular, through annual general
meetings and other general meetings. Information shall be
communicated to Shareholders through the Company’s financial
reports, annual general meetings and other general meetings
that may be convened, as well as by making available (i) all the
corporate communication documents including, but not limited
to, copy of financial reports, notices of meeting, circulars, proxy
forms (the “Corporate Communication”); (ii) other documents
issued by the Company which are published on the website of
the Stock Exchange for the information or action of holders of
any of its securities, including announcements, monthly returns
on movements in the Company’s securities for each month and
next day disclosure returns; (iii) constitutional documents of the
Company and board committees; and (iv) corporate information

including list of the Directors.

During the year, the Articles were amended in order to reflect
the change in shareholding structure of the Company resulting
from the changes in shareholding of the Company after the
completion of placing of new H shares under general manadate.
The proposed amendments to the Articles become effective upon
filing with the relevant commerce departments and industrial and

commercial registration departments in the PRC in May 2021.

Saved as disclosed above there was no other changes in the
Company’s constitutional documents during the year ended 31
December 2021.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BEIJING BEIDA JADE BIRD
UNIVERSAL SCI-TECH COMPANY LIMITED

(AEEAEKR 7 5 R R e 4y A B2 A])

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Beijing
Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
64 to 201, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

Fair value measurement on investment in unlisted equity securities

Refer to notes 23, 24 and 26 to the consolidated financial
statements and accounting policies as set out in notes 4(c), 4(d)

and 4(n) to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has investments in associates, joint ventures
and certain unlisted equity securities of RMB2,790,299,000,
RMB2,964,000 and RMB266,565,000 respectively, as at 31
December 2021.

Certain of the associates, joint ventures and unlisted equity
securities held by the Group are engaged in the investments
of unlisted equity securities in the People’s Republic of China.
The determination of the fair values of the unlisted equity
securities requires significant management judgement in selecting
appropriate multiples from market comparables and in respect of

unobservable inputs such as discount for lack of marketability.

The Group appointed independent professional valuers to assist
in assessing the fair values of those unlisted equity securities

investments.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
Our responses

Our procedures included:

= Evaluating the competence, independence and integrity of

the external valuers;

— Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodology

used by the external valuers;

- Considering the appropriateness of the multiples selected
from the market comparables and the discount for lack of
marketability with the assistance of our internal valuation

specialists;

- Checking the accuracy and the relevant of the input data

used; and

- Assessing the adequacy of the fair value disclosures in

relation to the unlisted equity securities.

Other Information in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
Company’s annual report, but does not include the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the

directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any

other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Au Yiu Kwan

Practising Certificate Number P05018

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
o P 18 i e L il 2 1 WAL i 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

2021 2020
e Mt =t 2
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
fit 5E AR ¥ T oo ANR¥T T
Revenue LN 8 394,627 468,414
Cost of sales and services BB T MRES A (334,432) (897,275)
Gross profit B 60,195 71,139
Other gains and income FoAMb U %5 Bttt A 9 19,245 15,897
(Impairment loss) /Reversal of B by B A B i 3 E 2
impairment loss on trade and other (il (B 48 Dok (L s 1
receivables, net £ JEIREIE| (36,542) 663
Distribution costs 1 85 A (2,881) (1,125)
Administrative expenses 1T BB 3 (60,933) (50,796)
Other expenses FoAMb BH 52 (1,559) (5,507)
Loss on deemed partial disposal of an  #iL{E &7 B — & A 7
associate 1 k5 18 (5,323) (26,815)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HH B — [ AR > D A i A 39(b) = 92,487
(Loss) /Profit from operations B UEE) wA (27,798) 95,943
Finance costs Al R A 11 (24,689) (18,184)
Share of profit of associates JRE A Bh 5 2 ) ¥4k 210,469 3,643
Share of losses of joint ventures JEAG & 8 A 26 18 (53) (1,158)
Profit before income tax % BT 5 Bt i vas ) 157,929 80,244
Income tax expense Jr 75850 B =2 12 (6,513) (10,351)
Profit for the year A% A BE i A 13 151,416 69,893
Other comprehensive income after tax: i B B 1% 2 T 4
Items that will not be reclassified to profit N & EH P LR a2 HH -
or loss:
Fair value changes of financial NS NN N R (R &
assets at fair value through other (I BAZ P (B A H A 2 T
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) s ) 2B EEZ
N-EHEB) (25,557) 53,302
Share of other comprehensive JRE AL T 8 ) E At 4 T WA A
income of associates 41,890 19,412
Share of other comprehensive JRE AL 8 A 2 F A 22 T A AR
income of joint ventures (11,226) (55,151)
5,107 17,563
Items that may be reclassified to B HEM A EHm ZIHA -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating g Hh 3 2 T i R
foreign operations (5,130) (4,963)
(5,130) (4,963)

A AR IER T BRSO A PR A A
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

f oy R 2 B L il 2 v AL AR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £ -F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

2021 2020
Mt =t
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B il PN B ARBETIT
Other comprehensive income 7 A J3E G b 4 T WK i o
for the year, net of tax TR B (23) 12,600
Total comprehensive income A% 4 JBE 2 T WL i A8 AR
for the year 151,393 82,493
Profit for the year attributable to: JRE AV A 4 BE i A
Owners of the Company N EHEA N
Profit for the year A i A 158,972 64,165
Non-controlling interests IF P2 IO HE 45 (7,556) 5,728
151,416 69,893
Total comprehensive income B A A 4 B2 4 T WK i A7
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ENV/NE 2SN 162,388 77,473
Non-controlling interests Eladiig ¥y (10,995) 5,020
151,393 82,493
RMB RMB
N N
Earnings per share 5 2
Basic and diluted (cents per share) FER K (BRI A) 17 10.7 4.7
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

IR PN

At 31 December 2021 A =& _~—4+_H=+—H

2021 2020
RO TR
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Fht 51 ANR¥T 75 AR T
Non-current assets IR B &
Property, plant and equipment Y2 ~ s BBt 18 371,307 235,136
Investment properties ira<g/ES 19 199,058 =
Goodwill k- 20 204 204
Other intangible assets T Ath 48 TR 5 21 797 408
Biological assets Y E 22 961 2,462
Investments in associates I /NI A < 23 2,790,299 2,619,248
Investments in joint ventures NEESEZRE 24 2,964 14,436
Investments in film productions REEREZRE 25 3,500 3,500
Financial assets at FVTOCI DU SPAE 51 A HoAth 2 1 26
it 2 BB 300,677 172,839
Deposits for purchase of property, BEE Y S R
plant and equipment FA 4% 8,104 52,343
Deposits for potential investments HERE N & 105,000 =
Deferred tax assets I ST Bl VE A E 35 6,186 6,334
3,789,057 3,106,910
Current assets i B &
Inventories ey 27 5,689 5,817
Trade and other receivables & S R Ho At JE e 3K B 28 381,182 419,565
Pledged bank deposits E R ER AT 7 3K 30 1,002 12,200
Cash and cash equivalents He MRELEEY 30 99,933 118,020
487,806 555,602
Total assets HE% 4,276,863 3,662,512
Current liabilities i B £ 1R
Trade and other payables B 5 K H A AT 3K IH 31 134,612 57,141
Bank and other loans SRAT T Ho A B R 33 613,875 122,867
Lease liabilities & A 34 1,960 2,769
Current tax liabilities it B B H A R 9,462 9,674
759,909 192,451
Net current (liabilities) /assets WwE (AfR) & E T (272,103) 363,151
Total assets less current liabilities FEUZE 2 PRI B £ M 3,516,954 3,470,061

A AR IER T BRSO A PR A A
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

fk B B 5 IR DL 3

At 31 December 2021 A ~& ~—4E+"H=+—H

67

2021 2020
RO TR
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Fht 5 ANR¥ Tt ANRH#T 0
Non-current liabilities Ik B &
Bank and other loans SRAT T HoAh B R 33 88,000 290,870
Lease liabilities & A& 34 64,558 62,185
Deferred tax liabilities 0 A Fol TE 35 15,853 12,170
168,411 365,225
NET ASSETS & 3,348,543 3,104,836
Equity HE 25
Share capital fe A 36 151,446 137,872
Reserves o8 4 38 3,023,501 2,817,822
Equity attributable to owners AN A N EAGRE £5
of the Company 3,174,947 2,955,694
Non-controlling interests I FE B 25 173,596 149,142
TOTAL EQUITY HERE 25 3,348,543 3,104,836

Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2022 and are

signed on its behalf by:
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

e B A 5 ) 3

Attributable to owners of the Company

FLAEH AL
Foreign  Financial
currency asset at Non-
Share Capital  Reserve  translation ~ FVTOCI Other  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve funds reserve reserve reserve profits Total  interests equity
WAYE
AL
Rl
23t
Tk WARE  BEEe  EARE  RERE  EEBE  AmEA ai REWER AR
RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARRFE ARMFR ARMTR ARETR ARETx ARMTx ARMTx ARNMTR ARNFR ARMFR
At1 January 2020 RZZZZE-A-H 137872 562519 96,130 (38,230)  (176,963) 5597 2291298 2878221 197150 3,075,371
Total comprehensive AEERANELE
income for the year - - - (4,536) 17844 - 64,165 71478 5,020 82,493
Disposal of a subsidiary HeE—MIKBAT
(note 39(b)) (RH30(b) = = - - - - - - (55028 (38,028)
Appropriation of safety FREERERN
production fund - - - - - 97 (97) - - -
Transfer Lt - - 11,364 - - - (11,364) - - -
Changes in equity for the year &S FEER 5 - - L (4p36) 1784 07 B4 TIATS (18008) 29465
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-ZE
tZAZ1-H 137872 562519 107494 (42766)  (159,121) 5604 2344002 2955694 149142 3,104,836

A AR IER T BRSO A PR A A
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
? 5 BE 45 5 B R

r the year ended 31 December 2021 ZE —~F "4+ A=+ —HIL4EE

&

lr o
At] January 2021 % S S Bl
Issue of shares (note 36)  # {1 (HfzE36)
Total comprehensive AEERINESR
income for the year
Acquisition of a subsidiary  t B — IR 4
(note 39(a)) (H3£39(a))
Appropriation of safety FREERRN
production fund
Share of transfer of gain ~ HBEREAAEN
on disposal of financial HELATFEA
assets at FVTOCL in 2 i 2 b
investments in associates K7 2 I E
Changes in equity for the year 5 9)
At 31 December 2021 REEZ-F
==
e ™ B
. - -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEaBleRak

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

2021 2020
- ST
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it ARMTE  AR®T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING BEHBzReha
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax b o, ] s ) 157,929 80,244
Adjustments for: R
Impairment loss/ (Reversal of B 5 Ko oAt JE Y 5 IE 2
impairment loss) on trade and WA el {E s 18
other receivables, net 1R A 36,542 (663)
Depreciation and amortisation PrEE e BB 14,660 11,563
Write off of film production s R R AR - 4,669
Gain on lease termination AL &Rk A = 9)
Loss/ (Gain) from changes in fair value A AT 5 ) R
less cost to sell of biological assets WA Z 18, () 1,274 (2,160)
Loss on deemed partial disposal RAE R 2> th B — i B o 2~ )
of an associate ) Eic 5,323 26,815
Financial guarantee income S5 U R WA - (3,145)
Penalty income A = (603)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 8 — ] A 2 ] R Wi B 39(b) = (92,487)
Interest expense FEBH 32 25,476 17,927
Interest income FLE A (1,968) (639)
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss AN RE 56, (W42 ) /s 48 T 4 11 (787) 257
Gain on bargain purchase ok (I 2 W i (1,143) -
Share of profit of associates JRE 5 Tk 4 ] 3 A1) (210,469) (3,643)
Share of losses of joint ventures AL & B A S 1 53 1,158
Operating profit before working capital KEtBHELEH)
changes I 4% 1 A 26,890 39,984
Decrease in inventories 7B 237 1,373
Decrease/ (Increase) in trade receivables JEIE 5 R/ (38 5m) 36,873 (126,918)
(Increase)/Decrease in prepayments, BT FIE - e R HAM
deposits and other receivables JRE U TE (B8 m) /e (21,937) 18,351
Increase in trade and other payables B Gy B H A AT 3K JE 1 16,887 1,876
Decrease in contract liabilities BRI AR (32) (5)
Cash generated generated from/ (used in) WEWHEL/ ) FWEE
operations 58,918 (66,034)
Income taxes paid B s st (8,281) (29,276)
Net cash generated from/(used in) WEBEBEL  (FH)
operating activities B wm 50,637 (95,310)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

maBleiiEx

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

2021 2020
. $ N ﬁ‘: — 7 —% ﬁ:‘
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5% ANR¥T 5T NE¥TF e
CASH FLOWS FORM INVESTING REFH B WA
ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi 5 — [H] T I 2 ) 39(a) 694 -
Deposits for purchase of property, R - RS B
plant and equipment HE (3,119) (52,343)
Deposits for potential investments BHERE M4 (105,000) =
Decrease/ (Increase) in pledged bank B RATIEFI D (85 hm)
deposits 11,198 (11,000)
Decrease in amounts due with associates JEAH B A | 2 e FE LY 8,205 3,610
Purchases of property, plant and R - B B
equipment (37,934) (92,600)
Purchases of other intangible assets A Y i (696) (302)
Proceeds from disposal of property, &Y - RS K2
plant and equipment DREE e 236 7
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary 8 — [ B 2 | 2 BT A5 A 39(b) = 30,000
Purchase consideration of financial W E DL PE R A K Hléﬁqﬁﬁﬁ
assets at FVTOCI B EE 2 RE (152,808) -
Dividend received from an associate B — [ =S 0 i B 2.3 41,230 26,856
Increase in investment in associates Q- /NP g - gl - (6,010)
Interest received E ] & 1,968 639
Net cash used in investing activities BEWNBH B &FH (236,026) (101,143)
CASH FLOWS FORM FINANCING BB EHE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares AT A BT 15 20A 56,865 -
Bank and other loans raised %ﬁiﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ{mﬁ% 226,050 212,578
Repayments of bank loans BRI E K (80,899) (30,942)
(Advance to) /Repayments from AR (B ik
shareholders (32) 2
Decrease in amounts due to related JRE A I8 A\ L 2R e Y
parties (1,025) (1,448)
Interest paid CATFILE (31,135) (13,865)
Repayments of lease liabilities BEMEARE (2,334) (6,970)
Net cash generated from financing EAEHMENDZHEHH
activities 167,490 159,355
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND e RBEEEHDESD FH
CASH EQUIVALENTS (17,899) (87,098)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 41N i 5 5 8 .~ 5 %% (188) (1,393)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EMZBRERREEEY
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 118,020 156,511
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BERZBHERIEFED
AT END OF YEAR 30 99,933 118,020

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 13 S 5 A B e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) as a sino-foreign joint stock limited
liability company. The Company’s H shares are listed on
the GEM (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of its
registered office is 3rd Floor, Beida Jade Bird Building,
Yanyuan District Area 3, No.5b Haidian Road, Haidian
District, Beijing 100080, the PRC. The addresses of its
principal place of business in the PRC and Hong Kong are
3rd Floor, Beida Jade Bird Building, No. 207 Chengfu Road,
Haidian District, Beijing 100871, the PRC and 17th Floor, V
Heun Building, 138 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong
Kong, respectively.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’ subsidiaries are set
out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred as the
“Group”.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - first effective on
1 January 2021

In the current year, the Group has applied for the
first time the following new/revised HKFRSs and
amendments issued by HKICPA which is relevant to
and effective for the Group’s financial statements for

annual period beginning on 1 January 2021:

Amendments to HKAS
39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

The adoption of the above new or amended HKFRSs or
amendments did not have any significant impact on the

Group’s accounting policies.

— i & B

AN\ Ty R EE R IR (T )
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AR ) 2 A S bk 2 A B AL T T
VAR E I VA U M5 9E e I = Mk K S
=& (E#R100080) > H 7 b B I F itk
2 F B B A A b B AL T
VE I BT B 20795 A0 K 35 5 B (H 4
100871) K 7 ¥ v B2 &2 J5 K 13858
BRI K178

AN A T BB M IR - AR
9 B B 2 P 2 T B SE S R AR B T ik
F M FE43 o A R KL A F SR A
(A 4M] -

IR 40 7 18 S 85 e oy YR T ([ 7 98 1

5 ek v )

(a) R A BT AT, B 16 AT 10 75 6 5
HWH-R B —H
B
WA > A B E ¥ W T
5 th 7 it A B2 08 M 2
AT/ 395 06 4T 7 i S 4
BAERT A 3T AR S S F
i ] — B 2 4 0
2 BT 4 AT R S % s
R

TR AR
39%% A i — 5 R B
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HE I SR 1655 1Y
LHES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

9. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention
is to apply these changes on the date they become

effective.

Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as
HKAS 1 Current or Non-current?

Amendments to Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

Amendments to Definition of Accounting Estimates®
HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax Related to Assets
and Liabilities Arising from a

Transaction?

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HEKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to Property, Plant and Equipment:
HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use!

Amendments to Onerous Contracts — Cost of
HKAS 37 Fulfilling a Contract!

Amendments to References to Conceptual
HKFRS 3 Framework!

Annual Improvements to
HKFRS Standards 2018-
2020

HK Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial Statements
- Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause?

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Notes:

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined by available
for adoption

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and HK Interpretation 5 (2020),
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on

Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting period,
specify that classification is unaffected by expectations
about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of a liability and explain that rights are in
existence if covenants are complied with at the end of
the reporting period. The amendments also introduce
a definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that
settlement refers to the transfer to the counterparty of

cash, equity instruments, other assets or services.

HK Interpretation 5 (2020) was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 issued
in August 2020. The revision to HK Interpretation
5 (2020) updates the wordings in the interpretation
to align with the Amendments to HKAS 1 with no
change in conclusion and do not change the existing

requirements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

9. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2,

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The key amendments to HKAS 1 include (i) requiring
companies to disclose their material accounting
policies rather than their significant accounting
policies; (ii) clarifying that accounting policies related
to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions
are themselves immaterial and as such need not be
disclosed; and (iii) clarifying that not all accounting
policies that relate to material transactions, other
events or conditions are themselves material to a

company’s financial statements.

Amended HKFRS Practice Statement 2 includes
guidance and two additional examples on the
application of materiality to accounting policy

disclosures.

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates

The amendments introduce a new definition for
accounting estimates: clarifying that they are monetary
amounts in the financial statements that are subject to

measurement uncertainty.

The amendments also clarify the relationship between
accounting policies and accounting estimates by
specifying that a company develops an accounting

estimate to achieve the objective.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12, Recognition of Deferred Tax

Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising from a Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption so that it no longer applies to transactions
that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable

and deductible temporary differences.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or

Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate

or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where there
is a sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. When the transaction
with an associate or joint venture that is accounted for
using the equity method, any gains or losses resulting
from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not
contain a business are recognised in the profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests
in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, any gains
or losses resulting from the remeasurement of retained
interest in any former subsidiary (that has become an
associate or a joint venture) to fair value are recognised
in the profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in the new associate or joint

venture.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

9. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:

Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management. Instead, the proceeds from selling
such items, and the cost of producing those items, is

recognised in profit or loss.

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of

Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a
contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the
contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can
either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g. direct labour and materials) or an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts
(e.g. the allocation of the depreciation charge for an
item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling

the contract).

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers
to the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 instead of the version issued in 2010.
The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a requirement
that, for obligations within the scope of HKAS 37, an
acquirer applies HKAS 37 to determine whether at the
acquisition date a present obligation exists as a result
of past events. For a levy that would be within the
scope of HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, the acquirer applies
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 to determine whether the obligating
event that gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has
occurred by the acquisition date. The amendments
also add an explicit statement that an acquirer does
not recognise contingent assets acquired in a business

combination.

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 2018-2020

The annual improvements amends a number of

standards, including:

HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, which permit a subsidiary that
applies paragraph D16(a) of HKFRS 1 to measure
cumulative translation differences using the amounts
reported by its parent, based on the parent’s date of
transition to HKFRSs.
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9. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 2018-2020
(Continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarify the
fees included in the ‘10 per cent’ test in paragraph
B3.3.6 of HKFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognise
a financial liability, explaining that only fees paid or
received between the entity and the lender, including
fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender

on other’s behalf are included.

HKFRS 16, Leases, which amend Illustrative Example
13 to remove the illustration of reimbursement
of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order
to resolve any potential confusion regarding the
treatment of lease incentives that might arise because

of how lease incentives are illustrated in that example.

HKAS 41, Agriculture, which remove the requirement
to exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the
fair value of a biological asset using a present value

technique.

The directors of the Company have performed an
assessment on the above new standards, amendments
and interpretations and have concluded on a
preliminary basis that these new standards and
amendments would not have a significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements in

subsequent years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “HKFRS”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed

in note 4.

Basis of measurement and going concern assumption

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments and biological assets, which are
measured at fair values as explained in the accounting

policies set out in note 4.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the directors consider the operations of the Group
as a going concern notwithstanding that the Group’s
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
approximately RMB272,103,000 as at 31 December
2021. These conditions may cast significant doubt
about the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. The consolidated financial statements were
prepared based on the assumption that the Group can
be operated as a going concern and the directors are
of the view that the Group will have sufficient working
capital to finance its operations based on a cash flow
projection covering in the next twelve months from 31
December 2021, after taking into consideration of the

followings:

(a)

(b)
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
(b) Basis of measurement and going concern assumption

(continued)

(i) The Group is actively negotiating with banks and
other borrowers for the renewal of certain current
existing loans, which will be matured soon after
the approval date. Management expected that,
based on the current negotiation status, the loans
could be renewed upon expiry on the basis of the
Group’s past records in the compliance of the
terms of the loans and the availability of sufficient
assets as collaterals. Subsequent to year end date,
the Group has successfully renewed existing loans
of RMB79 million for another three months up
to November 2022. To reduce the pressure on the
Group’s liquidity, the Group could realise certain
long-term investments to repay the borrowings
amounted of RMB300 million including the
abovementioned loans of RMB79 million, out of
the borrowings recorded in the current liabilities
amounted of RMB410 million secured by listing

shares of an associate;

(ii) For the remaining borrowings of the RMB410
million mentioned in (i) above, the management
considered that there is a reasonable expectation
for renewal upon expiry given the substantial
headroom of the fair value of the collaterals over

the loan amount; and

(iii) The Group is actively exploring the availability of

alternative source of financing.

Having regard to the cash flow projection of the Group,
which are prepared assuming that these measures
can be successfully implemented, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group will have
sufficient cash resources to finance the operations
and to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due and therefore it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements of the Group on a

going concern basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
(b) Basis of measurement and going concern assumption

(continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires the
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgements or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements

are disclosed in note 5.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are

set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are
entities over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that give it
the current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e.

activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to

exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are

de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Consolidation (Continued)

Gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of
the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill and any related accumulated foreign currency

translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests (“NCIs”) represent the equity
in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. NCIs are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated
statement of changes in equity within equity. NClIs are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation
of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling shareholders and

owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to non-controlling shareholders even

if this results in the NCIs having a deficit balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and NCIs are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by
which the NCIs are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in

equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less

impairment losses.

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at the acquisition-date fair
value of the assets given, equity instruments issued,
liabilities incurred and any contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at

their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded
as goodwill. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the sum of the consideration transferred is recognised
in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain

purchase which is attributed to the Group.
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the

consideration transferred to calculate the goodwill.

The NCIs in the subsidiary are initially measured at the
non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share of
the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets

and liabilities at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”) or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the Group at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill
is compared to its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as

an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policies of
an entity but is not control or joint control over those
policies. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible,
including potential voting rights held by other entities,
are considered when assessing whether the Group has
significant influence. In accessing whether a potential
voting right contributes to significant influence, the
holder’s intention and financial ability to exercise or

convert that right is not considered.

Investments in associates are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and are initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets
and liabilities of the associates in an acquisition are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of investments over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the associates’ identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the
investments and is tested for impairment together
with the investments at the end of each reporting
period when there is objective evidence that the
investments are impaired. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in

consolidated profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(©)

Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of associates’ post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss,
and its share of the post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in the consolidated reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investments.
When the Group’s share of losses in associates equals
or exceeds its interest in the associates, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associates. If the associate subsequently reports profits,
the Group resumes recognising its share of those
profits only after its share of the profits equals the

share of losses not recognised.

Gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that
results in a loss of significant influence represents
the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that associate and (ii) the
Group’s entire carrying amount of that associate
(including goodwill) and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve. If an investment
in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture, the Group continues to apply the equity

method and does not remeasure the retained interest.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to consolidated profit
or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest
it that gain or loss would be reclassified to consolidated
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or

liabilities.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Associates (Continued)

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are stated at cost less
impairment losses, unless classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held

for sale).

Joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two
or more parties have joint control. Joint control is
the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. Relevant activities are
activities that significantly affect the returns of the
arrangement. When assessing joint control, the Group
considers its potential voting rights as well as potential
voting rights held by other parties. A potential voting
right is considered only if the holder has the practical

ability to exercise that right.

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a
joint venture. A joint operation is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations
for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A joint
venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the arrangement. The Group has
assessed the type of each of its joint arrangements and

determined them to all be joint ventures.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and are initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets
and liabilities of the joint ventures in acquisitions are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the joint ventures’
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill.
The goodwill is included in the carrying amount of
the investments and is tested for impairment together
with the investments at the end of each reporting
period when there is objective evidence that the
investments are impaired. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in

consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’s share of the joint ventures’
post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss, and its share of the
post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised
in the consolidated reserves. The cumulative
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investments. When the Group’s
share of losses in the joint ventures equals or exceeds
its interests in the joint ventures, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the joint ventures. If the
joint ventures subsequently report profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits only after
its share of the profits equals the share of losses not

recognised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

Gain or loss on the disposal of a joint venture
that results in a loss of joint control represents
the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that joint venture and (ii) the
Group’s entire carrying amount of that joint venture
(including goodwill) and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve. If an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate, the Group continues to apply the equity

method and does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interests in the joint ventures. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of joint ventures have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency

with the policies adopted by the Group.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held
to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An
investment property is measured initially at its cost

including all direct costs attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property
is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. The depreciation is calculated using
the straight line method to allocate the cost to the
residual value over its estimated useful life of 8 - 50

years.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the property, and is recognised

in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f) Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency,
and all values are rounded to the nearest

thousand (RMB’000) except when otherwise

indicated.

(ii) Tramsactions and balances in each entity’s financial

statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this

translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using

the exchange rates at the dates when the fair

values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange

component of that gain or loss is recognised in

profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(212)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation

currency as follows:

= Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement

of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the exchange rates on the

transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency

translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of monetary items that
form part of the net investment in foreign
entities and of borrowings are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified to consolidated profit

or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated

at the closing rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings
and leasehold land (classified as finance leases),
held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

subsequent impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which

they are incurred.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation of
property, plant and equipment other than freehold
land and construction in progress is calculated at rates
sufficient to write off their cost less their estimated
residual values over the estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The principal useful lives are as

follows:

Leasehold land
Buildings

40 to 70 years
20 years
Machinery and equipment 3 to 10 years
Leasehold improvements,
furniture and office equipment 2 to 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 to 10 years
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The estimated residual values, useful lives and
depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted, if

appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction, and is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are

available for use.

Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,

and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases
or finance leases) are required to be capitalised in
the consolidated statement of financial position as
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting
policy choices exist for an entity to choose not to
capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/or
(ii) leases for which the underlying asset is of low-value.
The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases
for which at the commencement date have a lease term
less than 12 months. The lease payments associated
with those leases have been expensed on straight-line

basis over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

Leasing (Continued)
Right-of-use assets

This is recognised at cost and comprises: (i) the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liabilities (see below for the accounting policy to
account for lease liabilities); (ii) any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, less any
lease incentives received; (iii) any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to
be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories. The Group measures
the right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under
the cost model, the Group measures the right-to-use
assets at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any

remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The Group also has leased a number of properties
under tenancy agreements which the Group exercises it
judgement and determines that it is a separate class of
asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings which
is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use asset
arising from the properties under tenancy agreements
are carried at depreciated cost. Rights-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of

its estimated useful life and the lease term.

Lease liabilities

The lease liabilities is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date
of commencement of the lease. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the

Group’s incremental borrowing rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

Leasing (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable: (ii) variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of
a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the

lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in
the lease term, a change in the in substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase the

underlying asset.

The Group as lessee

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

@)

@

Intangible assets other than goodwill

Intangible assets which represent transport operation
license, rights and patents, copyrights, computer
softwares, customer list and investments in film
productions are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over

their estimated useful lives.

Biological assets

The Group is involved in the agricultural activities of
the transformation of biological assets (vines) into
agricultural produce (grapes). The biological assets
are measured at fair value less costs to sell at initial
recognition and at the end of each reporting period.
The fair value of biological assets is determined based
on the present value of expected net cash flows from
the biological assets with reference to their growing
conditions. Gain or loss on initial recognition and
from subsequent changes in fair value less costs to sell
is included in profit or loss for the period in which it

arises.

The agricultural produce is initially measured at its
fair value less costs to sell at the time of harvest. The
fair value of agricultural produce is determined based
on market prices in the local area. Gain on initial
recognition at fair value less costs to sell is included in

profit or loss for the period in which it arises.

The fair value less costs to sell at the time of harvest
of the agricultural produce becomes its cost for
the measurement of inventories. Such inventories
are subsequently stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k)

@

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

Contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for expected
credit losses (“ECL”) in accordance with the policy
set out in note 4(x) and are reclassified to receivables
when the right to the consideration has become

unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right
to receive consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding

receivable would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a

net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest

accrued under the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when the Group entity becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVIPL”)) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a

collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is

recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. All recognised financial
assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the

classification of the financial assets.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an election to designate
the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are made
on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only
be made if the investment meets the definition of
equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed
of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to retained profits. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or

FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as interest.
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4.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(0)

(p)

(q)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract

asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using effective

interest method less allowance for credit losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash

and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and

equity instruments are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q) Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

()

(it)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12

months after the reporting period.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as
a financial liability at the time the guarantee is
issued. The liability is initially measured at fair

value and subsequently at the higher of:

- the amount determined in accordance with
the ECL model under HKFRS 9; and

= the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of
income recognised in accordance with the

principles of HKFRS 15.

The fair value of financial guarantees is
determined based on the present value of the
difference in cash flows between the contractual
payments required under the debt instrument
and the payments that would be required without
the guarantee, or the estimated amount that
would be payable to a third party for assuming the
obligations. Where guarantees in relation to loans
or other payables of associates are provided for no
compensation, the fair values are accounted for as
contributions and recognised as part of the cost of

the investment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q)

(r)

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
(i22) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(iv) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added
tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any

trade discounts.

Revenue from the sale of metallic products, wine and
related products is recognised when the Group sells the

products to the customer.

Revenue from management service income is
recognised when the services are rendered to the

customer.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is

required before the payment is due.

Revenue from the travel and leisure service is
recognised when the services are rendered to the

customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 13 S 5 A B e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

(s)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Income from investments in film productions is

recognised when the Group’s entitlement to such

payments has been established, subject to the terms of

the relevant agreements.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using

effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’

rights to receive payment are established.

Employee benefits

(2)

(ii)

(212)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to

the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity

leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit
or loss represents contributions payable by the

Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits, and when the
Group recognises restructuring costs and involves

the payment of termination benefits.
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t)

(w)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from

the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the
amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is
the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable
to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be

received.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they

become receivable.

The government grants relating to the purchase of
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and
investment properties for the cost of an asset are
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or
loss over the useful life of the assets by way of reduced

depreciation and amortisation expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end

of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of

the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying

amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and

liabilities on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(w)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets
are reviewed at each reporting date for indications
of impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is
written down as an expense through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income to its estimated recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating-unit
(“CGU”) to which the asset belongs. Recoverable
amount is the higher of value in use and the fair value

less costs of disposal of the individual asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset/

CGU whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against
the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the
recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse

the impairment.

4. FEEEFFBOR (4)

(W)

=
EF

I o 5 B A AL

FoAth I B 5 7 2 R T B TA 45 Hi
R AR A AR R
ECWE > IR OB RS
15 4t e HL At 4 T Wi 4 % OB = L
il s AT Wi [B] 2 A o T i [e] B A
R EE (TREEERNM]) &
E > M A A A A KRR
VRHEMEENEEAS 2B E
WA EBFIT > AT U 2 5
HLE E BT e 2 B4 A R A
RE o AT L[] < B A 1 5l E
G A B 2 O A (B B O
EWH AW 2 BR#H

A 8L 2 S B < A LA
flist KRB SR EZBE - HE
e S B W AR (L B B
EEEREA (CFHRBE) 2 5HF
JE B 2 Bt Rt B ARG o

B < 7 A A7 90 (L s 1R 1 SR %
A HAEET > RRIEL
{9 18 B 42 E AR A0 L Ah Y E ) o
A0 B o R Al G 2 T B BOH 4R
T W (] < R R R AR 4R

SRR AR T RERTR B A R A

108



109

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fk B BV 5 e o i
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(%)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
trade receivables and contract assets. The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the

respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets. The ECL on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date, including time value

of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance
for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting

date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking
information considered includes the future prospects
of the industries in which the Group’s debtors operate,
obtained from economic expert reports, financial
analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and
other similar organisations, as well as consideration
of various external sources of actual and forecast
economic information that relate to the Group’s core

operations.
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available)

or internal credit rating;

= significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular financial

instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in

the operating results of the debtor;

= significant increases in credit risk on other

financial instruments of the same debtor; and

- an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet

its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable

information that demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(%)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to

have low credit risk if:

(i) The financial instrument has a low risk of default;

(i) The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;

and

(iii) Adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to

fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when the asset has external credit rating
of “investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is
not available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the counterparty
has a strong financial position and there is no past due

amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are

generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by

the counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a

more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired

includes observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

counterparty; or

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 13 S 5 A B e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for
economic or contractual reasons relating to the
counterparty’s financial difficulty, having granted
to the counterparty a concession(s) that the

lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation; or

= The disappearance of an active market for that

financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, including when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised

in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(%)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information as
described above. As for the exposure at default, for
financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting date; for financial
guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount
drawn down as at the reporting date, together with any
additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the
future by default date determined based on historical
trend, the Group’s understanding of the specific future
financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant

forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the expected ECL as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at

the original effective interest rate.

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms of
the instrument that is guaranteed, the expected loss
allowance is the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts
that the Group expects to receive from the holder, the

debtor or any other party.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(%)

(y)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL in the previous reporting period, but determines
at the current reporting date that the conditions for
lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group measures
the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets for

which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account, except for
investments in debt instruments that are measured at
FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve, and does not reduce
the carrying amount of the financial asset in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle the

obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is

remote.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(z) Related parties

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s

family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the

Company;

(ii) has significant influence over the Company;

or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel

of the Group or the Company’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

(i) the entity and the Company are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is

related to the others);

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member);

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the

third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the

Group or an entity related to the Group;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(z) Related parties (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled

by a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or

of a parent of the entity); or

(viii) the entity of any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Company or to the

Company’s parent,

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in

their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or

domestic partner;

(ii) children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s

spouse or domestic partner.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(aa)

(ab)

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial statements reported to the executive
directors, who are the chief operating decision makers
of the Group, for their decisions about resources
allocation to the Group’s business components and for

their review of the performance of those components.

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results are the same as those used in
its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs, except
that share of results of associates, corporate income
and expenses, and fair value changes arising from
certain financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss which are not directly attributable of any operating
segment, are not included in arriving at the operating

result of the reporting segment.

Segment assets include all non-current assets and
current assets but interests in associates, prepaid tax
and deferred tax assets. In addition, corporate assets
including property, plant and equipment, cash and
bank balance held by headquarter and certain financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any

operating segment are not allocated to a segment.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position at
the end of the reporting period or those that indicate
the going concern assumption is not appropriate are
adjusting events and are reflected in the consolidated
financial statements. Events after the reporting period
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes

to the consolidated financial statements when material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the

directors have made the following judgements that have the

most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the

consolidated financial statements (apart from those involving

estimations, which are dealt with below).

(a)

(b)

Joint control assessment

The Group holds 50% of the voting rights of its joint
arrangements. The directors have determined that
the Group has joint control over the arrangements
as under the contractual agreements, it appears that
unanimous consent is required from all parties to the

agreements for all relevant activities.

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 4(x), ECL are measured as an
allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets,
or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset
moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does
not define what constitutes a significant increase in
credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an
asset has significantly increased the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and

supportable forward looking information.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a)  Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
estimated residual values and related depreciation
charges for the Group’s property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
The Group will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives and residual values are different to those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have

been abandoned.
The carrying amounts of property, plant

and equipment as at 31 December 2021 was
RMB371,307,000 (2020: RMB235,136,000).

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021

O HI B K Al ()

fili 5t A e Pk 2 AR IR
EBARBW B A B AR A R A
i RE P 2 At T BEARR - WS R AFE
HECEE I AR AR E R R B B4
JEA  E R R 2 HEORRR - A B R
U

(a) B BT L R

A G 1 1 RE L 3 RS B A
Z Al T A AR - Al w R ER (R
{6 S A Bl 47 45 BA 52 o B2 A RH IR
BHERRMEZ Y% - E
Be S 2 8 1 B AT (8 ) 47 8 I
T 5 ML (ELFR ) o g T o P 4R 300 R
A & 2 mip A wt > S A 4R B 5t A8 6T
I8 B 37 > B B B 2 i B
Pk 5 I SR S A AR

W_E_—F+_A=+—H:>

W~ RRE R 2 MR TE A 2 A
R#371,307,00070 ( ~F _F4F

AR H#5235,186,0007C) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, income tax
of RMB6,513,000 (2020: RMB10,351,000) was charged
to profit or loss based on the estimated assessable

profit.

Impairment of financial assets measured at amortised cost

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS
9 across all categories of financial assets requires
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount
and timing of future cash flows when determining
impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by
a number of factors, changes in which can result in

different levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk for
exposures since initial recognition by comparing the
risk of default occurring over the expected life between
the reporting date and the date of initial recognition.
The Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort for this purpose. This includes
quantitative and qualitative information and also,

forward-looking analysis.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount
of financial assets measured at amortised cost is
RMB448,837,000 (2020: RMB523,626,000).
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d)

(e)

)

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based
on the ageing and estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the allowance amount
involves judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome in future is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of inventories and allowance charge/write-back in the
period in which such estimate has been changed. In
2021, no allowance for slow-moving inventories was
recognised to profit or loss (2020: Nil).

Fair values of financial assets at FVOCI

The Group appointed independent professional
valuers to assess the fair values of certain financial
assets at FVTOCI. In determining the fair values, the
valuers have utilised methods of valuations which
involve certain estimates. The directors have exercised
their judgements and are satisfied that the methods
of valuations are reflective of the current market
conditions.

The carrying amount of the financial assets at FVOCI
as at 31 December 2021 was RMB300,677,000 (2020:
RMB172,839,000).

Valuation of biological assets

The Group’s biological assets are valued at fair value
less costs to sell. In determining the fair value less costs
to sell of the biological assets, the directors and the
management has applied the income approach which
requires a number of key assumptions and estimates
to be made such as discount rate, harvest profile, costs
incurred, cultivation area, and expected yield of the
biological assets. Any change in the estimates may
affect the fair value of biological assets significantly.
The directors and the vineyard expert have exercised
their judgement and are satisfied that the valuation is
reflective of their fair value.

The carrying amount of biological assets as
at 31 December 2021 was RMB961,000 (2020:
RMB2,462,000).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk

and interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management

programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial

markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on

the Group’s financial performance.

()

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), United States dollars (“USD”), RMB,
Canadian dollars (“CAD”) and Euro (“EUR”). The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors
its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should

the need arise.

At 31 December 2021, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened 4% (2020: 4%) against HK$ with all
other variables held constant, consolidated profit after
tax for the year would have been RMB212,000 (2020:
RMB22,000) higher/lower, arising mainly as a result
of the foreign exchange gain/loss on cash and cash

equivalents denominated in HK$.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly
through its investment in listed equity securities.
Management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk and
return profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity securities quoted on the Hong

Kong Stock Exchange.
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6.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(b)

()

Price risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the

reporting period.

If equity prices had been 10% (2020: 10%) higher/

lower:

o Other comprehensive income for the year ended
31 December 2021 would increase/decrease by
RMB3,411,000 (2020: RMB4,205,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of financial assets at
FVTOCI.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not
meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks and
financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions
and other financial instruments. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents
is limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with high creditrating assigned
by international credit-rating agencies, for which the

Group considers to have low credit risk.

Except for the financial guarantee given by the Group
as set out in note 40, the Group does not provide any
other guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in
respect of these financial guarantees at the end of the

reporting period is disclosed in note 40.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business
unit subject to the Group’s established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit
risk management. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within
90 days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances
that are more than 3-6 months past due are requested
to settle all outstanding balances before any further
credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain

collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, which
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the

Group’s different customer bases.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. B4 b A B ()
(CONTINUED)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) f&EmbE (&)
Trade receivables (Continued) JE T B 53 B3 (#)
The following table provided information about the R HHN AL R R H O e
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECL for trade Wi B B i ) TR R A R 1R T K
receivables as at reporting date: Z W15 B E R
Gross
/S N Expected carrying Loss
As at 31 December 2021 +=ZH=+—H loss rate amount allowance
T8 9] s 15 & W T AR s 18 75 5
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR¥WTx ARWTx
Current (not past due) B (ks 1) 0% 42,545 —
Past due within 1 year B —F A 0% 47,506 -
90,051 -
Gross
A E B4R Expected carrying Loss
As at 31 December 2020 +—H=+—H loss rate amount allowance
TH I 2 R R AT 4L (E e R 4B A
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Tt AR¥TIt AR¥TT
Current (not past due) BPHA (Ram i) 0% 126,913 =
Over 3 years past due iET 1 AR A = AR 100% 15,814 15,814
142,727 15,814

Expected loss rates were based on actual loss
experience over the past few years. These rates were
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and the
Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected

lives of the receivables.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(©)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade recervables (Continued)

6. WL B AR B (4)

()

i % L B ()

T BT 55 B K (A7)

Movement for allowance for doubtful debts of trade JEWCE 5 iR 3k 2 R IR B 2 s
receivables is follows: o
2021 2020
TR AR TR R
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥T ot ANE¥T T
At 1 January w—H—H 15,814 33,442
Amount written off during the year AAE A 7 4 FE (15,814) (17,628)
_ 15,814

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
include other receivables, pledged bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents. In respect of pledged
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents, since
there is no significant increase in credit risk, any loss
allowance recognised during the year is therefore
limited to 12-months ECL. The directors consider the
probability of default is low on these balances since
the counterparties are financial institutions with high

credit rating or with good reputation.

In respect of other receivables of RMB142,029,000
(2020: RMB142,029,000) representing a cash
consideration for disposal of a subsidiary, the balance
is measured under a lifetime ECL assessment of
which a loss allowance of RMB36,518,000 (2020:
RMB2,138,000) is recognised as at 31 December 2021.
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6.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. SV L B A B (4)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) (c) f&EmbE (&)
Other financial assets measured at amortised cost (Continued) F Al #5752 A E
(#)
In addition, in respect of other receivables of BE AN > kA RE 0 3 E N R
RMB32,003,000 (2020: RMB31,297,000) which had 32,003,0007C (:;75:3515 AR
been defaulted for years, hence these financial %31 297,00000) (H C# ) £ F)
assets are credit impaired of which loss allowance of EREE qu%fé;z A U B 5 AR
RMBS$2,003,000 (2020: RMB31,297,000) was made as of {ﬁ HWE HPeih % —
31 December 2021. T H=+—HAfEHEREHA
R #32,003,0007C (=% ~F 4 :
AR #31,297,00070) °
Other than the receivables balances as mentioned, the s e % Ay R oA T &5 B A > HC At
remaining balances of other receivables are considered JRE Wi TH E"Jﬁ{ﬁT AR B BAR
to have low credit risk as the counterparties have a low FERERRE > FEAHF T ZELN
risk of default and does not have any past due amounts. }—LF‘é i > HL 37 AT 0] J JH ROH -
Impairment on these balances has been measured at an 7% 55 4 0 2 WUE 2 4% A AF R 124
amount equal to 12-month ECL and loss allowance of H HMESERZ S a8 R
RMB2,571,000 (2020: RMB1,115,000) was made as of “E %+ _H=+—H:-B
31 December 2021. 1 s T 3 A N R H2,571,0007C
(ZF-FHF: AR¥1,115,000
Jo) o
Movement for allowance for doubtful debts of other HL At JE WA 35K TER R 8 A 2 5 8
receivables is follows: I
2021 2020
“EC “E R
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRW Tt AR¥TT
At 1 January w—H—H 34,550 35,921
Impairment losses recognised AP TR e R 1Y R (EL e 4R
for the year 36,542 2,138
Reversal of impairment loss A TR (B R 8 4 [
during the year - (2,801)
Written off as uncollectible S8 £ A R R g 2E H = (708)
71,092 34,550
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. WL B AR B (4)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Liquidity risk (d) WEE LR
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current A 5 ) 2 BUR T 8 W1 B 45 B I
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that HEMZ REE SR > RS
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its JE ) B 4 e A o AR S HL e
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. R E E &K -
The maturity analysis based on the contractual MR A S W AT AE M AR B 40
undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s non-derivative I BB B U & A B g3 A
financial liabilities is as follows: T
On demand Between Between
or within 1 and 2and More than Carrying
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
TR ok
—ENEE  —EWE WELE EBLE R P i
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARHTT AR¥WTT ARWTT ARMTT ARWTT ARWTE
At 31 December 2021 I S Y
N
Trade and other payables % 5 B E M I 1 508 134,612 = = - 134,612 134,612
Bank and other loans (note) #17 M HA £ (Ffst) 639,227 5,733 17,199 103,855 766,014 701,875
Lease liabilities HEAR 5,691 5,308 17,114 76,110 104,223 66,518
Financial guarantee REFS U R 300,000 - - - 300,000 -
At 31 December 2020 WoE-EESH
=t—H
Trade and other payables B 5 T H M JE A5 20E 57,109 = = = 57,109 57,109
Bank and other loans (note) 47 R A 3K (H5E) 145,143 220,806 17199 109,588 492,736 413,787
Lease liabilities HEAE 6,667 5,691 16,566 77,683 106,557 64,954
Financial guarantee S Hf 490,000 = = - 490,000 =
Note: BY5E

Bank and other loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or within 1 year” time band in the
above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of these bank and
other loans amounted to RMB4,972,000 and RMB5,297,000
respectively. Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the directors do not believe that it is probable that
the banks and other financial institution will exercise their
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.

JA B F AT N > B A K AR
MR SRAT T A B A [ 4 R e
—AERMEER ] REBL o RS R TR
ZoFRELZAZTH O ESMRAT
T JFC Al 52550 1) 2R il B0 AS <6 RBBE 23l 7%
A RH4,972,00070 K A R #5,297,000
TG o KEHE B A SR W BB IR UL >
R 2y SRAT % HL At < MG S S K T
AT o FG I 15 R 2 SR B IR 2 5K

AR AORIAER T KBRS A PR A R
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. W5 R B B (%)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) WEE & B ()
The directors believe that such bank and other loans will be ARG A B SR AT B A £ I AR
repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates B W T T A S 2 K R
set out in the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate Je TR A G AR R R R B O
principal and interest cash outflows are as below: T
Total
Repayable Between 1 Between 2 Undiscounted
within 1 year and 2 years and 5 years cash flow
AMiBZ
—AEN IR —ZEWAE WETAE B4R A
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TE  ARWTRT ARW¥WTRT ARWTT
2021 R 446 4,888 - 5,334
2020 CERIRE 446 55334 - 5,780
(e) Interest rate risk (e) FIRE B

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from
its bank deposits and bank and other loans. These
deposits and borrowings bear interest at variable rates

varied with the then prevailing market condition.

At 31 December 2021, if interest rates at that date
had been 10 basis points lower/higher with all other
variables held constant, consolidated profit after tax
for the year would have been RMB166,000 (2020:
RMB55,000) lower/higher, arising mainly as a result of

lower/higher interest income from bank deposits.

A 4 [ R 2 2 A R e B TR B
T A7 3K B SR AT B HoA K - % 5%
A 3K AR SRR AR P T AT T DL
M 7€ ) % B B 25t 5 o
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40 AR H55,00008) - EEHE R
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

St 755 L g 4 B ()

(f) Categories of financial instruments at 31 December ) RTZH=Z=T—HWE&m TR
il
2021 2020
- =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T NS B
Financial assets: 0
Financial assets measured FE 8 AT R 22
at amortised cost W & 448,837 523,626
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI: PLA A 71 A HoAh 2 T i 45
Equity instruments ZHMBRE - BATR 300,677 172,839
Financial liabilities: R/ SR
Financial liabilities at amortised cost DL 65 AAS R 2 B 5 2 A 903,005 535,800
(g) Fair values (g) 2 °FME

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets

and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated

statement of financial position approximate their

respective fair values.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an

asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction

between market participants at the measurement date. The

following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair

value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs

to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs:

Level 2 inputs:

Level 3 inputs:

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the Group can access at the measurement
date.

inputs other than quoted prices included

within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly.

unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and

transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of the

event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

T B B 5 IR DL R B ke 2 A 4R
S 5 B B % BB R T B
FHBR AP {E A -

A F A i i
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Py = R 45 AR BN P ERHE

gﬁ_.

25T

=

JiE A % -

JiE i A B

Ji i A BH

AL AR R A
B15 i AR ] E E R
BAERERT IS Z
WAE (RRHE) -

o — g BT B4 2
B BEERE
1R BB ] $ e B
15 2 A g -

B A 2
B 2 W A g -

AR I 2 BUR T 5 1 5 A O S g
ZIRGTUCEE A o FERD AR B R
SEEF Hp— AR

A AR IER T BRSO A PR A A

132



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fk B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7. AP R ()

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 (@ RTZH=Z=1+T—HBAPFHEFEHRZ
December: Wz
Fair value measurement using: Total
AP RFAZ B Mgt
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2021
i Cia R LY B S S
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFE  ARWTx  AR®TE  ARWTxR

At 31 December 2021 R-ZF_—#+_A=+—H
Recurring fair value RPN PG
measurements:
Financial assets W
Financial assets at FVTOCI ~ DA/AF-{HFF A E Al 2
(note 26) W 2 S B Kﬁ.&%
- Listed equity securities - ETiifE A& &% 34,112 - - 34,112
- Unlisted equity securities - 7 _F i A i % . - 266,565 266,565
34,112 = 266,565 300,677
Biological assets ER/NAq
Vines (note 22) (W eE22) - - 961 961
Total A5t 34,112 - 267,526 301,638
Fair value measurement using: Total
AFEFHERAZ B At
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2020
ik F—JE %:@ %E@ TEIERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETT  AR¥TT AR%Tr AR¥TXR

At 31 December 2020 R-FZZZEFZA=1+—H

Recurring fair value R PR
measurements:
Financial assets B A R
Financial assets at FVTOCI ~ DAAF-E7HA HAh 2 i
(note 26)) Wt 2 BB e (FfF3E26)
- Listed equity securities - Fi A 42,045 = = 42,045
- Unlisted equity securities - E AN N - - 130,794 130,794
42,045 - 130,794 172,839
Biological assets WG E
Vines (note 22) R (K E22) - - 2,462 2,462
Total At 49,045 = 133,256 175,301
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

on level 3:

Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based

B 13 S 5 A B e

7. &PEEHE (B)

(b) HRIE

BEEEEA PHEG R ZEE

HHE -

Financial assets at

FVTOCI unlisted Biological 2021
Description equity securities assets Total
VLA FAE A
i 2 T W
P 3 ¥ DY S
W bl AR R % LX) A
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARW T ANR¥F 0 ARWF 70
(note 26) (note 22)
(M 7E26) (W 7E22)
At 1 January 2021 RZFZ—4£—-H—H 130,794 2,462 133,256
Total gains or losses recognised TN T AR 2 i #5 5
in profit or loss ® ERAHR AR = (1,274) (1,274)
Addition RNE 150,000 - 150,000
In other comprehensive income T At 2 T W % (14,229) - (14,229)
Decrease due to harvest TR i B 7 3k 7 - (188) (188)
Exchange differences B 56 £ - (39) (39)
At 31 December 2021 R-Z-—+-HA=+—H 266,565 961 267,526
® Include gains or losses for assets @ fF M5 IR T4 2
held at end of reporting period G 2 s B R = (1,274) (1,274)
Financial assets at
FVTOCI unlisted Biological 2020
Description equity securities assets Total
AP HEFTA
Hofth 2 T i £
2B EEFE SRR
38 b B A T S EWEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NG ST ARHT 7 ARHT
(note 26) (note 22)
(K 3k26) (H3E22)
At 1 January 2020 REZ-Z#—H—H 85,351 726 86,077
Total gains or losses recognised TR 2 0k 25 5
in profit or loss ) IR AEN R s 2,160 2,160
In other comprehensive income TR A 2 T U 45 45,443 - 45,443
Decrease due to harvest K] 050 A i 3k - (271) (271)
Exchange differences W 3t 72 %8 - (153) (153)
At 31 December 2020 RZZ_ZE+_A=Z+—H 130,794 9,462 133,256
® Include gains or losses for o AFERRERRFEZ
assets held at end of B 2 W Uk R
reporting period = 2,160 2,160

A AR IER T BRSO A PR A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

L

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

()

Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based

on level 3: (Continued)

The total gains or losses recognised in other
comprehensive income are presented in other
comprehensive income in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
are presented in other expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value

measurements at 31 December 2021:

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for
the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including
level 3 fair value measurements. The financial
controller reports directly to the Board of Directors for
these fair value measurements. Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the financial
controller and the Board of Directors at least once a

year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will
normally engage external valuation experts with the
recognised professional qualifications and recent

experience to perform the valuations.

7.

o AR G R ()

(b)

()

BLBR 5B = e % A P
BR (4

At 2 TR A i A A R 2 K i B
e IR A B T R & A R 28 K HoAth &
T W 4 3% T 2 Al A T i 2R A 2
5

i 2 B E

TA R £ i BRI 45 BRES 4R AEAE R
AR A 1E 2% M HoAth 2 T i 25 3K 5 5
By HoAlBA 7 o

KEMP_EFZ—4H+_-AH
=+ — B AR & AP
A 51 & B8R 1 2 A% 48 5 25 i A
IR Z P95 ¢

A 55 [ 2 B s A B A SR B s R
HOETHE 2 A FHEHFE > G
FEEAFEEE - MHEAER
W% AP EG R EE R
W MBRERERGRDEE
B (R PP I &5 AT — I

AR = AR E > AL

LiE R E R ﬁm7$¥§%
T A0 3 468 i 1) A1 B A (B B
f1E -



7.

and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Sy A 5 3 Pl s

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group

measurements at 31 December 2021: (Continued)

7. 2CPEEHE (4)

AEMR-F %+ 2A
=+ — BB R R AP
M 92 R P 2 A 405 2 B i A

(c)

ViR s (A

Level 3 fair value measurements Fair value
FERA TR REAE
Effect on
fair value for
Description Valuation technique Unobservable Inputs Range increase of inputs 2021 2020
LY LN €4
g it s A A Bk L1 APZEE® SRS “T0%F
RMB’000  RMB’000
ARWEFE AR¥TT
Biological assets Discounted cash flows ~ Risk-adjusted discount rate  7.7% (2020: 9%) Decrease 961 2,462
EWEE MRRER R ERE B % i
Growth rate 2% (2020: 2%) Increase
Hfex K
Gross margin 52% (2020: 48%) Increase
Bk K
Private equity investment ~ Market comparable Discount for lack of 27.4%-40% Decrease 266,565 130,794
classified at financial approach marketability (2020: 30%-40%)
assets as FVTOCI
MERULTHEAALME W5 HBRE B2 i %)
Tdt 2 B AL 5 ik
ekt &
Financial multiples of 1.96 - 18.23 Increase
public companies (2020:5.05 - 5.54)
NRA TR B R Ll

S AR SRR AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

8. REVENUE 8.

Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by

A
VONUE!

ERTEERE MR RE D ZBF A

major products or service line for the year is as follows: A A
2021 2020
R TR TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
PN B AR T
Revenue from contracts with customers 7 v B O E R
within the scope of HKFRS 15 SIS E N 2
EPAHBA
Disaggregated by major products i T i SIS AR
or service lines #7> 2 WA
- Rendering of travel and leisure services — — &t #% S K i IR 75 110,753 97,286
— Sales of wine and related products — G5 T 20 S AR B E 10,236 11,357
— Management fee income - BH A - 6,772
— Sales of metallic products — SE BB E W 273,638 352,999
394,627 468,414

The Group derives all revenue from the transfer of goods
and services at a point in time except for the revenue from
leisure services and management fee income which are

recognised at over the time.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

9. OTHER GAINS AND INCOME 9. Hfhkss KW A
2021 2020
—B A B
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T oo ANR¥T T

Bank interest income ER4T FILE A
Government grants (note) B A B (B )
Share of income from film productions oAl Y BAE TR A
Refund of value-added tax B (HBLR ]
Gain on bargain purchase (note 39(a)) AR E I E 2 g (KEEEs9(a))
Financial guarantee income FABS 8 PRI
Gain on lease termination # R A i A
Penalty income EECON
Others HoAth
Note: Government grants in 2021 and 2020 mainly represented Fhf &1

the subsidy to the Group by the PRC government as to
compensate the loss suffered by the Group since the
Hengshan Mountain scenic area was temporarily closed
in certain dates in 2021 and 2020 due to the policies and
measures implemented by the government of the PRC to deter
the spread of COVID-19 epidemic in the PRC.

1,968 639
1,175 3,495

22 27
1,287 5,794
1,143 -
9,565 3,145

. 9
1,834 603
2,251 2,185
19,245 15,897

DR T AR R TR TR Y UG R

AR b B BN T AR 4 B 2 B
G DA (B AR 42 T ey ) LSS
CECAERCETRERSATY
IRF B PR LA & R B 2% 882019
SEE R R 15 8 1 TE IR S T AT
SR R A i T 5% 52 ) s 1 o

A AR IER T BRSO A PR A A
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10.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on its
strategic business units that are managed separately by the
chief operating decision-maker. Each strategic unit requires

different technology, development and marketing strategies.

During the year, the Group had four reportable segments,
which were managed separately based on their business
nature:

Tourism development - development of travel and
leisure business

Investment holding - holding of fund, debt and
equity investment, including
management fee income
Trading of metallic - sales and purchases of metallic
products products
All other segments = business activities and
operating segments not
separately reported, including
production and sales of wine

and related products

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as those described in note 4(aa) to the consolidated
financial statements. Segment profits or losses do not
include interest income, unallocated other gains and
income, finance costs and unallocated corporate expenses.
Segment assets do not include unallocated corporate assets.
Segment non- current assets do not include financial assets
at FVTOCI and deferred tax assets.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as
if the sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current

market prices.

10. > HEH

7 S AR o A R SR\ ST B Y
SRS SEB5 B (67 T R R AL D o A S
SRS AL AR Bl - BERE K 0K
W o

TRAEA - AR BA O AT R 20 o Sl

AR 15 S5 1Y) 685 1R g S B

il 1 36 9% J — B R ik A KA [
KB

BB — A A K AR
& AEEH
A

HEEBEN —HELERBEE
FEE it

P Hopb sy i — SEH IS B R AR )
S Slf: 8 57
o BEAE &
B 4 e A
IoH 2 it

BN GFTBORRALEBMRES
WO 755 ¥ 5 B 54 (aa) B BRI B9 — 20 - 43
i i A1 SR 18R BLE AR - R AT TE
Hoph i 25 B die A~ il G A e oK 4 it 4
E T - M HEMAERE RS RAEE
FE o 43R IR T A AN LA LA E T
N H Ath 2 T i 2 2 B A A o T
HE o

A B2 1 R 4 I [ S 6 % 8 R 4 1)
5 =77 6 B SO > AR BIAT AR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about operating segment profit or loss:

10. 7+ ¥ & B (#f)

R85 ox A R s R B R

*

Tourism Investment Trading of All other Total
development holding  metallic product segments
i3 5 RERR  HESEER O RHEEEAE it
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETE  ARMFE  ARMFE  AREFE  AREFR
2091 e I
Revenue from external customers FAMEF ZBA 110,753 - 273,638 10,236 394,627
Segment (loss),/profit A ER) /EA (7,288) 206,192 5472 (4,410) 199,966
Interest income FERA 1,968
Finance costs s (24,689)
Unallocated corporate expenses ARREER X (19,316)
Profit before income tax B B et i 157,929
Other segment information: JuamEH
Impairment loss on trade and BRI RIGEL
other receivables, net W R (34,871) (1,671) . = (36,542)
Depreciation and amortisation IS & 13,436 8 - 768 14,212
Share of (loss) /profit of associates EiBEAT (B8 /hA (957) 211,42 - - 210,469
Share of losses of joint ventures EliaatXEs = (53) - = (59)
2020 i ¢ 2.5
Revenue from external customers RESMFER ZHA 97,286 6,772 859,999 11,357 468,414
Segment profit/ (loss) bR/ (68 131,291% (12,501) (1,235) 1,708 119,263
Interest income FERA 639
Finance costs W HA (18,184)
Unallocated corporate expenses N e b (21,474)
Profit hefore tax BBAE A 80,944
Other segment information: K mER
Reversal of impairment loss on trade and & 5 R AL M REM R Bl
other receivables, net BT ERE 663 - - - 663
Depreciation and amortisation T s 0441 435 - 663 10,539
Share of profit/ (losses) of associates FEfb A A AA/ (B (2,634) 6,277 = - 3,643
Share of losses of joint ventures b 4Bt EER - (1,158) - - (1,158)

Including the gain on disposal of subsidiary of RMB92,487,000

(note 39(b))

i £ 45 4 — [ B A D A i R
92,487,0007C (Fft5E39 (b))

A AR IER T BRSO A PR A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 10. +HPE R (F)
Information about operating segment assets: REnsibgez&r :
Trade of
Tourism Investment metal All other
development holding products segments Total
FE S fEER HEXEES AL st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE  ARETT  ARWTE  AR®FTT  ARETR

At 31 December 2021 REZZZ-H+ZH=+—H

Segment assets NHEE 865,112 3,172,867 158,380 91,461 4,217,820

Unallocated corporate assets ARAERE

Property, plant and equipment ¥  BF Kk fi 5,717
Cash and cash equivalents BERBEERY 21,558
Others H Al 31,768
59,043
Total assets BWEE 4,276,863
Segment assets including: AR R LA
Investments in associates REEAR R E 64,464 2,725,835 - - 2,790,299
Investments in joint ventures MREGEZRE - 2,964 - - 2,964
Additions to non-current assets Vs & JF i B) 350,196 - - 604 350,800
At 31 December 2020 WoE-EEF-A=+—H
Segment assets o b B 623,207 9,745,984 198,467 94,641 3,591,599

Unallocated corporate assets ARAERE

Property, plant and equipment  #%  BF Kt f 5,689
Cash and cash equivalents BERBEEEY 13,928
Others HAith 51,296
70,913
Total assets BEE 8,662,512
Segment assets including: ARG R
Investments in associates REENFAZRE 99,970 2,519,278 - - 2,619,248
Investments in joint ventures neEatrEIRE - 14,436 - - 14,436
Additions to non-current assets VKB F R E EE 138,203 4 = 6,751 144,938
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

B 13 S 5 A B e

10. 7 &R&E B (4)

Geographical information: b [ R
Revenue Non-current assets
KA I i B B e
2021 2020 2021 2020
SE g CEORE SFSF CFROFE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR¥Txt AR¥TIX AR¥TT
PRC except Hong Kong TR O B 45 A i) 384,391 457,057 = 3,465,601 2,909,098
The United States FH 10,236 11,357 16,593 18,639
394,627 468,414 3,482,194 2,927,737

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based

on the locations of customers.

Revenue from each of the major customers, which amounted

to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue is set out below:

SRR EORLRE o WA TSR RS PR TE

Hly o

KA/ TEEEF (EALEBERA10%K
PLE#) B A HSIF

2021 2020

R TR R

RMB’000 RMB’000

ANR¥ Tt ANBR#T 0

Customer A (Note (i))* FEA (B 5E3E)) * N/A A#EH 160,187
Customer B (Note (i))* HEB(M5E()) * N/A A i i 117,184
Customer C* EFC* 49,619 75,678
Customer D (Note (ii))* FED (Kt 5E i) * 116,796 N/A E A
166,415 352,999

Revenue from two customers were all derived by the segment

engaging in trading of metallic products.

(i) These customers did not contribute over 10% of the total

revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

(i) These customers did not contribute over 10% of the total

revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

(i)

(i)

KAWL R AR A s R E
<5 E o ) 0 o

HEEFNBE_R_—4#+_H
=+ —H L EEEAREEAWANE
JBKAS B #10% ©

HEEFRBE_FE _FE+H
=+ — AR ERAREE AW AN E
KA B #10% ©

AR AORIAER T KBRS A PR A R
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

11. FINANCE COSTS 11. RBbE A
2021 2020
St R e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T e YN S B
Interest on bank and other loans SR AT R HoAth 22 A S 31,135 13,865
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEZ A 3,898 4,062
Total interest expense on financial 3 IE LA AR R A E 45 19
liabilities not at fair value through A5 B 2 U BH S MR
profit or loss 35,033 17,927
Less: Interest capitalised W EAH R (9,557) =
25,476 17,927
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss AN S8 (4 ) e 18 T AR (787) 257
24,689 18,184
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. Fii 65 B¢ B 32
2021 2020
SE . CRIF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T e ANR¥®ET T
Current tax R HA B 15
Provision for the year A A JE 4B
— Hong Kong - & - 463
- PRC - 8,044 500
- USA — & 25 -
Underprovision in prior year A AF B AN 2
- PRC _ i - 9
8,069 965
Deferred tax (note 35) AT TA (K 5E35) (1,556) 9,386
6,513 10,351

For the year ended 31 December 2021, Hong Kong
Profits Tax has not been provided as there is no estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong. For the year ended
31 December 2020, Hong Kong Profits Tax had not been
provided at the rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable

profits arising in Hong Kong.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 12.

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere has been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the country in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,

interpretations, and practices in respect thereof.

Other subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC are
generally subject to income tax on their taxable income at a
tax rate of 25% (2020: 256%).

P 15 B B 52 (#1)

U a7 B B 2 B IFU TS AL A 4
P A5 T A B K 2 BUATHR 0 A
B % B 2 BUAT B o

AR T A R B RS 2 At B R N R A
JE il ME SR B U A B B 25 % (N F U F
A 95%) B TS AL

2021 2020
e a2 “EEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ¥ T oo AR T
Profit before income tax 5 T A5 T Yas ) 157,929 80,244
Tax at domestic income tax rate of /g l*]ﬁ)ﬁ%ﬁ%?f)%
25% (2020: 25%) (CZFEFF 1 25%)
" Z B 39,482 20,061
Tax effect of share of results JRE A W v N T SE AR 2 BTS2
of associates (52,617) (911)
Tax effect of share of losses FEAG &8 SR 2 BB
of joint ventures 13 290
Tax effect of income that is AN RERBL A 2 Bl 5 2
not taxable (3,627) (24,927)
Tax effect of expenses that are not ELEN S E P ris 2
deductible 6,687 5,698
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised A fifE 58 B 15 G 15 2 B 5 28 17,316 9,969
Underprovision in prior year A8 A A JEE A A R - 2
Effect of different tax rate of A A =] 32 4 [
subsidiaries operating in other [t J& 2 &) A [F]
jurisdictions iR Z 5 (741) 169
Income tax expense i 1580 B S 6,513 10,351

AR AORIAER T KBRS A PR A R
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13, A4 JE i Al
The Group’s profit for the year is stated after charging/ AL MAE R FIC R, (GEA) BLF
(crediting) the following: KIH -
2021 2020
—EF K —EFFF
RMB’000 RMB’000

A BT oo PN T

Amortisation of other intangible assets  H{th 4 JE & 7 & i 5B %
and investments in film productions RN 2 BE B 304 556
Auditors’ remuneration A% B Fili P 4 1,850 1,645
Cost of inventories sold BB B R A 303,337 377,351
Depreciation charge: Pres i -
— Plant and equipment owned — WA 2 R B s A 9,927 6,148
- Right-of-use assets — R E 4,429 4,859
Loss/ (Gain) from changes in fair value A4 & & /A V- {H 55 )
less costs to sell of biological assets WA B A 2 R (M R) 1,274 (2,160)
Write off of film production T 4 B 5 BAE - 4,669
Short-term leases charges A B S 814 1,534
Cost of inventories sold includes staff costs and depreciation O B A L3S B DA AT g5 50 A
of approximately RMB29,953,000 (2020: RMB33,440,000) R %29,953,0007C (—F ~F4 : AR¥
which are included in the amounts disclosed separately 33,440,0007C) > 755 WA EE AR b S
above. 7 9% 2 A e
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14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

B 13 S 5 A B e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

14. i B & F B 32

2021 2020

e a2 —E_FHF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T 75 ANR#T T

Salaries, bonuses and allowances 4 > fEAL M ARG 52,074 49,076
Retirement benefit scheme B K AR F ) 1t 2

contributions 8,444 4,943

60,518 54,019

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the REREE - —F+H=1T—HIL4F

year the ended 31 December 2021 included two directors
(2020: two) whose emolument is reflected in the analysis

presented above. The emoluments of the five highest paid

JBE > AN B T4 B NN 4 W 4
B (CELE ML) o KM e
R ESCRINZ 3T o 44 fix s BN A

individuals are set out below: ANZ®4a R -

2021 2020

S SR e = T

RMB’000 RMB’000

ANR¥ Tt ANRH# T

Basic salaries and allowances LR F 4 S 4,411 4,322
Retirement benefit scheme B AR A FEE AL 2

contributions 261 178

4,672 4,500

A AR IER T BRSO A PR A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Continued) 14. 18 B A X (5)
The emoluments fell within the following band: Mg R T

Number of individuals

N
2021 2020
R e e S
Less than HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to  “»}i*1,000,000%s 7t (FH % it A R
RMB831,000) (2020: RMB890,000) 831,0007C) (=& ZFAFE : AR
#%890,0007T) 2 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 21,500,000 7
(equivalent to RMB831,001 to (FH 5 A AR 831,001 C &
RMB1,246,000) (2020: RMB890,001 to A R 1,246,00000)
RMB1,336,000) (ZF R4 - ANRH890,00170
= AR #1,336,00000) 3 1

147 Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 13 S 5 A B e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
EMOLUMENTS

()

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments

The remuneration of every director and supervisor in

respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of

the Company or its subsidiary undertaking is set out

below:

15. FFLEFHE

()

Salaries and

o B

HEF L ERREBTES (R
A% T B R A w2 B dn
o

Retirement

Discretionary benefit scheme

Fees allowances bonus  contributions Total
BIREM

wE Wk Wt e 4L il B g 5% At
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
i ARETFE  ARE®TFE  ARETT  ARWTz  ARWTx

Name of directors BHELZ
M. Ni Jinlei Regts 500 939 - 19 1,458
Mr. Zhang Wanzhong R i 125 272 - 12 409
Ms. Zheng Zhong BELL 220 400 - 106 726
Mr. Wang Xingye FRERE ii 128 420 - 106 654
Ms. Guan Xueming CECSS ii 128 280 - 62 4170
Ms. Xue Li HELL i 33 - - - 33
Mr. Xiang Lei HEH RS - _ _ _ _
Mr. Ip Wing Wai ERREE i 8 - - - 3
M. Li Juncai ERA A i 33 - - - 33
Mr. Tang Xuan 44t iii 80 - - - 80
Mr. Li Chonghua FRELE 80 - - - 80
Mr. Shen Wai b it 80 - - - 80
1,440 2,311 - 305 4,056

Name of supervisors Bk
Mr. Fan Yimin H—REE 50 - - _ 50
Mr. Ouyang Zishi WKW S 50 S 8 8 50
M. Pan Yadong WA 50 : : : 5
Ms. Dong Xiaoging EREH LT i 21 = - - 21
Ms. Cao Zhenzhen WP+ i 99 - - _ 99
Ms. Zhou Min A+ 50 - . - 50
250 - - - 250
Total for 2021 it e 1,690 2,311 - 305 4,306

S AR SRR AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

()

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021

15. # 35 R B & ()

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EHREEHREMES ()
Retirement
Salaries and ~ Discretionary ~ benefit scheme
Fees allowances bonus  contributions Total
BIRARA]
e HeRREM Bt L AL EiE e At
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000
i3 ARBTFE  ARMTT  ARNTE  ARETE  ARWTX
Name of directors HFEA
Mr. Ni Jinlei Redrs 80 920 2 17 1,017
Mr. Zhang Wanzhong BN LA i 280 581 = 67 998
Ms. Zheng Zhong HELt 990 400 = 54 674
Ms. Xue Li EELL i 80 = = = 80
Mr. Xiang Lei EERAE - - . = N
Mr. Ip Wing Wai EXREE i 80 - - - 80
M. Shao Jiulin BRI S A iv 20 - - - 20
Mr. Li Juncai BRAKE i 80 - - . 80
Mr. Li Chonghua BEHLA 80 - - = 80
M. Shen Wai it 80 - - - 80
Mr. Tang Xuan gt i 50 - - - 50
1,050 1,901 - 138 3,089
Name of supervisors i i
Mr. Fan Yimin —EEE 50 = . = 50
Mr. Ouyang Zishi BT AEE 50 - - - 50
Mr. Pan Yudong BEREE 50 - - - 50
Ms. Dong Xiaoging ERELL i 50 - - - 30
Ms. Zhou Min Rt 50 = S = 50
250 - - - 250
Total for 2020 “RIRER 1,300 1,901 - 138 3,339
Notes: i 21
(i)  Retired on 21 May 2021 (iy WMTEZAERLA -+ HEBIE
(ii) Appointed on 21 May 2021 () M_ZE_—FRH_T—HE
=i
(ili) Appointed on 15 May 2020 (i) MOFFERA TR HERT
(iv) Resigned on 6 April 2020 (iv) MZZFAEDH S HEHE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 13 S 5 A B e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

()

(b)

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued)

Pursuant to the service contracts entered into
between the Company and its executive directors,
the Company’s executive directors are entitled to an
aggregate amount of discretionary bonuses of not more
than 5% of the consolidated profit after tax but before

the provision of such bonuses.

There was no arrangement under which a director or a
supervisor waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors or supervisors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company and the director’s connected party had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during

the year.

15. EFAEHRME (M)

()

(b)

B ()

RIEA LN A EEAATEF T2
B & &) > AN A RATE S A HE
BB A BABIA (R R
AL 2 Hil) AR S5 % 2 BTG IEAL

WEF R FER
FoAS bR B
S o s 9 9 o 7 A o
S22 -

ME-F R FER
FoASF—HILEE S AR
S 9 ) £ 3 55 B 8 52 oA
LR LTIV PR E T
B 2 D K R B -

HERERRZS - KPHAGHZER

A2 )RR A0 9 A A [ S5 RT SL AT
AR 7 A R BCAF 1A A AT B[] A7 A T
AN F HE S S BN LR
WA E R G (A B R U
) WERZ Y~ L REH -

A AR IER T BRSO A PR A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

16.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s contributions to the
MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries and wages
subject to a monthly maximum amount of HK$1,500 per
employee and vest fully with employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The Group’s PRC employees are members of a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The Group is required to contribute certain
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and wages to
the central pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits.
The local municipal government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefits obligations of all existing and future
retired employees of the Group. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the central pension scheme is to meet

the required contributions under the scheme.

The Group also operates other retirement benefits schemes
for all qualifying employees in elsewhere and required to
contribute certain percentage of the employee’s salaries

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The Group’s contributions to retirement benefit schemes
vest fully and immediately with the employees. Accordingly,
there are no forfeited contributions under the retirement
benefit schemes which may be used by the Group to reduce
its existing level of contributions or contributions payable
in future years as at and during each of the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

16.

B A EE S

A £ [ AR5 7 s o ) 1 R i R e 451
T A G S R B — TE R
ARBREFE (TEREFE D) - AL
MEERTF R TIREHF SR TE
5% wHo > & B LHH s A
1,500% 7T > 11 H A 4 [ A7 A 58 B 4wt
# 2R B R — MR BT o

RSB 2 B B TS 2 B T BUN
AT 2 SR AR B il o A SR 2 [
RBREFHMNREERATH SR TE
AT LA & B R ARAR A o H T B
IR B BUR IS A SR I T A BLA e RIVHR R
18 B 2B RARFI L PE o i b B IR
FEEIT & - ARBEH 2 BAEE A ZA
BT THR AR -

AEMTNA RS TA G ERES
L H AR ARAR Rl > Sl ZH AR S
BEmERR K ERREBHFEns T E
gr A K

A IR AR Rt 0 D52 220
B U 2 o RO 5 AR %
FROFFFFAS A ILAS
BE B ARAR R I A T
5k T A 5 T 2 R B A
K F o KA E 6 14 <
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 13 S 5 A B e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic and diluted earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2021 is based on the profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of RMB158,972,000 (2020:
RMB64,165,000) and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,481,737,000 (2020: 1,378,720,000) in
issue during the year. No adjustment has been made to the
basic earnings per share amounts presented for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. There were no potential
ordinary shares outstanding during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020, and hence the diluted earnings

per share is the same as basic earnings per share.

17.

5 5 & #

T I 5 A % i 2 A

B s S S S R
FE o AR A A ME AL SRR B A Ty
43 T AR 45 AR 28 | HE AN A A 4 B U6
IR ¥5158,972,0007C (& AR -
A R %64,165,0007T) LA K 4 N B #5417
W5 A 0 RE T ¥ #501,481,787,000 (&
TR 1 1,878,720,000) B o AE 4
MEE _F R R CRFT A
= —H IR R EAR R R 25 4
BELRE - REE_F - —F R =
CERET AT HIEFE >
TTAESMYVEAE G 48 B o WOt > 4 B
B R B A R B A g FIAR R -

A AR IER T BRSO A PR A A
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fk B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

18. Y3k ~ Wi b5 Bk i

Leasehold
improvements,
Machinery furniture
Frechold and  and office Motor ~ Construction  Right-of-use
land Buildings equipment equipment vehicles  in progress assets Total
ViR
KAEE EIA Y
i By BRAERE  BARE R ARIE  fMEAE fii
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AT ARBTx  ARMTz  ARMTx  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARKTR
Cost WA
At1 January 2020 REZZFE-A-0 4552 1,717 5,097 7941 73,711 83,101 97971 936,446
Additions hE - 46,272 2 7 - 46,234 - 92,600
Transfers i = 9,356 o = = (3,356) 5 o
Disposals and written off % J & = = () (198) (1,248) - (1,086) (2,5%)
Exchange differences EizE (295) (507) (14) 303 (21) (69) - (713)
At31 December 2020and ~ RZFZEFE
1 January 2021 et s
R=F--F--H 4057 60,838 5,192 8,118 74,50 76,000 96,391 325,798
Acquisition of a subsidiary I BAR
(note 39(a)) (H5E39(a)) - - - 142 42 94,500 150,368 245,432
Additions hE - 159 111 494 476 102,731 - 104,571
Transfers L8 = 3,324 17,784 6 = (39,643) 18,519 =
Transfers to investment HERENE
properties (note 19) (H3E19) - - - - - (127,122) (T1936)  (199,058)
Disposals and written off T g = - (10) (11) (1,855) - - (1,376)
Exchange differences iz (97) (322) (1) (13) (7 - - (516)
At 31 December 2021 R-ZZ-E
TZA=1-H 4,160 63,999 23,550 8,796 74,038 106,466 193,342 474,851

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Sn 7 T 5 R 3 Fi R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. W3 ~ Wb Ko i (4
(CONTINUED)

Leasehold
improvements,
Machinery furniture
and and office Motor ~ Construction  Right-of-use
Frechold land Buildings ~ equipment  equipment vehicles  in progress assets Total
LVt
KARH ki Rk
14 By BERRE MRk RE ERIE  fMMRE i
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABHTF  ARMTR  ARRFR  ARETx  ARWTx  ARWTR  ARETR  ARETR

Accumulated depreciation Bt &

At January 2020 RZBZFE-A-H - 1489 4441 7755 59,785 - 559 81,993
Charged for the year R - 1,34 992 914 4,97 - 4,859 11,007
Disposals and written off % JL & - - ) (191) (1,248) - (838) (2,280
Exchange differences EiER - % (62) 8) %) = g (58)
AtS1 December 2020 and 1~ R-F-FE
January 2021 tZAZE-Rk

“F-F-A-A . 5,869 4,668 7,170 62811 - 9,54 90,662
Charged for the year ERL L - 5,682 2,569 449 3,067 - 4499 14,179
Disposals and written off ~ fy % Jt & - - (10) (11) (1,119) - - (1,140
Exchange differences EiEE - (60) (78) (13) (6) - - (157)

- 9491 7,149 8,188 64,743 s 18,973 103,544

Carrying amount e
At 31 December 2021 I S

S e 4,160 54,508 16,401 608 9,295 106,466 179,869 311,307
At 31 December 2020 9 3 2

+ZRZ 40 4,957 54,969 524 348 11,691 76,000 87,347 935,136

SRR IR BB TR SR A PR A 154
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fk B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The analysis of the net carrying amount of right-of-use assets

by class of underlying asset is as follows:

18. M3 - W Kkt (4)

A 2 2 99 5007 0 0 P A 02 0 B
T T

Leasehold Lease
land contracts Total
L8 L MEFH M
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AR¥WTxT ARWTIIE

As at 1 January 2020 W _FEFFE—H—H 25,562 66,892 92,454
Depreciation charged Eill - (609) (4,250) (4,859)
Disposals and written off K e = (248) (248)
As at 31 December 2020 and R _-ZF_FH |+ _H=1—H
1 January 2021 —E_—4#—H—H 24,953 62,394 87,347
Acquisition of a subsidiary i % — [#] [t & 2 7
(note 39(a)) (B 5E39(a)) 150,368 - 150,368
Transfers [igrid 18,519 = 18,519
Transfers to investment LLEEIS- LY/
properties (note 19) (Bt 5E19) (71,936) - (71,936)
Depreciation charged Bk 7 85 (607) (3,822) (4,429)
As at 31 December 2021 R-F_—#+-A=+—H 121,297 58,572 179,869
2021 2020
R TR TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
A RWTou N T
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEZAHE 3,898 4,062
Expense relating to short-term leases A B A B 2 B S 814 1,534

Details of total cash outflow for leases, the maturity analysis
of lease liabilities and the future cash outflows arising from
leases that are not yet commenced are set out in notes 34

and 6(d) respectively.

At 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment pledged as securities for the
Group’s bank loans amounted to RMB281,364,000 (2020:
RMB162,410,000) (note 33).

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021

FHEHR S B AN Y - HE AN
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BRI ER I FHEHEA AR
#981,364,0007C (—F —FF : AR
162,410,0007C) (Fff5E33)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 13 S 5 A B e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

The Group has carried out a review of the fair value of its
investment properties located in the PRC on an annual basis
with reference to the independent valuation performed
by a professionally qualified independent external valuer,
who had appropriate experience in the relevant location
and category of the properties being valued. The valuation
conforms to International Valuation Standards and the
fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2021 was RMB290,107,000 (2020: Nil) determined
using market approach with depreciated replacement cost
approach which largely used observable and unobservable
inputs, including market price per square, replacement cost,
estimated useful life and residual value under level 3 fair

value measurement.

At 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of investment
properties pledged as securities for the Group’s bank loans
amounted to RMB199,058,000 (2020: Nil) (note 33).

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. EW*E
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥TF 55 YN e
Cost R A
At 1 January h—H—H _ 1
Transfer from property, plant and A2 s Kk
equipment (note 18) (Pt 5E18) 199,058 -
At 31 December wWt+-_H=+—8H 199,058 -
Accumulated impairment losses AT s 48
At 1 January and 31 December W—HA—HE+=ZH=+—H - =
Carrying amount I i
At 31 December H+—H=+—H 199,058 -

AN A (1] 5 4 2 ] EL A0 A o B A 43 ) 3
NVE - WS %—FAEHEEKRNE
N7 4N A B 4 98 ST A (R o LR B A
%%%w%m%&ﬁwﬁﬁﬁﬁAL%
HTHAREER o SZREAN AT A B R R AN AR E
TiRE S FAUY ER TG BIEME S -
AEHMBEYWER T %+ H
E*”*H%”@PEEJJ%W%MJOZMW

(B R4 ) > IR AW 5E X
ﬁ%iﬁm$&%m’1%ﬁmﬂ§%
Fo R w] LS g A BhE > SRR
T E A ~ EERA - Al FE AT AR
KR REE - BRE =B A T ER & -

m*%:#$+*ﬁr+#a TS
A5 [ SR AT R0 EE R 1 & W 2E IR R (E A
AE%N9%8%WB_?_?$ )
(Mt 5E33) °

A AR IER T BRSO A PR A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

20. GOODWILL 20. TH
2021 2020
SR “EROFRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T 75 NS BT
Cost B A
At 1 January and 31 December jis — BB FRRT EL =g 204 204
Accumulated impairment losses H 5 AE i 18
At 1 January and 31 December SR E T —JF = =B - -
Carrying amount i i
At 31 December WtHZHA=1+—H 204 204
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at A ZETS 6 D AT 1) 20 I i B I i &2
acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from TR IR 2% 267655 5 OF v 0 o PO B 4 A R
that business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill AL o 7R 2 MR T AR T At D7 X0 B

had been allocated as follows:

2021 2020
SE =S Mt =t 2
RMB’000 RMB’000

PN B AR T

Investment vy 204 204
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 13 S 5 A B e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined
from value-in-use calculations. The key assumptions for the
value-in-use calculations are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and budgeted gross margin and turnover
during the period. The Group estimates discount rates using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The
growth rates are referred to past experience and current
market expectation and/or demand or based on long-term
average economic growth rate of the geographical area
in which the businesses of the CGUs operate whichever is
applicable. Budgeted gross margin and turnover are based

on past practices and expectations on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets approved by the directors for

the next five (2020: five) years.

The pre-tax rate used to discount the forecast cash flows
from the Group’s operating segment of the investment
holding business is 7.7% (2020: 9.4%).

20. & (4)

3R 4 A AL (07 22 AT B e AR AR R R
BERT T EEE - EAEFAE R
BB TS B A R B R R - M2
B B SR o A SR AR T R B
I3 7 355 3 6 W ey ] i B B < 7 A B AL
R AR 2 WA Y BRBL AT B A LA EE
MHERLR o MR R 2 2 1 K8 K H R T
DUTE I R o 5 SR AR 8 B < A B A6
K8 S5 P A L 8 2 -3 R IR KR I I R
REtH BT EEM) - HREBMNEE
S A AR R AR R B o 4 R U

P

JE °

A AR P AR R RS HE S v 2 R AR LA (Z
TR TAE) Bl W B R R
BB i ) o

MU BIASE B 3 BOE R 2 508

A A5 TE T B A 2 BRBLAT LR A
77% (& " FMH 1 9.4%) o

A AR IER T BRSO A PR A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

21. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. H i 6 B & &
Transport
operation Computer Customer
licence softwares list Total
2 N w5 B 1 IEEA Hal
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
N S NI S AR¥T NG ST
Cost JRA
At 1 January 2020 W_F_FFE—H—H 30,000 1,090 7,674 38,764
Additions NE - 302 - 302
Disposal or written-off 8 B — (39) = (39)
Exchange differences i 3, 7% 5L = (21) (496) (517)
At 81 December 2020 and WZEZZE+ZHA=+—H
1 January 2021 k-Z_—%#—H—H 30,000 1,332 7,178 38,510
Additions NE - 696 - 696
Exchange differences i 5o 7 S - (7) (164) (171)
At 31 December 2021 BB AZ—H 30,000 2,021 7,014 39,035
Accumulated amortisation EHE 3]
At 1 January 2020 R-F_FEFE—H—H 30,000 846 7,674 38,520
Amortisation charged for the year 74 B 51 4 4 8 = 131 = 131
Disposal or written off B - (39) = (39)
Exchange differences [ §i 7 S - (14) (496) (510)
At 31 December 2020 and NZEZZE+-A=+—H
1 January 2021 R_FE -t~ 30,000 924 7,178 38,102
Amortisation charged for the year 7% 4F i 542 # 5 - 304 - 304
Exchange differences e 57 B = (4) (164) (168)
At 31 December 2021 BB AZ—H 30,000 1,224 7,014 38,238
Carrying amount i T
At 31 December 2021 PR CAZH - 797 - 797
At 31 December 2020 N-E-FE+_H=+—H = 408 = 408
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B 13 S 5 A B e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 21. H i % B & e (%)
The Group’s transport operation license represents a public A 4R B 2 22 0 3 iy A W R A o B R
transport monopoly operation in a designated national 5A 7E B 53 5 A SRR 20 B 8 2 B o A i i R
level tourist attraction in the PRC. This asset is used in the E o SZIH T IR AR S I 2 ik 2 %
Group’s Tourism development segment. JE& I3 ER o
Customer list represents customer relationship acquired % P2 AR IR W A O TR R F B
through business combination. The remaining amortisation B BF AR TSNS -
period of the customer list is one year.
BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 22. Y E
The Group is engaged in the production and sales of wine 7S B [0 A7 = % 70 B A R E i 2 AR EE
and related products. At 31 December 2021, the Group owns HEXEEK R F_—F+_H=f—
7 acres (2020: 7 acres) of vines. During the year, the Group H> REBBEETAE (CFFE 7
harvested approximately 12 tons (2020: 16 tons) of grapes, NV A o RN - A B ] 2 U
which had a fair value less costs to sell of RMB188,000 AT (TR TURAE 16ME) » AT
(2020: RMB271,000) (determined at the time of harvest) A 383 5 A 7 A\ R H188,0000T (—%
with reference to their market prices. The fair value of the TEAE  NRME271,00050) O R R
Group’s biological assets as at 31 December 2021 has been fEE) > MBS BHENTE - AEM
determined based on income approach and taken into EYEER _F _—#+_H=+—H
account the adjustments to harvest profile, cost incurred, ZONTERBR AL E E > W EFHAR
cultivation area, and expected yield of the biological assets. Y BRI E - PR A
R [0 % U0 (0] o o
Reconciliation of carrying amount of vines: 7l % 4 % 1A 2 R
2021 2020
“EC —EFAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T U ANR#T T
At 1 January T S ] 2,462 726
(Loss) /Gain from changes in fair value /A F-{H % B I £ & Wi A
less costs to sell Z E#H) /as (1,274) 2,160
Decrease due to harvest PRI W o T 9 70 (188) (271)
Exchange differences BEE 3t % % (39) (153)
At 31 December T I Sk = 961 2,462

The Group is exposed to climate and other risks related to

its vines:

7 A 1) T 36 S S BEL A 7 48 R EL A
e

A AR IER T BRSO A PR A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

22. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Climate and other risks

The Group’s vines are exposed to the risk of damage from
climatic changes, diseases, fires and other natural forces.
The Group has extensive processes in place aimed at
monitoring and mitigating those risks, including regular
vines health inspections and industry pest and disease

surveys.

23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

22

23.

R B (4)

SR Mok B L A

A B2 [ 2 A ) A8t T S D) SRR B AL

fpﬁ J(“‘&ﬁ%ﬁ%)’]%%ﬁm‘ﬁt%zﬂ

o AEMEIG R EALT o BERER

B % S e B B A S U A T A

il B 7 DU M AT 4 0 A R K R

2 o

PR A H 2 B
2021 2020
SE S S At =t 2
RMB’000 RMB’000

PN B ARBETIT

Unlisted investments: FELHHE
Share of net assets JE A I

Amounts due from/(to) associates are unsecured,

interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021
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(CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S WA e % Bl

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Details of the Group’s principal associates at 31 December

2021 are as follows:

;

23. B

AR M

AWz & (H)

e et [l e e

F B & AT

Place of Percentage of equity
Name incorporation Registered capital interest Principal activities
an a3 3 B kAR A HEAF P B 45 T 2 b FEEH
Direct Indirect
Hik il #%
Jade Bird Fire Co., Ltd. Hebei, the PRC RMB240,000,000 36.85% - Sales and contract works of
(“Jade Bird Fire”) (2020: embedded system products
37.3%) and related products
BRI A HRAT At A 8240,000,0007 AR RAE i JHI B
(% BB ) ZHERAF TR
Beijing Jade Bird Hengsheng Beijing, the PRC RMB1,000,000,000 40% 1% Investment in unlisted PRC
Investment Fund (Limited enterprises or growing entities
Partnership) (“HS Fund”)
s BERR KA Gl ABH1,000,000,0007 BB LR
(FREH) (RS bl P44
Chuangi (Hunan) Cultural Hunan, the PRC RMB150,000,000 = 29%  Project development
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Chuangi Cultural
Development”)
i (M) I B RA IR B A H150,000,0007 HH %R

(A ER])

Chuangi (Hunan) Cultural
Tourism Co., Ltd. (“Chuangi
Cultural Tourism”) (Formerly
know as Chuangqi Enterprise
Development Co., Ltd.)

a3 (R il A R A R

(A L il ) (Rl A e
(P EXEBERARA A

Beijing Xinzhongrui Venture
Capital Co., Ltd. (“Xinzhongrui

o)
LRGP AIER EHRA A
(MR A

Shanghai Shengjin Venture Capital

Investment Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Shengjin VC”)

RS BB AR A
=225 F3)

Hunan, the PRC

A

Beijing, the PRC

B

Shanghai, the PRC

B

(2020: RMB220,000,000)

—?—‘?ﬂz

N\ E%5990,000,0007C)

RMB250,000,000

N #950,000,0007C

RMB200,000,000

900,000,000

(2020: 29%)

- 25%

25% 20%

Project development

EE 2

Investment in unlisted PRC
enterprises or growing entities

BB L RS R
iy Faid

Investment in unlisted PRC
enterprises or growing entities

Hp B LAk R
HEEZ K

A AR IER T BRSO A PR A A
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fk B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 23.
(CONTINUED)

The following tables show information on the associates that
are material to the Group. These associates are accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method. The summarised financial information presented is

based on the HKFRS financial statements of the associates.

}

B v 2 ' (A

N RIVHE AR i TR 2 A
B2 BB o RZ ST A AR AR B i
FUAME LR IE AR o BT 250 BB BRI
TR BRI o W) A s B i o E ) B
Bk -

Name Jade Bird Fire
' HEWHB
2021 2020
St L

% of ownership interests/voting ALE R 2 A R

rights held by the Group W BERET 36.85% 37.30%

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ANR¥ET o

At 31 December e =H=E S
Non-current assets I U B 1,279,734 792,870
Current assets it B 4,410,372 3,555,384
Non-current liabilities i E) A5 (122,673) (4,058)
Current liabilities R R=K i (1,839,810) (1,238,235)
Net assets attributable to owners A NREAL T E = 3,727,623 3,105,961
Less: Share capital injected by other W HA R TEA Z AR

shareholders (1,011,120) (908,660)
Add: Dividend paid during the year A AR S AT 2 S 110,748 72,000
Less: Other reserve s A A 1,244 25,323
Less: Exchange reserve 0 R SO Ak A 32,767 (4,206)
Less: NCIs W IR R A (164,638) (6,845)
Net assets attributable to owners WA NG FEE 2,696,624 2,283,573
Group’s share of net assets A 55 B O3 A T 993,715 851,777
Fair value uplift AFE BT 1,432,996 1,447,568
Dividend received B % B (41,230) (26,856)
Other adjustments At 3 2% 56,912 31,728
Group’s share of carrying amount of 74 ] A 4 e T

interests 2,442,393 2,304,217
Year ended 31 December: BET-H=1T—HIL4E :
Revenue e A 3,733,397 2,445,600
Profit for the year A AE s | 530,457 427 558
Other comprehensive income oAb 2 7 Wi 4 (45,407) =
Total comprehensive income 2 TH) Wit AR AR 485,050 427 558
Dividends received from associates B U B 5 N R LS 41,230 26,856

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S WA e % Bl

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 23. NEEAFZHE (F)
(CONTINUED)
Name HS Fund Xinzhongrui VC
% ¥ B 3k 4 5 b B A 4%
2021 2020 2021 2020

SR DT TF DR T TF

% of ownership interests/ KA Z A R
voting rights held by the Wt REREE I
Group 41%/41% 41%/41% 25%/25%  25%/25%

RMB’000 RMB’000 = RMB’000  RMB’000
ARWTE AR®TT ARWTR ARW®TT

At 31 December w+—H=+—H

Non-current assets I ) & = 59,798 153,338 147,281 377,778
Current assets WE g 194,764 3,969,805 12,220 12,101
Non-current liabilities e R=E — (1,068,777) (4,710) (50,693)
Current liabilities it B A AE (33,093) (2,819,414) (60) -
Net assets 5 221,469 239,952 154,731 339,186
Less: NCIs W FERERE (46,407) (61,324) - 5
Net assets attributable to WA NG R E E

owners 175,062 178,628 154,731 339,186

Group’s share of net assets A4 [ /) il {5 & & 71,775 73,237 38,683 84,796
Other adjustments HAth o (560) (606) - -

Group’s share of carrying 7 5 1 43 A 4
amount of interests M T (B 71,215 72,631 38,683 84,796

Year ended 31 December: ot ]S H

IR AEPE -
Revenue A 209,534 58,879 - =
Profit/ (Loss) for the year ARAERE A (R 4R) 42,216 (369,830) (551) (3,885)
Other comprehensive income H il 2 T i 4 (45,782) 8,309 75,189 75,189
Total comprehensive income 4 [fj Ui % 48 %8 (3,566)  (361,521) 74,638 71,304
Dividends received from e W A A RS

associates = - = -

A AR IER T BRSO A PR A A 164
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

23.

B v 2 ' (A

associates

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021
jing pany I

(CONTINUED)
Chuanqi Cultural
Name Shanghai Shengjin VC Development
4 bk S Al {8 75 S AL %
2021 2020 2021 2020
SF_ o —FXOTE SRDFE T OLF
% of ownership interests/ AEEFEA 2 BEA HE
voting rights held by the Mg BEREE I
Group 45%/45%  45%/45% = 49%/49% N/ARBEH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR¥Tn AR¥TIE AR¥TT
At 31 December Rt+—_H=+—H
Non-current assets FuiEEE 373,512 70,958 = -
Current assets WENE E 33,583 36,656 251,375 -
Non-current liabilities Vit B AR (49,340) (4,882) = -
Current liabilities T AR (1,500) (8,200)  (121,100) -
Net assets FERE 356,255 94,532 130,275 -
Add: share capital not s AR BCR AR EA
injected by other A
shareholders - - 3,000 -
Net assets attributable WA NG B E
to owners 356,255 94,532 133,275 -
Group’s share of net assets <48 40 i i & 7 160,315 42,539 65,305 -
Other adjustment A 7 = 226 (841) -
Group’s share of carrying A A [ 43 45 HE 45 B T (E
amount of interests 160,315 42,765 64,464 -
Year ended 31 December: & 21T _-_H=1+—H
R4 -
Revenue A = - - -
Loss for the year A R (1,573) (3,902) = -
Other comprehensive income H Al 2 T i &5 258,096 (7,371) - =
Total comprehensive income T ETE K] 256,523 (11,273) — -
Dividends received from [SRie X /NNl g5



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S WA e % Bl

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 23. REBE AR ZHRE (H)
(CONTINUED)
Name Chuangqi Cultural Tourism
24 {8 25 3L AV ik %
2021 2020
S S X IR _BLE

% of ownership interests/voting rights A4S [l {5 2 HE A #E

held by the Group M BRERE I 49% /49% 49%/49%

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Fx ANR¥F I

At 31 December mh+=-H=1+—H
Non-current assets I L B E = 1,002
Current assets Ui B - 480,004
Non-current liabilities I Ui B & - (149,130)
Current liabilities TE) A R - (130,874)
Net assets TG E = 201,002
Add: share capital not injected by 0 A RO TEA 2 A

other shareholders = 4,400
Net assets attributable to owners WA NG5 G = - 205,402
Group’s share of net assets A A5 B E - 100,647
Other adjustment HoAh R 4 = (938)
Group’s share of carrying amount of 7 42 1] 4315 HE i 1% T

interests = 99,709
Year ended 31 December: BET A=+ —HIL4E:
Revenue A 184 42,132
(Loss) /Profit for the year ARAEFE (s 18) A (1,420) 6,979
Other comprehensive income oA 2 T U £S _ -
Total comprehensive income 2 TH i 45 AR (1,420) 6,979
Dividends received from associates EL i Bt 7 A ) IS - -

TR ARIERTE BRSO A PR A R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&5 0 B 5 e 3% FfY

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

23. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 23. RBEAFZZE (M)
(CONTINUED)
The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share I FR A AR AR 43 Ak A A R
of the amounts of all other immaterial associates that are T fifi I ME 2 1% A MR 2 B A R 2 AR o

accounted for using equity method.

2021 2020
S SR e = 2
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T oo ARBETIT

At 31 December: Rt _HA=+—H:

Carrying amounts of interests HE £ W% 1A F 13,229 15,130

Year ended 31 December: BET A=+ —HILFE:

Loss for the year A4 1B (5,084) (530)

Other comprehensive income At 4 1T AL A = -

Total comprehensive income 2 TH] I g A8 BH (5,084) (530)
At 31 December 2021, the bank and cash balances of MR-EFE_—F+_H=+—H  &x&EH
the Group’s associates in the PRC denominated in RMB g~ m AN R FHE 2 A B 2 R AT
amounted to RMB849,118,000 (2020: RMBI1,227,384,000). B B4 5 0% 75 A R H5849,118,0007T (=
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to 2 - i o AE%],?QZSS‘I,OOO%) ®
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and AN B 54 A 2 (b 3 N R AR AN
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign (B S A B AR 51 ) B At e ~ B I B A
Exchange Regulations. FIRHLE) HIR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Sn 7 T 5 R 3 Fi R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

24. REBEXEZIRE

2021 2020
—E & TR TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
N B AR¥T T
Unlisted investments: I EH#RE :
Share of net assets JREAG 5 A 2,964 14,436

Details of the Group’s joint ventures at 31 December 2021

are as follows:

Capital contributions/

AEHEGECER T %+ A

Sob— B 2R

issued and paid up Percentage of
Name Place of incorporation  capital ownership interest  Principal activities
W/ TR HE 5 1
an itk it 37 4 2 BUE A MEEAL  EEEH
SBI & BDJB China Fund, ~ Cayman Islands USD73,436,598 50%  Investment in unlisted companies
L.P. (“SBI China”) and real estate assets and
companies in the PRC
SBI & BDJB China Fund, F2#5 78,436,598 % 7T B&EH LA w DL R A B
LP. ([SBI China)) B E KA
SBI & BDJB Management  Cayman Islands 100,000 ordinary shares 50%  Provision of investment
Limited of USD1 each management and advisory

SBI & BDJB Management
Limited

HEMHE

100,000 & 1% i £
13470 2 2 48 fi

services

1R 08 B A T P A

A AR IER T BRSO A PR A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 24,
(CONTINUED)

The following table shows information on the joint venture
that is material to the Group. This joint venture is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method. The summarised financial information presented

is based on the HKFRS financial statements of the joint

REBREFEZRE (M)

TRIVEE A LW 5 JEE R &8 A
KZEHR - ZaEAEREG S WHRE
DARE 5 35 A MR © BT 251 I 5 B R 22 )G
RRIE G 8 A 3 2 7 U B 5 ot Y ) A s
W -

venture.
Name SBI China
% W SBI China
2021 2020
SR TR TR

% of ownership interests/voting rights NEEFE A 2 WA

held by the Group W BEREE I 50%,/50% 50%/50%

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ¥ F e ANR¥ET T

At 31 December rt+_H=+—H
Non-current assets JE A 2,315 32,931
Current assets mENEE 4,257 4,519
Current liabilities i B=R I (182) (186)
Net assets g 6,390 37,264
Less: NCIs W JERE 2 (406) (8,312)
Net assets attributable to owners BEA NGB = 5,984 28,952
Group’s share of carrying amount of S A B 3 5 W 25 BE T (R

interests 2,964 14,436
Cash and cash equivalents included in AR EEZHRE M

current assets HEEBY 4,220 4,519
Current financial liabilities (excluding A BAE 2 )

trade and other payables and provisions) Al (ONEEYE S & HA

included in current liabilities HE A 2 E R 3 )

Non-current financial liabilities (excluding FF A JEJiE & &2 i)

trade and other payables and provisions) WA fE (NEIEE 5 K&

included in non-current liabilities A A5} ek TE K AR

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(CONTINUED)

Name

7

24. REBREZIZE (M)

SBI China

SBI China
2021 2020
SR “EFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
N B ANRWT T

Year ended 31 December:

Revenue

Depreciation and amortisation

Interest income

Interest expense

Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Dividends received from joint venture

BET A=t Rk

A

788 % 4 8

FLE A

LS B 32

e 75 Bt B 52

A4

At 2 T W A

EEIE LK

EilaE RS

(161) (2,500)
(30,232) (185,662)
(30,393) (188,162)

S AR SRR AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

The following table shows the Group’s share of the amounts
of the immaterial joint venture that is accounted for using

equity method.

24.

}

REBREFEZRE (M)

RN ASE [ A8 ) S K i
MR IE AR B3 0 -

2021 2020
SF SR e = 2
RMB’000 RMB’000

ANR¥Tou ARBETIT

27 91

(27) (91)

At 31 December: gl =l H:
Carrying amounts of interests HE i SR T

Year ended 31 December: BET_H=1—HIL4EE :
Profit for the year A4 B Vi )

Other comprehensive income At 4 THT YL A

Total comprehensive income TG E

At 31 December 2021, the bank and cash balances of the
Group’s joint ventures in the PRC denominated in RMB
amounted to RMB239,000 (2020: RMB378,000). Conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange

Regulations.

Note:

The amount of share of unrecognised loss in the immaterial joint
venture during the year ended 31 December 2021 was RMB126,000
(2020: RMB153,000).

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

25. INVESTMENTS IN FILM PRODUCTIONS

25. RERREZRZE

2021 2020
SE . CROIF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T oo ANR¥T T

Cost BEAR

At 1 January and 31 December R—H—HE+=-H=+—H 3,500 11,991

Written off during the year TR A 8 - (8,491)
3,500 3,500

Accumulated amortisation g 3]

At 1 January w—H—H = 3,397

Amortisation charged for the year AF A R B 8 - 425

Written off during the year AF N B8 = (3,822)

At 31 December AT+ —_H=+—H - =

Carrying amount IR i

At 31 December wt+—_HA=+—H 3,500 3,500

Investments in film productions are stated as cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment. The amount
represents investments in co-production of films in China.
The investments are governed by the relevant agreements
whereby the Group is entitled to benefits generated from the
distribution of these films based on the percentage of capital

contributed in the film production projects.

i R B 2 BB A I 2 T
BUESIHR  #% X IEAE A H B S RAE R
WBE - WA MBI ERE > B
AEEA LR B REEBTEEZ
WIS B 5% % TR B A W A 2 2 e

A AR IER T BRSO A PR A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI 26. DALY AR EE A At 4 i WY 5 2
W& E
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
A R¥F i ANR¥ET T
Equity securities, at fair value listed in %$?§# AR
Hong Kong (note (i)) s L (ML) 34,112 49,045
Market value of listed securities b sFHE 34,112 42,045
Equity securities, at fair value unlisted EﬁZ[R‘.%“’f# AR IR
outside Hong Kong (note (ii)) %if%iﬁ’ﬂ‘ I b
W?(ii) 258,602 75,473
Equity securities, at fair value unlisted in AT S > RNTEAE
Hong Kong (note (ii)) AN 3'5 ]
(B 5 (ii)) 7,963 55,321
300,677 172,839

Financial assets at FVTOCI are denominated in the following

DA P fEL T A HE At 2 Wi 2 22 B 5

currencies: DA 3 B WA
2021 2020
TR AR R
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt NEWT oo
RMB AR ¥ 258,602 75,473
HK$ i 42,075 97,366
300,677 172,839

Notes: Fff 5E -

(i)  The fair values of listed equity securities are based on closing

prices.

(ii)  The fair value of the unlisted equity securities was reference to
the valuation performed by Greater China Appraisal Limited
and Brilliant Appraisal Limited, independent professional
qualified valuers, derived from estimations of the equity value
by using market approach which makes reference to market
multiples of comparable companies in relevant industries and

markets.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

27. INVENTORIES 27. 8
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
A R¥F i ANR¥ET T
Finished goods RN 5,689 5,817
28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. © 5 J H Al BE Wk IH
2021 2020
SR TR TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ¥ Tt AR ¥ET T
Trade and bills receivables FE U & 5 Bk S R % 90,051 142,727
Less: allowance for doubtful debts P IR R - (15,814)
90,051 126,913
Advances to staff TEAT B T3k IE 4,726 3,482
Deposits i@ 2,782 2,610
Due from associates (note 23 and 42(b)) JRE WA T 7 ] 3KIE
(Bt 5E28 K42 (b)) 26,000 27,450
Due from shareholders (note 32 and 42(b)) i % 5 3K IE
(Mt 5E82 %42 (b)) 217 185
Due from a related party (note 32 and 42(b)) Ml — 2 B Jy ZH
(Pt 5E32 % 42(b)) 27 27
Loans and interest receivables R i K & R B, 51,260 52,963
Other receivables HC th 8 Wiz 2 IE 243,931 214,326
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W SRR (71,092) (34,550)
257,851 266,493
Advances to suppliers A L I 7 ROE 15,642 1,945
Prepayments FEATRIA 17,638 24,214
381,182 419,565
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

28°

29.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance
is sometimes required. The credit period was generally
3 months, starting from the date on which the goods are
delivered or services are rendered as this is the point in time
that the consideration is unconditional. Each customer has
a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit
control department to minimise the credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In
view of the aforesaid and the fact that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. Trade

receivables are non-interest-bearing.

Trade receivables, based on the date on which the goods are
delivered or services are rendered as this is the point in time
that the consideration is unconditional, are aged less than 3
months (2020: Less than 3 months):

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are all
denominated in RMB as at 31 December 2021.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

28. B 5 B 3L A E WOk T (#)

WRIEA LW 2 E 50 B & 5 Ak
AN AEBMEF KRZEAHIR
Wl o BRERII— B =M A > &
A B AR5 2 R EHE - B A5 R
B 58 5 AR RS 2 - B R HA
e R R o AN SR B BT A 1 R
R B WK IH - S s (5 BRI - B
SRR BB R A - MARE AR
& WA SR o B BRI
Tk A4 I B WA B2 9 BRI R 2 AT
HE > BE B BRI A 2 S o R
5 MR A -

W B 5 B B 2 BR B (AR % i 2 Y
B R REZH > B AT AR
T B 2y JE A 1R 1 R T ) D ik sl A
(ZFFF: DR3EA)

MoFE -4+ A=+—H  AEH
JE W B 5 B K R T & 8B LN R T
{Eo

29. AN

2021 2020

St e

Contract liabilities RMB’000 RMB’000

HRAM AR ¥ T ANR¥T T
Billings in advance of performance obligation JB 4 EAT Z T AT IR K

— Sales of goods contracts —HERMLEH - 32

There were no significant changes in the contract liabilities

balances during the reporting period.

TR ST T - 5 A6 B R R A K
@ o



29. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Movements in contract liabilities:

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

B 13 S 5 A B e

Balance at 1 January
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of

billing in advance of sales of goods

Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of

recognising revenue during the year

Balance at 31 December

29. BRI A ()
AR AMEEE :
2021 2020
R TR R
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ¥ T 0 AR T
r—H—H Z &k 32 37
HEE &Mz
AT IR R BG4
A fE R = 32
AR ERR AR BUE A
B E D (32) (37)
WrZH= 1 —HZ &8 = 32

The amount of billings in advance of performance received

that is expected to be recognised as income after more than

one year is Nil (2020: Nil).

DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

30.

TELSIE A — 4 A% Tl 8 5 Wi 2 ) £ OB 2
HIEMEREEAZT (CFFF %) -

ok S Bl & B Bl & S5 (W
2021 2020
SE o EoEs
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR Tt ARBETIT

Cash and bank balances

Less: Pledged bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Bl I 8RAT K5 Bk

B B AR R AT A7 3K

BekBe%EY

100,935 130,220
(1,002) (12,200)
99,933 118,020

A AR IER T BRSO A PR A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

30. DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH 30. fAak R BE LB &% Y (H)
EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s deposits and cash AREBMZAF R BB E LB &S EY 2
and cash equivalents are denominated in the following R TH B 5 LA 51 B 1M
currencies:
2021 2020
R A TR R
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T oo ARBETIT

RMB N 89,719 123,532
HK$ T 9,620 4,595
USD B 1,596 2,093
100,935 130,220
The pledged bank deposit of RMB1,002,000 (2020: B S8R AT A7 3N R %°1,002,0000T (=
RMB12,200,000) to secure a bank loan granted to the T4 NRH12,200,0000T) 74 F K
Group are as set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial > RS T A LB Z |RITE K > 5
statements. 17 R S S A IR K 5288 o
31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 31. ¥ 5 o Al R A K 9
2021 2020
SR e S S
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T oo ANRBET T

Trade payables JEAS & 7 Bk 53,951 164
Contract liabilities (note 29) G %A i (B EE29) - 32
Accruals and other payables JRE w5t 22 ) B HC At R A 3K IE 51,881 34,612
Salaries and staff welfare payables JREAS) 37 4 S B AR A 14,843 14,126
Due to associates (note 23 and 42(b)) TE A} B % N T ROE
(Kt 5E23 % 42(b)) 8,055 1,300
Due to related parties (note 32 and 42(b)) JREAST I 8 N L 3k I
(B 532242 (b)) 5,882 6,907
134,612 57,141
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 31. B 5 B H i JRE £ 3k JE (%)

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date of MRAB W B0 e 2 BEAT B2 5 R SR i
receipt of goods, is as follows: ST
2021 2020
S —r_=s
RMB’000 RMB’000

A BT oo AR T

0 to 90 days 0%290H 47,103 125
91 to 180 days 91%180H 804 39
181 to 360 days 181%360 H 6,044 -
53,951 164
32. DUE FROM/(TO) SHAREHOLDERS,/RELATED 32. MEWC, (fF) e s/ Bi 3 A 43
PARTIES JH
The amounts due from/(to) shareholders/related parties JEW, () BESR /B 7N 3K I T 44
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment #i G B R AR 2 R -
terms.
33. BANK AND OTHER LOANS 33. SRAT B At 85K
2021 2020
S SR e =t 1
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRWT5E PR
Current liabilities T £ i
- Secured bank and other loans — KRR AT S A B K 555,252 64,790
— Unsecured bank and other loans — 4 PSR AT M HAth B K 58,623 58,077
613,875 122,867
Non-current liabilities JE i B & AR
— Secured bank and other loans — A AR SR AT B HoAth B 3K 88,000 290,870

A AR IER T BRSO A PR A A 178
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

33. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED)

The bank and other loans are repayable as follows (note):

33.

SRAT B 3 Atk 55k (45)
GRAT B HUA B3k 2 SORMIN T (W 3E)

2021 2020
B A TR R
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EF e PNIERL i
Within one year 4N 608,903 117,570
Portion of bank loans that are due for s O FE — AR AR (H A
repayment after one year but contain a e SR AEUR Rk 2 SR AT
repayment on demand clause (shown under £ {7 (R B B fE
current liabilities) 5 ) 4,972 5,297
Portion of bank and other loans that are due #& KM —FFEEH A
for repayment more than one year, but not W AF 2 S AT M HoAth &k
exceeding two years A - 200,870
Portion of bank and other loans that are due % 3 7 L 4E 1% 2 $R17 &
for repayment more than five years At B 3 Ay 88,000 90,000
701,875 418,737

Note: The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates

set out in the respective loan agreements.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and other
loans are denominated in RMB except for an amount of
RMB4,972,000 (2020: RMBb5,297,000) which is denominated

in USD.

The Group’s bank and other loans of RMB500,045,000
(2020: RMB264,797,000) are arranged at fixed interest rates
ranging from Nil to 12% (2020: Nil to 6.9%) per annum
and expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The
Group’s bank and other loans of RMB201,830,000 (2020:
RMB90,000,000) are arranged at floating interest rates at

6.37% per annum, thus exposing the Group to cash flow

interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, secured bank and other
loans were secured by (i) the pledge of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment and investment properties;
(ii) the corporate guarantee given by the Company and a

non-controlling interest of a subsidiary; (iii) pledged bank

deposits; and (iv) the equity interest of an associate.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021

BEPEE © R 8 SRR AR B K Bk BT 91 2 T
WA H RS

Bk LA T 2 30E A R 74,972,000 70
(ZF A ANR¥5,297,00000) 4 >
A% A 2 SR AT S A B K WR T (R DA A
RWEHE -

ALEH 2 RAT KOl BN R
500,045,0000C (—F &4+ AR
264,797,00070) & - FE F12JE (=
T FAF  EE6IE) [ E AR R
FHE s Bl A 4R K 22 P {E R 2R R
B o AN 4R ] 2 R AT M At B 3k N R HE
201,830,000 ( - F “FAF: ARH
90,000,0007C) #%6.37/E Z 77 B 4F A 51
B BBl A 4R R 37 B 4 U B R R R

B o

MW_E R _F_FFE |+ A
=+—H o A ERAT S H A B R A
RS QALY - WE K
R E Y B () AR A R K&
— [T B B8 2 7 22 JE R IR 2R B2 i A 2
W (i) B IR SRAT A7 3 5 B (iv) i —
BB A ) 22 JR i o
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34.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 13 S 5 A B e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED) 33.

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, unsecured other loans were

interest free and repayable on demand.

LEASE LIABILITIES 34.

The Group leases various offices and plant. Rental contracts
are typically made for fixed periods. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants, but leased assets may not be used

as security for borrowing purposes.

The present value of future lease payments of the Group’s

leases are analysed as:

SRAT B At 5k (%)

BoE R CEEET A
SR I RO % B R
He R -

M
AEBMAEZ @MW ELESS - HES
3 A ] 2 IR o A ek M8 il 2
HERERY A A MA [l e et - A
5 Yo I A A B2 MEAH R B
AT AR SR Z S b o

AR H A 2 R A B A 2 BUE 7>
#r

2021 2020
S SR e = 2
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T oo ARBETIT

Current WE
Non-current I i E)

Movement of the Group’s leases liabilities is analysed as

1,960 2,769
64,558 62,185
66,518 64,954

FEBMHEAERZEBHOWT

follows:
2021 2020
2= & —z-TH
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T e AR Tt
As at 1 January i 64,954 68,119
Termination #uk — (257)
Interest expenses FIEBH 32 3,898 4,062
Lease payments N (2,334) (6,970)
As at 31 December T S [ = =S 66,518 64,954

A AR IER T BRSO A PR A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

34. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) 34. & A F ()
The future lease payments of the Group’s leases (excluding AL E (N HEHE) 2 ARHE
short-term leases) were scheduled to repay as follows: BN SR BRI HRIT
Minimum
lease
payments Interest Present value
I K
LS £k AR BlE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRET ARWTT AR¥TI

As at 31 December 2021 R_F_—#1+_H=1—H
Not later than one year B — 5,691 (3,731) 1,960
Later than one year but not — — A& {H AN it T 4F
later than five years 22,422 (13,760) 8,662
Later than five years HAFEE 76,110 (20,214) 55,896
104,223 (37,705) 66,518
As at 831 December 2020 W _ZFE+_H=+—H
Not later than one year RN — 4 6,667 (3,898) 2,769
Later than one year but not  — 4% (A AN it # 4
later than five years 22,257 (14,241) 8,016
Later than five years L% 77,633 (28,464) 54,169
106,557 (41,603) 64,954
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

35. DEFERRED TAX

The followings are the deferred tax (assets) and liabilities

35. EAEBLIHE

PATR 2% A 4 ) L Tl O AR A

BiLIH (EE)

recognised by the Group. KEfE -
Allowance for
doubtful trade Accelerated Financial
and other Allowance tax assets
receivables  for inventories depreciation at FVTOCI Total
Ho kit A A A
a2 mE S
R e BENE  ZMEEE At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARMFX  ARWTR  AR¥Tn  AR%TR
At 1 January 2020 “E2FE-H (6,819) (392) 2,836 825 (3,550)
Credit to profit or loss for the year qu}\ZFE ‘*{ﬁﬁ“ﬁﬁfﬁ
(note 12) (firE12) 877 - 8,509 - 9,386
At 31 December 2020 and RIZ_ZHRTAZT-H
1 January 2021 k=F-—%—-A—H (5,942) (392) 11,345 825 5,836
Acquisition of a subsidiary W RE— RO A ) (339 (a))
(note 39(a)) (117) - 863 - 746
Credit to profit or loss for the year #F A i F50E R (fE12)
(note 12) - - (1,556) - (1,556)
Charge to other comprehensive 3t 2 i i F1 %
income = - = 4,641 4,641
At 31 December 2021 Soanslae ) = s (6,059) (392) 10,652 5,466 9,667
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances LA B T 5 IR DL 3R 22 0 S A T 4 B (4
(after offset) for consolidated statement of financial position B AT
purpose:
2021 2020
—F_—F “ECREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
PN B NS
Deferred tax liabilities R A8 Fod JH A A 15,853 12,170
Deferred tax assets A SIE B T (6,186) (6,334)
9,667 5,836
AT AR ALK BT RS R A F
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

35. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 35.

At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused tax
losses of RMB42,109,000 (2020: RMB66,957,000) available
for offseting against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
total RMB41,466,000 (2020: RMB66,792,000) that will expire
within 2026 (2020: 2025). Other tax losses may be carried

forward indefinitely.

% it B I ()

i R R A A R ) 2 B
4R 5 N R #42,109,00000 (% —
F4E  NR¥66,957,00078) > A A AE
B A A Ui ) o Eh A A R T o 2 3 A
B N A R A A AR AL B T o
FEARTERBG R A R A AR
#41,466,00000 (. F T4 AR¥E
66,792,0007%) » H ik —F ZINF (2
FTRAE D DB AR ZNEH o H
by 58 T 48 T 4 IR A A o o

36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. kA
2021 2020
R E=L
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
18 &H i3 &
Non-listed Non-listed Non-listed Non-listed
shares  H shares Total shares  H shares Total shares  H shares Total shares  H shares Total

F Lty Hi Wit ARG 1t it
RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

F LR br Ht fit FLwRD Hi it

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARETT ARMTE ARETT ARMTE ARETT ARWTR ARETL ARMTR AREFR ARETZ AREFE ARKTR

Registered, issued and £~ EE T RAE -
fully paid:

Shares of RMBO.10 i f A R #0.107C
(020:RMBOIO)  (CECFf:

each BH0.107E) Z ey
At January B=H-H 00000 678720 1378720 70000 67812 137872
Issue of shares (note) EF7IR MR (H3F) - 1% 13574 - BB BB
A3 December M ZA=1-H 00000 8l4.464 1514464 70000  SL446 151,446
Note:

On 30 March 2021, the Company completed placing of its
135,744,000 new H Shares to independent third parties at a placing
price of HK$0.50 (equivalent to approximately RMB0.42) per
placing share and raised RMB56,865,000 after deducting all direct

costs including commission.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the
return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.
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700,000 678,720 1378720 70,000 67872 187872

700,000 678,720 1378720 70,000 67872 137872

AR AEZH = H o AR A SE R

ST = 7 I 135,744,000 B BT HR - i 4548
Fy B S RE 40,509 J0 (H & i 89 N R
0.4270) > TEFOBR I A3 B8 BUAS (B4 1 4)
% EEE AR H56,865,0007C °

A SR ) 2 A T R e AR AR R
PR RS > DROE ML RS R A
b 4] 7 S SR 2R fo 1 (B i o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Note: (continued)

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment
of dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts,
redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt
is calculated as total debts less cash and cash equivalents. Total
equity comprises all components of equity (i.e. share capital, share
premium, NClIs, retained profits and other reserves).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s strategy,
which was unchanged from the year ended 31 December 2020, was
to maintain the debt-to-equity ratio at the lower end of the range 0.1
to 0.4, in order to secure access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The debt-to-equity ratio is calculated as below:

36. WA (#)

BiFEE ¢ (48D

A 4 T 122 J\ B U191 AR 2 o AR AR
V] L A 4 7 A L AR 2 O R L 5
B KAR B B 2 R T AR o
HEFS BB ARG > AR e
FBC B SO S~ BRATORT IR - Il AR
AR - T m B (RS B
DLW AR 5 -

255 M D F A HE i LY R M RGeS o
A B EU AR A TR GBS R IR A AR
U5 1 AR DA B AR R R 8 S B
SHEYRE o MR A S T A R A
(BRBCA ~ % 6 v - JF A ME 45 - R
B i M) S HLAt ()

RBEE_F_—%+_A=+—H1L
FE S AEBBERTHRE T _FF
ToHA=t—HIEFEZ R SO
Fr A0 £ PR 0.1 2045 B 4 2 42
KK > AR LA B 30 A 8 Bl o

B L RFHHEWT

2021 2020

2= & -—z-%7

RMB’000 RMB’000

ANR¥T ot ANR®ET

Bank and other loans PRAT B HoAth B3k 701,875 418,737
Lease liabilities GERES=KT 66,518 64,954
Total debts 575 48 %0 768,393 478,691
Equity attributable to the Company’s owners A7\ A #E A A JE 15 #E £5 3,174,947 2,955,694
Total debt to equity ratio A IERESS L& 24% 16%

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for
the Company to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it
has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. The
Company receives a report from the share registrars monthly
on substantial share interests showing the non-public float
and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25%
limit throughout the year. As at 31 December 2021, 54%
(2020: 49%) of the total non-listed and H shares were in
public hands.

A )y MERF A B 3 BT B I 2R T ST
F1% P — 358 S0 BB B JRAS B SE > S AR
NIRRAFBRADIRBAR 225% A 7]
B H BB 58 Gl A A TR AR
Rl BB R 2 TR B HE G R il - s
BURA R AN —EF525%2 TR
S N 0o == 0
2 ERIE bR MHE 2 54% (—F
T 49%) A RFRA o

A AR IER T BRSO A PR A A

184



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fk B BV 5 e o i

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

o AR T Z BB 5RO A B Gl s 52 B

Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2022

and is signed on its behalf by:

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) AL ZWMHIRILE
2021 2020
R TR TR
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ANR¥ Tt ANR¥ET T
Non-current assets IR B &
Property, plant and equipment LE NS &L ] 5,717 5,690
Investments in subsidiaries, net of RHE AT Z BE
accumulated impairment losses Fobr B 5 (E k1 211,053 160,912
Investments in film productions NEMREZKE 3,500 3,500
Financial assets at FVTOCI DL PAEFFA Ho A 2
it 2 B 255,544 51,360
Investments in associates /NI & < ¥ 457,947 453,464
Deposits for potential investments BEREN LS 105,000 -
1,038,761 674,926
Current assets i B & e
Due from shareholders TR WA % PR TE 216 185
Due from subsidiaries NG R 387,186 412,144
Due from a related company JRE Wit — 5% IR e 2 ) K OH 27 27
Prepayments, deposits and other TEATIIE ~ $edr )
receivables Al 8 i K T 176,516 201,165
Cash and cash equivalents B & KBS EHY 17,238 11,162
581,183 624,683
Current liabilities R =R
Trade and other payables " 5 b H ﬁﬂﬂgﬁ%ﬁ( 21,125 23,622
Bank and other loans SRAT B H A B K 413,329 26,382
Due to a shareholder JE At — 4 % R IE — 498
Due to related parties MEAH B #E O\ 1 3kIE 3,672 2,550
Due to subsidiaries R ASH B J88 2 ] 3k IH 166,032 133,911
604,158 186,963
Non-current liabilities IR B £ i
Bank and other loans SRAT M HAh 7 3K - 200,000
Deferred tax liabilities R A ol JH A 12,455 =
12,455 200,000
NET ASSETS & A 1,003,331 912,646
Share capital i@ 151,446 137,872
Reserves (note b) fiti it (Bt 5Eb) 851,885 774,774
EQUITY BE %5 1,003,331 912,646

WoERCCFE=AZ T HEE R U

L AR N B %E

NI JINLEI WANG XINGYE
fod 45 4% ENE S
Director Director

HF HF
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 37. Ao w] 2 B IR DL 3 B ik i 52 B
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (%)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Reserve movements of the Company (b) A% W) = ik i 5 B
Financial
assets at
Capital Reserve FVTOCI  Retained
reserve funds reserve profits Total
A
WA
H A2
W di Z B

EAGM BRSO WEME  RREN ait
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTLT ARMTE ARBTEL ARWTE ARETE

At 1 January 2020 WoE-ERE—H—H 562,519 76,766 (12,847) 21,981 648,419
Total comprehensive income AR JE 2T 43 AR
for the year = - (2,293) 128,648 126,355
Transfer L - 9,950 - (9,950) -
At 31 December 2020 and e
1 January 2021 +ZA=+—Ak
“EZZ—F—-f—H 562,519 86,716 (15,140) 140,679 774,774
Issue of shares (note 36) AT AR (B RE36) 43,291 - - - 43,291
Total comprehensive AR FE 2 T W 4 A
income for the year = - 41,730 (7,910) 33,820
At 31 December 2021 RZFZ—4
o H =l H 605,810 86,716 26,590 132,769 851,885

SRR IR BB TR SR A PR A 186
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

38. RESERVES
(a) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income

and consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i)  Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Company and the
Group represents the aggregate of:

— share premium totalled RMB602,729,000

arising from issue of new shares;

- the waiver of an amount of RMBI1,654,000
recorded as part of issuance expenses for
the listing of the Company’s H shares on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange in July 2000
(the “Listing”) payable to an unrelated party
who had provided services to the Company
during the Listing pursuant to prevailing
accounting principles and regulations in the
PRC; and

- the net gain of RMB1,427,000 resulting
from debt restructuring of Jade Bird
Fire, a former subsidiary of the Company,
transferred in accordance with prevailing
accounting principles and regulations in the
PRC.
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(b)

A G

445 D 2 i 8 T
S PN NI YT P
5% 21 -

fst 5 1 B P i
() B

A ) T AR R ft A R
PR3P Yl

- BITHREASEAR
#602,729,0007C 2 B
ARITRI=S

- WRBHREBATZ G
Q) AR > BN
RIHB A BT EEL
A 7E ¥ 28 rGEM k1
(T B D) W3t AR 2
AR IR 2 I B
JE A N B HE 1,654,000
TLEB M EEAT S 5 K

- REEPEBRATZ g
FUI) B ik R 2 B A A ]
HT B 2 W B R T B AR
HEMELEZ Tl A
EL#1,427,0000C ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

38. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(it)

(iii)

Reserve funds

Reserve funds comprise statutory surplus reserve
and discretionary surplus reserve. In accordance
with the laws and regulations in the PRC and
articles of association of the Company and its
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC (collectively
referred to the “PRC entities”), the PRC entities
are required to appropriate 10% of their profit
after tax, after offsetting any prior years’ losses, to
the statutory surplus reserve. When the balance of
the statutory surplus reserve reaches 50% of the
PRC entities’ registered share capital, any further
appropriation is optional. The statutory surplus
reserve can be used to offset prior years’ losses, if
any, and may be converted into share capital by
issuing new shares to shareholders in proportion
to their existing shareholding or by increasing
the par value of the shares currently held by
them, provided that the remaining balance of the
statutory surplus reserve after such issue is not
less than 25% of share capital. The PRC entities
may transfer an amount from their profit after
tax to the discretionary surplus reserve approved
by the shareholders. The discretionary surplus
reserve can be utilised to offset prior years’
losses of the PRC entities and to distribute to

shareholders in the form of bonus issue.

oreign currency translation reserve
Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve
comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in

note 4(f) to the consolidated financial statements.

38. filiffi (#)
fk s BT e FD3& ()
(ii) WA

it 446 s 4 L 9 V5 E TR S B
SREBRBAES - B
R B I R SRR DA B AR S ]
B Hp B ST 2 B
3w (RATT AR [ 2 B A )
ZHERAA S P E
B 28 e HOBE A% T B (4K 8 4
Al DAAE 4F i AR ) - 4RI
10%1E 1% B R it il o 3205
E B BR A A B P B R Rk
i 1B 4S50 % RE > AT AT 3 — 25
PEBUE B o TR B AR
A5 AT A G B DA AR 4F R 1R
(FEA) > IR A R
IR 5 JBE LU A9 1) I BB A7 3
A R 1 0 R T A
0y 2 T A W BB AS > A
B B AT 15 1 0 T f A B AR
NG DTRBEA Z25% o H I
B AT A A B 4 B A BLAR U
g 2 AE R AT =
BERGEA  AT 2 B ARG A5 T
TG 6 v ) B 2 o A AR
FE s 18 - S DL AT Iy =X ) i
HIREE o

(iii) FE S 1

T S ol 5 €2 455 T 5 it S 26755
S5 S 3R AR Y T A R S
B o % fil M 1 A MBS R
WP () P i & R i 2

A AR IER T BRSO A PR A A
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38. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Financial assets at FVTOCI reserve

The financial assets at FVTOCI comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of
financial assets at FVTOCI held at the end of the
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy in note 4(n) to the

consolidated financial statements.

Other reserve

The other reserve of the Group represents the
aggregate of:

The equity-settled share-based payments of
RMB10,969,000 recognised upon transfer
of equity interests in a subsidiary of the
Company from certain of its original
shareholders to a director and certain
employees of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2012.

The difference of RMB1,583,000 arose from
the decrease in NCIs of RMB4,617,000
(being the proportionate share of the
carrying amount of the net assets of
PWC Winery, LLC) and RMB3,034,000
(equivalent to approximately USD475,000),
which arose on the acquisition of additional
25% equity interests in PWC Winery, LLC
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

The reserve includes RMB3,960,000 (2020:
RMB4,111,000) is the safety production
fund, which is for future enhancement of
safety environment and improvement of

facilities.
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38. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(©)

Profit appropriations

Under the PRC Company Law and the PRC entities’
articles of association, the net profit after tax as
reported in the PRC statutory financial statements,
prepared in accordance with PRC accounting
principles and regulations, can only be distributed
as dividends after allowance has been made for the

following:

(i)  Make-up of prior years’ cumulative losses, if any.

(ii) Allocations to the reserve funds as stated in (b)

(ii) above.

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Acquisition of a subsidiary

In June 2021, the Group acquired a 2% equity interest
in Chuanqi (Hunan) Cultural Tourism Company
Limited (“Chuanqi Cultural Tourism”), a then associate
of the Group, at a consideration of RMB1,400,001,
which comprised of cash consideration of RMBI and
capital contribution commitment of RMB1,400,000,
from an independent third party of the Group. Upon
the completion of the acquisition, the Group owned
a total of 51% indirect interest in Chuanqgi Cultural
Tourism; and Chuanqi Cultural Tourism ceased to be
an associate of the Company and became a subsidiary
of the Company. Chuanqi Cultural Tourism was
participated in tourism development projects in Hunan

Province.
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

()

Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities

of Chuangi Cultural Tourism acquired as at the date of

acquisition are as follows:

39. &if Bl i B L W EE ()

(a) S — [ ) 2 W) (480D

T

T SO o s 1 R SR R
2 Tl ) T B A A S A

RMB’000
AR T

Net assets acquired: Joir S i E
Property, plant and equipment (note 18) W R R (i aE18) 245,432
Deposit for purchase of property, plant and WEE Y~ BB XS 2 i

equipment 9,722
Trade and other receivables B 5y T FoAth JiE i 1 IH 15,911
Cash and cash equivalents Bl KB &5 EY) 694
Trade and other payables B 5y B H At A 3ROE (54,838)
Bank and other loans SRAT B H A B K (143,830)
Deferred tax liabilities R A o JH 4 A (746)

72,345

NCIs I 2 FBe i i (35,449)
Fair value of interests in Chuanqi Cultural Tourism {8 &1 SCAb i€ 7% A% B 5 43 25 Wi i

at completion date of the step acquisition 58 % B B3 A F-E (34,353)
Gain on bargain purchase e M8 2 i A (1,143)
Total consideration — satisfied by deferred AR — DUR I AU S At

consideration 1,400
Net cash outflows arising on acquisition: o oA B A 2 B A M VR A
Cash consideration received E B AR 694
Cash consideration paid BB e AE e

694

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

()

Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued)

During the period from the acquisition date to 31
December 2021, Chuangqi Cultural Tourism contributed
RMBI,789,000 to the Group’s revenue and net profit of
RMB558,000 to the Group’s profit or loss.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2021, the
consolidated revenue and net loss of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021 would have been
RMB1,973,000 and RMB862,000 respectively. The
proforma financial information was for illustrative
purpose only and did not necessarily reflect the
Group’s revenue and operating results if the
acquisition had been completed 1 January 2021 and
could not serve as a basis for the forecast of future

operation result.
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021

Disposal of a subsidiary

On 15 May 2020,

sale and purchase agreement (the “SP Agreement”)

the Company entered into the

with an independent third party and Chuangqi
Tourism Investment Co., Ltd. (“Chuanqi Tourism”),
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, in
relation to the disposal of the 60% equity interest
in Chuanqi Tourism held by the Company at a
cash consideration of RMB172,028,880; and for
the guarantee fee arrangement in relation to the
release of the guarantee agreement (the “Guarantee
Agreement”) executed by the Company and the banks
dated 31 January 2013 which secured the obligations
of Changsha Songya Lake Construction Investment
Co., Ltd.

of the Group which is held as to 46.6% of its registered

(“Songya Lake Construction”), an associate

capital by Chuanqi Tourism, under a facility agreement.
Chuangqi Tourism, through Songya Lake Construction,
is principally engaged in participation in tourism
development projects and its principal asset is the
investment in Songya Lake Construction. Details were
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated
15 May 2020 and 26 June 2020 and the circular of
the Company dated 30 June 2020. The approvals of
the shareholders of the Company in respect of the SP
Agreement and the transactions contemplated; and the
continuing provision of the guarantee in accordance
with the Guarantee Agreement after the completion
(the “Completion”) of the sale and purchase of
the 60% equity interest in Chuanqi Tourism, have
been obtained at the special general meeting of the
Company on 21 July 2020. The Completion took place
on 3 September 2020. Upon Completion, Chuanqi
Tourism and Songya Lake Construction ceased to
be a subsidiary and an associate of the Company
respectively. Net assets of Chuanqi Tourism on the date

of disposal were disclosed below:
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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39. &if Bl i B LW EE ()

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Disposal of a subsidiary (Continued)

(b) HE—HIHEA R (4)

RMB’000
AR%T T
Net assets disposed of O BT EE
Investment in an associate i R~ /AEIOEi'e <y 85,737
Due from an associate JRE Wt 7 > R R IE 33,400
Prepayments TR IA 13,433
NCIs I FE JBEHE i (53,028)
Net assets disposed of (SRRt <y 79,542
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary R — [ R 2 W 2 Wi dd 92,487
Consideration satisfied by cash® DB 4 15 15 9 £ A 1723020

Net cash inflow arising from the disposal

& Out of total cash consideration, RMB30,000,000 was #
settled during the year ended 31 December 2020.

HEFEE AN SRA T 30,000

B SERERE D AR
30,000,000 CE A B E —F %
A=+ IR -

S AR SRR AT
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. %6 Bl &R R MW ()
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) RLEWEB)EA 2 A K E IR
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s TR RMEALE B MERD
liabilities arising from financing activities, including EEZAMRZEY GfFHEX
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising HBREEH MEFHEAZA
from financing activities are those for which cash flows B RE R nh R Ay N N 3
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the BHEensdnAEBGE 58120
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash BRESBABEEH B SN E
flows from financing activities. & e
Due to
Bank and Dueto a related Lease
other loans shareholder parties liabilities
BT K Bt — 4 B £ I
Jof Bk Ji 3 At R F £
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FE  AR®TT AR¥TET AR®Tx
At 1 January 2020 AR ZEE—-—H 231,758 2,576 5,779 68,119
Interest expense FIERX 13,865 - L 4,062
Non-cash movements B 5 343 (2,576) 2,576 (257)
Cash flows BehiE 167,771 - (1,448) (6,970)
At 31 December 2020 and RZE R
1 January 2021 TZA=ZtT—HR
e e 413,737 - 6,907 64,954
Interest expense i)Y B 31,135 - - 3,898
Non-cash movements IR 142,987 - - -
Cash flows REnE 114,016 - (1,025) (2,334)
At 31 December 2021 /AR 1
+ZH=+—H 701,875 - 5,882 66,518

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE
As at 31 December 2021,

several banks in respect of banking facilities granted to two

the Group issued guarantees to

(2020: two) associates and a former associate, which was

disposed of during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Group under the guarantee. The maximum liability of
the Group at the end of the reporting period under the
guarantee issued is the facility granted by bank amounted
RMB300,000,000 (2020: RMB490,000,000). At the end of
reporting period, facility drawn down by the associates
amounted RMB100,000,000 (2020: RMB290,000,000). The
Group has not recognised any deferred income in respect
of the financial guarantee as its fair value was considered

insignificant.

40. MBER

REFZ—#+"A=+—0  A%H
U] (=% 4 W) B A R &

— [ A T H 6 Y TR O R R 1Y
7 RlE 1) A T 8RAT 3% AR AR

R MR > 3 I AN ER B AR AR T AT e

AR (R BOE T RAE o AR
AAEBMOEITHER T 2 AME LR AR
42 2 fE N R 300,000,000 (—
T AR ¢ AR %490,000,0007T) © iR
WEIAR > BE AR BE & AR
#£100,000,0007C ( & A NRHF
290,000,0007C) ° A 4= [ 5lf7 40 55 B S 4%
PR FRAT AT AR FE UL A > TR 2 N P {B
P25 DA

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 41. BAKY
The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the A AR I A5 H 2 E ARG
reporting period are as follows: I
2021 2020
TR AR TR R
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ Tt ANR¥F I
Contracted but not provided for: E AT 4 M R A
Property, plant and equipment Y E KA 61,546 36,425
Committed capital contribution to ] e N T A A 2
associates and joint ventures ZIREEE 89,582 91,569

A AR IER T BRSO A PR A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #%£ “F ~—4+ A=+ —H L4

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

42, [

(a) In addition to those related party transactions and (a)

balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated

ANLER5

B &3 £ S 5 R 3 LM R o e BR 2
EREN LR KR K

financial statements, the Group had the following A5 T A A P BRI N -
transactions with its related parties during the year: TUTRS :
2021 2020
R SR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
PN B ARBETIT
Management fee income from PNER k- @NClR B E
associates PN = 6,791
Lease expenses for office buildings PATR 2% 7R Z A=
charged by MFEHEEN
- a shareholder of the Company — AR A — 4 R - 585
- 585
Car rental expense charged by an — [A 4 A RO 2
associate VR HEFH 48 BA 2 - 117
Purchase of an owner-occupied re] — [A] B 2 )
property from an associate E S PELVEE = 45,370

The directors are of the opinion that the above

transactions with related parties were conducted in the

usual course of business.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42. BIEN LR 5 (4])
(CONTINUED)
(b) Included in the consolidated statement of financial (b) &5a W B5IR UL % A 65 LD, T B
position are the following balances with related parties: N L2 &R
2021 2020
—ER 4 —E R4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T oo ANR¥T T

Due from associates JRE WS B 88 ) 3KOH 26,000 27,450
Due from shareholders JHRE A R R A 217 185
Due from a related company JRE Wit — 5% B b T R B 2
controlled by Peking University 2 BN A ROE
included in other receivables wrh A At I i s IH
27 27
Due to associates JRE AR W 7 2 W SKOH 8,055 1,300
Due to related companies JEASH Fh b B R B4 i 2
controlled by Peking University IR 8 =] 0OA 5,882 6,907
(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the (c) AHMHEEBEIABME :
Group:
2021 2020
R4 —E R
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T oo AR¥T T

Short term employee benefits K6 1 1 B AR A 4,001 1,715
Post-employment benefits kA A 305 109
4,306 1,824
Further details of directors’ and supervisors’ T R 2 — PRI
emoluments are included in note 15 to the ARG BB IR B RELS o

consolidated financial statements.
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43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 43. FEE A ¥

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2021 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operation and kind

R-F_—FE+_A=+—H > ALH
B 1) PO ST

Percentage of

Name of legal entity Paid up capital ownership interest  Principal activities
wE R L,/
kMt B 8 S
A BHERER R MRA WAEEEGT AL FEEH
Direct Indirect
H# Il
Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Cayman Islands/ the 100,000 ordinary shares of ~ 100% - - Investment holding
(Cayman) Development Company PRC, limited liability USD1 each
Limited company
IKHEBRT(HE) MEmE/ 1@ 100,000/ & i 7 - RERR
BRARA HRAT 1Eu il K
Chuanqi Tourism Investment (Hunan) Hunan, the PRC, RMB30,000,000 60% - - Exploration and development of
Co., Ltd. (“Chuangi Tourism (Hunan)”)  limited liability travel and leisure business
company
R (W) HRA A MR HRAT ARYES0,000,0007 — AR R KA 2 B R
([ fic it (A7) ))
Beijing Hengsheng Investment Beijing, the PRC, RMB2,000,000 55% - - Provision of investment
Management Company Limited limited liability management and advisory
company services
e R B A R A MR HRAT ARY2000,000% — R R
Ningbo Jade Bird Venture Capital Ningbo, the PRC, RMB60,000,000 = 70% - Investment holding
Investment Co., Ltd. limited liability
company
EHERAELEARAR MR HRAT ARM60,000,0007 ~REER
PWC Winery, LLC The State of Virginia, ~ Members’ contributed - 70% - Production and sales of wine and
the United States, capital of USD4,200,000 related products
limited liability
company
PWC Winery, LLC FEABERDN JRACE %4,200,000% 7T — WA XA R R R
HRAT
Xiamen Hanyu Bulk Supply Xiamen, the PRC, RMB50,000,000 = 100% - Sales and purchases of metal
Chain Management Co., Ltd limited liability products
company
BP0 TR MR T R HEEF HRAT AR50,000,0007 —HE RIS A

The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the

Group.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021

EREIIGE AL K BERA
R B B B W B 4 R B AR A



43.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S WA e % Bl

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # % “F _—4+ - H=+—H IL4E

The following tables show information on the subsidiaries

that have NCIs material to the Group. The summarised

financial information represents amounts before

inter-company eliminations.

43, FEMWIB A A (H)

AR A G I A ER T A
Z W~ R o BAHS BRI 4G 2 W ] 3K
TR S5 5 HIT B 2 A o

Name Chuanqi Tourism (Hunan)
%4 {80 2 ik 2 (391 F)
2021 2020
T® 4 R R
% of ownership interests/ IE 125 BEWE 25 I B 2 A HE
voting rights held by NCIs fEt, B HEE 4 L 40% /40% 40%/40%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ETE ANBRH#T 0
At 31 December wht+—_H=+—H
Non-current assets IE Wi B A 634,550 243,817
Current assets & 183,080 292,002
Current liabilities i) A E (284,717) (81,873)
Non-current liabilities FE L E) B (161,770) (64,798)
Net assets R 371,143 319,148
Accumulated NCIs ERE ey g 148,457 127,659
Year ended 31 December: BET-H=1T—HIL#FE :
Revenue e A 110,753 97,236
Profit i A1) 1,658 22,353
Total comprehensive income AR %5 AR AE 1,658 22,353
Profit allocated to NCIs 53 T T I 4 I A 2 v 663 8,941
Dividends paid to NCIs B R IR R i 2 R B - =
Net cash generated from operating BE A B SRS B 2 4 AR
activities 26,476 17,398
Net cash used in investing activities R &S B 2 454 (17,266) (50,587)
Net cash (used in)/generated from (AR /EAAmEESZ
financing activities & VA (41,667) 21,092
Net decrease in cash and cash W4 KB &5 EY R HaE
equivalents (32,457) (12,097)

AR AORIAER T KBRS A PR A R
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44.

45.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited Annual Report 2021

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
Subsequent to year end date, on 10 March 2022, the

Company entered into an equity transfer agreement with
an independent third party to acquire 80% equity interest
in Guangdong Lumen Pioneer Opto Co., Ltd (JE&H##H
Mt EAMAT), a company incorporated in the PRC
and principally engaged in the development, manufacture
and sale of high-end ceramic high-power LED devices and
modules, focusing on the research and development and
manufacturing of special light sources such as automotive,
stage, curing, flash and plant growth, at a consideration
of RMB84,486,000. This acquisition is not yet completed
at the date of authorisation of the consolidated financial
statements. The details of this transaction have been set out

in the announcement of the Company dated 10 March 2022.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the directors on 30 March 2022.

44.

45.
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Particulars of Investment Properties

& W1

Group’s Approximately
percentage  Approximately Gross Floor Category of
Location interest Site Area Area  Usage Lease
AR MRy
b 26 MRS BRI MEAEEERE  HE L5 250
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
CF k) CF k)
Phase I, Legend Town Cultural 30.6% 50,648.41 22,264.97  Cultural and Medium-term
and Art District, recreational lease

No. 3 Guangji Road,
Nanyue District, Hengyang
City, Hunan Province, the PRC
o I A e A 5 i R L B ikt
355 {8 23 S0 A 2B AT [ — )

%
£

A
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Financial Summary

$4 755 i 2

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HILEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
SF O CFCFE CF AR SF-AF DB
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWTRE AR%TT ARWTEZ AR®TT AR¥TE

Results B4
Revenue A 394,627 468,414 1,266,678 1,905,727 1,613,075
Profit before tax ¥ Bl il T4 157,929 80,244 1,575,955 405,067 417,570
Income tax expense FIT 454 B S (6,513) (10,351) (73,782) (78,556) (76,080)
Profit for the year 2 A Y | 151,416 69,893 1,502,173 326,511 341,490
Profit attributable to: JRE A ¥4 ]
Owners of the Company A2 A #EA A 158,972 64,165 1,402,389 147,029 170,668
Non-controlling interests  JF # B4 4 (7,556) 5,728 99,784 179,482 170,822
151,416 69,893 1,502,173 326,511 341,490
As at 31 December
i Y= = S
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
_E D —FFE ZE-NE _F-NE ZF—LE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETIHE AR¥TrE AR¥Trxt AR¥®TT AR¥Tx
Assets and Liabilities & E K AR
Total assets Mg E 4,276,863 3,662,512 3,470,502 3,468,716 3,180,551
Total liabilities A (928,320)  (557,676)  (395,131)  (818,301)  (692,303)
Total assets less total MG E WA
liabilities 3,348,543 3,104,836 3,075,371 2,650,415 2,448,248
Non-controlling interests  JF £ B A 4 (173,596) (149,142) (197,150) (900,180) (719,907)

Equity attributable to EN/NCIE Z<DN
owners of the Company  JE 4 ¥ 4 3,174,947 2,955,694 2,878,221 1,750,235 1,768,341
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